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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMEERS OF A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED

(Formerly known as “A-One Steels India Private Limited” ,"A-One Steel and Alloys Private
Limited”)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of A-ONE STEELS INDIA
LIMITED (*the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows far the
year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory infermation (hereinafter referred to as "the standalone
financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025,
the profit and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash fiows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the ather
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report,
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions,
as applicable under the applicable laws and regulations.

Managements and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors and management are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility alse
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safequarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and
estimales that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Board of directors and management is responsible
for assessing the Company's abllity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related 1o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of directors
and management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease cperations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so,

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting Process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high ievel of assurance, but is nol a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional cmissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order 1o design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. |f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. QOur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's reporl. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concerr.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A'a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, {o the extent
applicable.

2 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the
backup of the books of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic
mode has been kept on servers physically located in India on a
periodicaliincremental basis and for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(i) below of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

¢c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Stalement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standard specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

f. With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connecled therewith,
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section
143(3)(b) and paragraph 2(j) below an reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

g. In With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
Standalone Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure B" of this report.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

(i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of any pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements- Refer Note 44 to the Standalone
financial statements.

(il ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(i) ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv)  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note no 66 to the standalone Financial Statements no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall

« directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficianies”) by or on behalf of the
Company or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ullimate
Beneficiaries.
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(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the Note no 67 to the standalone Financial Statements, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Funding Party or

+ provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub clause (iv){g) and (iv)(b) contain any
material mis-statement.

i. Mo dividend has been declared, authorized, or distributed by the Company in respect
of the current financial year.

j. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. However, we found that the audit
trail at the database level is editable.

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention for the entire period fram April 1, 2023 except that
the audit trail retention at the database level is available only from April 12, 2023, and
at the application level only from October 2023

k. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 187 read with Schedule V
to the Act.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
(Firm's Registration No. 302049E)
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Bengaluru

Date: August 01, 2025
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ANNEXURE ‘A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
our report to the Members of A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED of even date)

i)
a) In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment:

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property plant and equipment;

B. The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assels;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all Property, Plant and
Equipment are verified in a phased manner. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No discrepancies noticed on such verification.

¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) are held
in the name of the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given fo us, and the records examined by
us, the Company has not revalued its property plant and equipment ({Including Right-of-use-
Assel) or intangible assets or both during the year.

e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Frohibition of
Benam! Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made there under ,and therefore
the guestion of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the
details in the standalone financial statements does not arise.

ii)

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Physical verification of the inventory
(excluding material in transit) has been carried out by the management at reasonable
intervals and in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management are appropriate. According to the information and explanations given to
us, there were no material discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.
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b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in
aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions during the year on the basis of security
of current assets of the Company. The company has filed quarterly returns or statements
with such banks, which are in agreement with the books of accounts other than as set out

below:
Quarter Aggregate Amount Amount Amount as Amount | Reasons for
warking utilised as per reported in of material
capital during the books of | the quarterly | difference | discrepancies(h)
limits quarter(h) account return/ (e)
sanctioned(a) (c) statement(d)
June
2024 36,500.00 2963240 54 465.94 55,158.10 (692 16) Refer Mole
September
2024 36.500.00 31,854.91 47 059.55 46,696.92 162 83 Refer Mote
December
2024 | 36,500.00 31,491.51 49190.12 48,763.19 (573.07) Refer Mote
hMareh
| 2025 39,250.00 31.810.31 5018700 | 50,677.98 {480.99) Refer Note
Note:

« The differences are on account of statement filed with the banks prepared based on
provisional basis and regrouping of various ledgers.

« While arriving the drawing power the creditors are adjusted from bank balances
available as on respective guarers.

« The Company has a practice of submitting position of debtors, advances to suppliers,
inventory and deducting creditors, advance from customers, Unsecured Bills
Discounted with RXIL & Poonawala Fincorp and LC payable. Therefore, for comparing
with the books of accounts the same practice has been followed to arrive at the net
position though there is a change in classification in the financial statements.

i) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has made investments in five
companies and has not made any investments in firms, limited liability partnership or any other
parlies. The Company has provided advances in the nature of loans to employees, stocd
guarantee to company, and has not provided loans, stood guarantee, provided security or
advances in the nature of loans to any firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties
during the year.

a) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date with respect to such loans and guarantees to subsidiaries and to parties other than
joint ventures and associates are as per the table given below:

Kolkata, Mumbai, Deli, Bangalore, Chenneai & Raipur
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Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

Guarantees | Security | Loans Advances
in nature of
loans
Aggregate amount granted /
provided during the year:
- Subsidiaries 6,000.00 5 MIL NIL
- Joint Ventures NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Associates NIL NIL NiL NIL
- Other (loan to employees) NIL NIL NIL 129.49
- Other Companies 800.08 NIL NIL NIL
Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in respect
of above cases:
- Subsidiaries 28,210.00 5 1,239.70 NIL
- Joint Ventures NIL NIL MIL NIL
- Associates NIL NIL NIL NIL
- Other (loan to employees) NIL NIL NIL 122.15
Other Companies 5,669.29 NIL NIL NIL

b) In respect of the aforesaid investments, guarantees, advances and loans, the terms and
conditions under which such investments, guarantees, advances and loans were granted
are not prejudicial to the company’s interest, based on the information and explanation
provided by the company.

¢) Based on the explanation and information given to us and based on the examination of
available records in respect of the loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and
interest has been stipulated in the loan agreements. Further, the repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been regular as per the terms of the agreement during the
period.

d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, there are no amount of loans and advances in the nature of
loans granted to companies, which are overdue for more than ninety days. Accordingly,
clause 3(ili)(d) of the order is not applicable

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not renewed or exiended or fresh loans
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given to settle over dues of existing loans given to the same party. Accordingly, clause
3(iii)(e) of the order is not applicable

f) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not given any loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Accordingly, clause
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making
investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted deposits other than those in the normal course of business, hence the
provision of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under;
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

vi) Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products.
We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, hawever, made a
detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
camplete.

vii)

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, goods and service
tax and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the
company with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanaticns given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, the statutory dues referred to in sub clause (&) which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of dispute are as follows: -
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viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been
recorded in the books of account.

ix)

a)

b)

d)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender fram whom
the loan is borrowed during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the order is not
applicable.

According fo the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any government authority.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans have been applied, on an overall basis, for the purposes for which they were
obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long
ferm purposes by the Company,
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e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of
the order is not applicable.

f)  According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
clause3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable.

X)
a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not
applicable,

b) Inour epinion and according to the infermation and explanations given to us, the Company
has made private placement of shares. The company has complied with the requirements
of Section 42 and 62 of the Act, and the funds have been utilized for the purposes for
which it was raised.

Xi)

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance
of material fraud by the Com pany or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such case by the Managemeni.

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, no report under
143(12) of the Act in form ADT-4, as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, has been filed with the Ceniral Government.

c) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, there are no
whistle blower complaints received during the year.

xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, Accordingly. clause 3(xii) of the order is not
applicable.

i) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements,
as required by the Indian accounting standards,

xiv)
a) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
B) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

(Offices : Kolkata, Mumbai, Delhi, Bangalare, Chennal & Raipur
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xV) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directars or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section
192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the order is not applicable to the Company.
xVi)
a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(a) of the Order is not applicable,

b} The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Hence a Certificate of Registration (CoR) is not required as per Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the order is not
applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit,
there are no Core Investment Company part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause3(xviii) of the order s not applicable.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
'S notan assurance as lo the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to u, the Company hes during the year spent the amount of Corporate
Social Responsibility as required under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has
been included in this report

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
(Firm's Registration No. 302049E)

(Membership No. 077508)
UDIN: 25077508BMOVZS6073
Bengaluru.

Date :01/08/25
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of A-ONE STEELS INDIA
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAI')". These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit, We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Cantrols over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note"} and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
fo these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financlal
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statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that.

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records thal, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
{ransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporling with reference
{o these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detecled. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting with respect to the standalone financial statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SINGHI & CO,,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 302048E

ffﬂ\
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-

&

UDIN: 25077508BMOVZSB073
Place: Bangalore

Date: 01/08/2025
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A-One Steels India Limited
(formerly known as "A-One Stesl and Alloys Private Limited", "A-One Steels India Private Limited")
Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Company Overview:

A-One Steels India Limited (the Company) is a public limited company daomiciled in India, with its registered office
situated at A One House No. 326, CQAL Layout, Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar, Bangalore — 560092. The Company was
incorporated on April 9, 2012. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of Iron & Steel

products

1. Material Accounting Policies

(i)

(ii)

Statement of compliance:

The material accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of these financial statements are
listed below. These policies have been applied consistently by the Company for all the periods presented in these
financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

These Standalone financial statements (“the Financial Statements®) have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA') under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended and ather relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on August 1, 2025.

(A) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cast convention with the exception of certain
assets and liabilities that are requirad to be carried at fair value by Ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
betwaan market participants at the measurement date,

(ii) (B) Current and non-current classification

tii)

{ii)

All assets and liabilities have been classified and presented as current or non-current in accordance with the
Company's normal operating cycle, which is based on the nature of business and the time elapsed between
deployment of resources and the realisation of cash and cash equivalents. The company has considerad an
operating cycle of 12 months,

{C) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (), which is also the Company's functional currency.
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated.

{D) Basis af measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:



A-One Steels India Limited
{formearly known as "A-One Stesl and Alloys Private Limited”, “A-One Steals India Private Limited"”)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

items Basis of measurement
Certain financial assets and liahilities Fair value
Met defined benefit liability/asset Present value of defined benefit obligation less fair

value of plan asset

{ii} (E) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related
disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

« Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an
assassment of the probability of the future taxable incame against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised,

+ Business model assessment - The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups
of finarcial assets are managad together to achieve a business objective, This assessment includes judgement
reflecting all relevant evidence including how the perfarmance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the parfarmance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers
of the assets are compensated. The Company menitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held
continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and
accordingly prospective change to the classification of those assets are made.

« Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment
of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of
recoverable amount of the assets.

e Classification of leases - Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the |ease term as the non-cancellable period
of a lease adjusted with any optien to extend or terminate the lease if the use of such option is reasonably
certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby

- assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any aptions te extend or terminate the contract will be exercised
In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the impartance of the
underlying asset to the Company'’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of suitable alternatives, The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the |ease term
reflects the current economic circumstances. Atter considering current and future economic conditions, the
Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to tha existing lease contract,

+ Expected eredit loss (ECL) — The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions
and credit behaviour (e.g, likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makeas
significant judgements regarding the following while assessing expected credit loss:

»  Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk

= Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenmarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL

»  Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL
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Provisions and Contingent Liabilities — At each Balance Sheet date, based an the management judgment,
changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding
contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of useful lives, residual
values, and method of depreciation of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence
that may change the utility of assats.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on several underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses,

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market guates are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with haw market participants would price the instrument.

Retirement benefit obligations - The Company's ratirement benefit obligations are subject to a number of
assumptions including discount rates, inflation, salary growth and mortality rate. Significant assumptions are
required when setting these criteria and a change in these assumptians would have a significant impact on the
amount recorded in the Company's balance sheet and the statement of profit and less The Company sats these
assumptions based an previous experience and third-party actuarial advice. The assumptions are reviewed
annually and adjusted following actuarial and experience changes.

Revenue

The Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether,
how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard requires apportioning revenue earned from
contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone selling price basis, using
a five-step madel.

Rewvenue from sale of goods

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to custamer in an amount that
reflect the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those product or services at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of any
taxes/duties and discounts.

The Company satisfies a perfermance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:
a. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's
performance as the Company performs; or
b. The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as tha asset is
created or enhanced; or
¢. The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and
an entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point
in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of preducts is recognised at a time on which the performance obligation is satisfied.
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Recognition in case of local sales is generally recognised on the dispatch of goods, Revenue from export sales
is generally recognised on the basis of the dates of ‘On Board Bill of Lading’. The Company recognises provision
tor sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of the sale,

Variable consideration - This includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts etc. It is estimated at contract
inception considering the terms of various schemes with customers and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at end of each
reporting period,

Significant financing component - Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers.
Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of cansideration
for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between
the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or
service will be one year or less.

Contract balances:

Trade Receivables and Contract Assets i

A trade receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to a custorner and consideration becomes
unconditional. Contract assets are recagnized when the company has a right to receive consideration that is
conditional other than the passage of time.

Contract liabilities:

Contract liabilities are Company's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has

already received consideration. Centract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the company satisfies its
perfarmance obligation under the contract.

Other operating income

Export benefits are recognised in the year of export when right to receive the benefit is established and
conditions attached to the benefits are satisfied.

Other income

Interest income

Interast income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is racognised using the effactive interest method,

The 'effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Commission income

Commission income are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss only when the relevant services have been
rendered.

Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits:

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as the
related services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc. are recognisad in the statement of
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profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit abligation in the balance sheet,

Long term employee benefits:
Defined contribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a
predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The
Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for
contribution to defined contribution plan are recognised as an employes benefit expense in statement of profit
and loss in the period during which the related services are rendered by the employeas,

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan ather than a defined contribution plan,

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum payments
to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount
equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five
years of service, Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity is accounted for
on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

The present value of such ohbligation is determined by the projected unit credit methed and adjusted for past
service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be
settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation or change
in return of the plan assets is recognised as an income or expense in the other comprehensive income, The
Caompany's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair
value of any plan assets.

The Company determines the net interest expense/{income) on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit cbligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net definad benefit liability/(asset), taking inta account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability/(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense
and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service ('past service cost’ or 'past sarvice gain’) ar the gain or loss on curtailment iz recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of
a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme canstitute other employee benefits. The liability
in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit
Credit Method done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain and losses are
recagnised immediately in other comprehensive income.
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(vi) Foreign exchange transactions and translations
Initial recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying the foreign eurrency amaunt
of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of transaction.

Conversion;

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities outstanding as at balance sheet date are restated/translated
using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Mon-monetary assets and liahilities which are measured
in terms of historical cost denomination in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of
transaction except for non-monetary item measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when fair value is determined.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Company's monetary
itams at rates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or reported in previous
financials statement {other than those relating to fixed assets and other long term monetary assets) are
recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise,

{vii) Tax expense

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and |oss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income ar loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a lagally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultanecusly.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
naot a business combination and that affects neither accounting nar taxable profit or loss at the time
of the transaction;
taxable temporary differences arising en the initial recagnition of gooadwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used, The axistance of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therafore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax
asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax
assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the
extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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Inventories

Inventories comprise the fallowings:
a) Raw materials,

b) Wark-in-pragress,

c} Finished and semi-finished goods
d) Stock-in-trade, and

g} Stores and spares.

Inventaries are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is
made an an item by itemn basis. Cost comprises of all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred
in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost is determined using first in, first out
method of inventory valuation.

Loose tools and scrap are valued at estimated realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs nacessary to make the sale.

Provision of obsolescence on inventories is considered on the basis of management’s estimate based on demand
and market of the inventories.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bank balances in current accounts and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to cash with original maturities of three months or less at the time of
purchase and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdratts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within barrowings in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets
Provisi

The Company creates a provision when there is present cbligation as a result of a past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

If the effect of the time value of meney is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost,

. fiabili

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose axistence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whaolly within the
control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an eutflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the abligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of cutflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income
that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is
not a contingent asset and is recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, in financial statements, where an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Property, plant and equipment {including Capital work-in-progress)
Recognition and measurement

All iterns of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost (or) deemed cost applied on transition to
Ind AS less depreciation and impairment. Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and
eguipment are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes (wherever applicable), which includes capitalised
borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and squipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and remaving
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalized as part of cost of qualifying asset.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and eguipment. Any gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and egquipment is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at 1 April 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Advance given towards acquisition [or) construction of property, plant and eguipment outstanding at each
reparting date are disclosed as capital advances under "Other Non-current assets”.

Subsequent expenditurs =

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future econemic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value
over their useful life using straight line method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods
are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule Il of the Act.
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The useful lives of the assets ara as under:

Particulars Useful lives (in years)
Tangible assets:

Land Not depreciable asset
Factory sheds and building 30 & 60 years
Plant and eguipment 15 & 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 3 & 5 years
Vehicles 8 & 10 years

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful
lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.
Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the
date the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is
provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if
any, are accounted for prospectively.

Investment in subsidiary companies

An investor, regardless of the nature of its involvemant with an entity (the investee), shall determine whether it
is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. An investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns fram its invelvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee.

Thus, an investor controls an investee if and only if the investor has all the following:

a) power over the investee;

b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns fram its invalvernent with the investes: and

g} the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns.

The Campany has elected to recognise its investments in subsidiary companies at cost in accordance with the
option available in Ind AS 27, 'Separate Financial Statements’.
Invastment carried at cost is tested for impairment as per Ind-AS 36.

Leases
As fessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor classified as finance or operating lease. Leasa income from operating
leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless
the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected
inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

As lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land 8 buildings and plant & machinery. The
Company assesses whether a contract contains a tease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
leasa if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company has
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substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases, For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commeancement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less
any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depraciation and impairment
losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recaverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (.., the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) 1s determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) te which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with
a corrasponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changas its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
baen elazzified as financing cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewad at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset's or CGU's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do net generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recagnised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment lass recognised in
respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then
to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.
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After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

Barrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are
immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are measurad at transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial

On initial recegnition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
+ amortised cost,
»  Fair value through other comprehensive inceme (FVOC), or
¢ Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depands on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows,

Financial assets are nat reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the follawing conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:
+ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
s the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCIH if it meets bath of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:
s theassetis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and
s the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.



A-One Steals India Limited
{formerly known as "A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited", “A-One Steels India Private Limited")
MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is niot held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elact to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OC| (designated as FVOCI — equity investment).
This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FWVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivativa financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOC|
or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates ar significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

In order to meet the requirements of the Electricity Act 2003 and the Electricity Rules 2005 regarding
consumption of Electricity in captive generating plants, the Company enters into exchange barter transactions
by either selling or purchasing equity shares between group companies, The Company has opted to recognize
and classify such financial assets as Financial Assets through Other Comprehensive Inceme (FVTQCH) in the
financial statements. Considering the fact that these are intra-group transactions entered into only to meet
regulatory requirements, the Company measures these assets at cost which is considered to be the fair value,

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

« the stated policies and objectives for the partfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

« how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Campany's management;

«  the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

« how managers of the business are compensated — e.g., whether compensation is basad on the fair value
of the assets managed or the cantractual cash flows collected; and

» the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prier periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not gualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assats

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g, liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or ameunt of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

« contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

« terms that may adjust the contractual coupen rate, including variable interest rate features; prepayment

and extension features; and
» terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets {e.g., non- recourse features),
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A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable additional compensation far early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a
financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits
or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but
unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination)
is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interast method. The amartised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interast income and impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement
of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subseguently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and |oss.

Debts investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss,
Other net gains and losses are recagnised in OCL On Derecagnition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit er loss.

Equity investments at FVOC! These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as
income in profit or lass unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OC| and are not reclassified ta profit or loss.

s b g y -

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such en initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subseguently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and lasses are
recognised in the statement af profit and loss. Any gain or lass an derecognition is alse recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Gains and Losses on the Interest-free Loans from Promoters: Interest expense on loans availed from the
promoters of the Company is charged at effective interest rate method and charged to Finance cost. The deferred
income recognized at the time of initial recagnition is recognized as income aver the loan term on straight-line
basis.

Equity Instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of diract issue
costs.
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Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derecagnition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains
eithar all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transfarred assets are not
derecognised.

B il liabiliti

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual ebligations are discharged or cancelled, or
EXpire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are madified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the madified terms is
racognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial insiruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit lossas on:-
- Financial assets measured at amertised cost; and
- Financal assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred, Evidence that a
financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data;

« significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;
+ the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company an terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;
« jtis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial rearganisation; or
» the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
Expected credit loss

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an ameount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected cradit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument,
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{xvii)

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reperting date {or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
i5 |less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognitien
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasenable and supportable infarmation
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than agreed
eredit period.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

s the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security {if any is held); or
= the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receivel.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does
nat have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. However, financial assets that are writtan off could still be subject te enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Company's procedures far recavery of amaounts due.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
sharaholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted
average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events such as bonus issue,
share split or consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholdears
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted into equity shares as
at the beginning of the period unless they have been issued at a |ater date.
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(xviii)

{xix)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to presant segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company's Management to allocate
resources to the segments and assess their performanca.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most
relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis,

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allecable to the segment
including inter-segment revenue.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the
segment result, Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are
included under unallocable expenditure,

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments s included in
unallecable income.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a
whale and not allocable to any segment.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company's 'Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or 'CODM' within the
meaning of Ind AS 108,

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on making the
asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Subsequent expenditure on an
intangible asset after its purchase / completion is recognised as an expense when incurred unless it is probable
that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its ariginally
assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably,
in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the asset.

intangible assets under development

Expenditure on research and development eligible for capitalisation are carried as intangible assets under
development where such assets are not yet ready for their intended use. An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic benefits are axpected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amaunt of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Computer Software's & other intangible assets is being depreciated on Straight line method based on the
method as prescribed under Schedule |l of the Companies Act 2013,
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{exi)

Intangible assets Useful lives (in years)
| Software 3 Years

Government grants, subsidies and export incentives

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with
the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received. Where the monetary grant relates to an
asset, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

In the ordinary course of business, the Company uses certain derivative financial instruments to reduce business
risks which arise from its expesure to foreign exchange and interest rate fluctuations. The instruments are
confined principally to forward foreign exchange contracts, cross currency swaps, interest rate swaps and collars.
The instruments are employed as hedges of transactions included in the financial statements or for highly
probable forecast transactions/firm contractual commitments. These derivatives contracts do not generally
extend beyond six months.

Derivatives are initially accounted for and measured at fair value on the date the derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reparting period.

The Company adopts hedge accounting for forward foreign exchange and interest rate contracts wheraver
possible. At inception of each hedge, there is a formal, documented designation of the hedging relationship.
This documentation includes, inter alia, items such as identification of the hedged item and transaction and
nature of the risk being hedged. At inception, each hedge is expected to be highly effective in achieving an offset
of changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. The effectiveness of hedge instruments to
reduce the risk associated with the exposure being hedged is assessed and measured at the inception and on
an ongoeing basis. The ineffective portion of designated hedges is recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss.

When hedge accounting is applied:

« for fair value hedges of recognised assets and liabilities, changes in fair value of the hedged assets and liabilities
attributable to the risk being hedged, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss and ::ompensate for the
effective portion of symmetrical changes in the fair value of the derivatives,

« for cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the change in the fair value of the derivative is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and the ineffective portion is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If
the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or farecasted transaction results in the recognition of a nonfinancial
asset or liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is recognised, the associated gains or losses on the
derivative that had previously been recognised in equity are included in the initial measurement of the asset or
liability. For hedges that do not result in the recognition of a nen-financial asset or a liability, amounts deferrad
in equity are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the same period in which the hedged item affects
the statement of profit and loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. when incurred. Subsequent te initial recognition, these derivatives
are measured at fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in other
income/expenses. Assets/liabilities in this category are prasented as other current financial assets/ other current
financial liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized within 12 months after the
balance sheet date.
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Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrurment expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recagnised in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs, If a hedged transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to the statement of
profit and loss for the period.

{xxii) Business Combination under common control

Business combinations through common control transactions are accounted on a pooling of interest method,
No adjustmants are made to reflect the fair values, or recognize any new assets or liabilities, except to harmenise
accounting policies. The identity of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor becomes the
reserves of the transferee. The difference between consideration paid and the net assets acquired, if any, is
recorded under capital reserve / retained earnings, as applicable

Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business acquisition are expensed as incurred, Any subsequent
changes to the fair value of contingent consideration classified as liabilities, other than measurement period
adjustments, are racognized in the statement of profit and loss.

{xxiii) Material Accounting Policy Infarmation

The Company adopted Disclosure of accounting paolicies (Amendments to Ind AS 1) from 1 April 2023, Although
the amendments did not result in any changes in the accounting policies themselves, they impacted the
accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of *material” rather than “significant” accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies,
assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting palicy information that users need to understand
other infarmation in the financial statements,
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Meter v q elak Firsneinl ity far the yaar ended March 51,2018
b Aot ane A T LhhY . DnFRr JfeasRaR siaTe]
Metec A at By wh
(i} Caryng valoa and market valon af puated and unguoted ineestmants are a1 balow: March 17 7025 March 11, 2324
Book vafue of unguoted invesiments TAA6AE6 A ETL)
Barket value af unguiated investmers TASEEL LA PR ]

fiiy Few gaglanaton on the Compamy's credit tish menagement procsss, seder nede 53,

fiii] Thersare ro smrdficant restmctions an the right of ownersaip, realestilty of meestments of the remittance af income and proceeds of dispasal,

{hu) The Corngamy Bad invagied In guity duaies af Vipchall Evargy Privata Umited. Alria Wind Powe (BijapurT) Pravate Lirmibsd, Rediarcs e Sorishive Five Privale Limited Geomn Inies Cledn Wind Power Limited,
Had anem Fa Sunshing Sl arivate Limited. B Sura) Brivai Limitad, Srean Infra Cloan Salee Enegy Lirdad Atld Powar, Bith Powen, Eyan Solar Power, FPEL Colastical Private Limsied, Ananthegas Ereegy
Projects Priwate Liniteid and fihassys Enecgy Ore Private limitad, st prouiremant of gowar fewas de cagtve consumption jn Babary, Searbidanat and Hincupw: urits. The managsment aaticpales that the
tnrmination of contrect i hoturs (i s wekd be ab ot ce e ameunt invosted. The imnestment has been made anly dor procuring the paver aod ret dar iy finandal tenefit. Howswar, considering tha
b Tacts, coit of inveatrmait has bes conviderod @ it (e valua which i sams a1 ook valus

9 |beans jren-darrant] As ab By mi
Marih 17, 3025 Marzh 31, 2924
Unsecured, conmidarad goad
Laans to Subaidiary comganios ja =il ) 1,1 54501
23870 1,154.01
Motan

[ - For xplaration on the Compary'i cridit ik msnagemant pracesd, il ot £3
|l Forirfarmation reguired under Sectian 1854 of the Samganhis Scl, 200 3 e nole 45

19 |Othar financial aeeete inan-currens s at Ryl
Warch 11, 2025 March 51, 1024

U rmamirad, comashdeesd goodd
Sacurity dapatity G R0 185546
At it oW irwmarm Rty 455350 340000
Coenasita with Rarks |Raiuciny moo chan ek mantss w5409 214475

$.665.00 1,795.61
T

For gaplanation or the Compary's coedil 1k managemiend, proca, refer nots 53
abcvn dopatits with banks are hald with bank as securing i elation to repaymant of bomosangs (refer nate 22 and 2H)

11 |Mas-current tax ssaeks fral) FT Asal
Karch 11, 2075 March 31, T34
i corea tax refurdable TLih 36
TLiA T4
12 |Breher non-current, sssels Ax mt Esat
Winrch @7, 2025 Mar=h 37, 2024
Propaid beaess rent Haga a2
Prapaid rervaley (=111 (=33
Frapaid asparsss A5 08 Et ]
Balares weik gosammen | actha e n&g =
Fnmer el considermi gaod
Lapital advances 457148 et
4,712 14 Ld6 a3
1 | ivramiorbes Mo a [
Waech 31, X028 M 31, 2000
Wakusd 3t lawer of c2ar and nat recfirable walus
Haw materials = 218805 TageRIY
Staras ard speas 358E.19 ERILE
Frrshad goods vt 258584
Gonds in frared 328157 1171358
W il b et bevl realinahle walue
By-poduet 1 ABEAT | VA
51.000.50 44,5931
Maran

| mewritaries ara byposhociiod as socurithes Tor barromsngs Likae froim Banki ieder sots a9)
Goed in Trangt indodes Raw matsrials. Stoms and Spares &ic
Finished gosde alss melider Saml Firashed Goods

74 | Teasls picavnhles s al Azt
Mah 31, 2025 Warch 11, 2024
Unseciired - of amartizel cail
(i1 Trade repiosblei — considesed good 2 Ne2H 53, 73247
(it Track Pgcobsher — which have sigreficant inoeasse o eiedil risk ErCE ] 1261
Lasiz Impaimnent Inse alowansy 11 O Ay {1.100:39)

43,304 B8 53,143 §1




A-ONE STEELS IMDHA LIMITED

[Bormady known 25 “A-One §eel and Alloys Privaie Limbied®, “A-One Sooels india Privats Limined ]
Notes 1= the Fendalens financial stademants foe tha yesr endeod March 11,2835

Al araunr anr i £ Labg. tonfie offanvine ekaned

ioten:
{1} The Company has messired especied coadit foas of trade receivable a1 per b 8% 10% ‘Financial irntrument® refer ke 533
fili Trade receivabies mie hypotheraied as securites for boasing s Talen from barks joeler nooe 49,
(ifi} For sxplanation on the Company's credil risk marsgersnt procsss, el noie 23,
(it Tradde recol vabies sim ran-inmmet beardeg and s moimally recalied in shis Compang's egeraciag ol

ieler prilslancdesg Balances menbaned in pole 51

fue] Trudle reussahie iy fmutitsmding fraem date of iase Hish)

Part|eislars Ap it Bzat

Bnrch 11, 3835 Miarch 31, 024
Unsecured - mil smanmed cosl
Undisputed Trnde Recervaliles — considered good
-6 rmanths AG5E4T3 s5Tnad
E-12 manths 2753 50672
1-2 ez TELIE A 21
2-1 yean 1B3.68 0672
Tl fhan 4 gears 144,75 ELTR
Undirgutad Trade Recsivablas — which haws significant ncreas in oedit risk
& monthi
-2 mantts -
1-2 yoars -
&-3 years 3
tere than § yuarg -
Dlinpuuiard Trmf Pl whvililers — wihich haye sgnificant increass m cr @il ek
-G rnomif Wi -
Gi-12 mmatis G {5 5 38,13
b2 ey TZLIG .
2-3 yoary e 802
Polore iham | yoars 1.0 £ledl
L= Impaintniert loss sllowance 11, 05| (1101159

43, F35.08 55, 14571

1w Taor trade receivables dus from director or other g¥icer af the Compary and firms ar prvate comannies mwhich any doectar 2.8 parines, & directon or a membes sither joint o severally with other gericd

15 [Canh wnd ek sgpuiiunlembs Bn wd Az al
March 11, 2025 March 31, 2024
Aalarca o with hanks
~ i T e Apcim s S92 55 TOETE
el aap Praied 106 24 Ba25
698 B4 TE7.00
iF |Bank Balanas sthiv than eash and exsh suivslanis i At
Mareh 11, mu__ March 11, 2034
Dot mill mmabanby snore fhan thees manths bk leis than el months B 14152 621750
Do b b aigemal maturty of ks than 3 roofhe | 93336 LA
3.076.51 745415
Plate
|2horve Balancws are hald with bank an oty o o tepay ment of bomowings befer rats 22 and 28
TT |Eoars |carmns) s w [T
Maich 11, B0} 5 Msrch 11, 2034
Unsacured. considared gead
Lanine to
- Emplayea 12215 TRAY
Tad. 15 1144
Hales:
(it For meplmation onthe Compzany's credil sk mansge ment process wier note 53
10 |Othar financlal asets [oarrent] Hx i Am at
March 31,2005 March 11, 2024
} Y ]
St ty depaklic 18532 1637
Earrost maney dopogliy 145 115
o coruad intarest on R dnpulimfnl;alh 18xm 12473
O b Rucabiabion * R 51 i) ]
1. 75811 §55.55
Mals:
- mwplanaticn on the Company's credd nak managemant process, refer mobe 52
* The aboue recevables s on sccound of compeniabion towards shartags of powsrfelectricly supaly front prwer gunerating compamesdidnbulion compenies, Deposils
Becaivible, npuranca Tlaim Recaivibie s Retaivaile lor sale of thdres,
I# | Othar surrent msgls Az an Azat
Mlareh 37, 2625 Bllirxh 37, 2034
Unsesured conmdined gocd
vance to aupalers ASNEE L4ITLH
repaid tease sank BTV EM
Prenaid ropalty uE 23
Prapaid sgenses PG 4G B0 5
melsimad GET fnput Tax zZr =
Balanca wath governmand autheritiey 32301% 7,513,718
34, TRE 2D 47,974.44




h-GNE STEELT INDILA LIMATED

(armmedy o as "A-Ons Stesl anid Allogs Prvate Limited ", " 8-0ne Stosls lndia Privats Limitsd™)
Notas T the Standalons (lesncil statsments fos the yoee sndod March 37,2025

it drmwant e v Lakhi ean atferaine sefend

I |Equly Share Capitsl Bl il Aaak
Mareh 37, 1025 Murh J1. 2018
1 |The Company fes conlp ore dass of share cajetal havmg 2 par e of © 1 pey sbwis refered o berem-as squoily shises
Autharied shama
4, 10 LI shaves of ® 1 sachibarch 31, 2004 S650000 shanin ol ® 150 sach and Warch 57, B0 3 1550000 shares af $100 sachi 10200 Fsaam
TL,00,300 {Warek 31, 2023 17000007 2.01% Mo Cumuliive Jian Cormertible Redesrmable Preference shares of 4 100 sach = 1,100.00
Toksd 310000 75000
s, suburrtmd soul fuby paid-ag dsre
B2, fim 200 wharis of #10 swch (Manch X1, 2084 86,1015 sharey of € Wi rach, March 11 202 167,722 shares inf €10 mach) EA8353 157572
Ghaies msumil on sctound ol tnmess carcbrabon ash B9, 304 NI Mach 31 200 % Bl Maseh 51, 2022 9 300,0001 yhasms ol ® 100 each =
Tadal § B4E 51 161171
i Mecoacilstion of the sharns satstanding st the beglaning snd sl of iks year
B at Awal
Mareh 31, 1025 Marsh 31, 1074
i Mismbis
Shares outstanding sk the beginming of the panicd 16732 (SR
Shares =amed on account of business cormbirabion = =
Sharg aplitt 12003438
Sharss nawsd duiing bhe petiad
Bsnin {iguet® 4,184 %050 r
Fresh issua= BEAS 00N =
Share: eutatanding at tha end of the pered 6 04 55270 18,758,722

L

arnd by L e it of Bee| 36, 3054 the arpurty shives of the sompany bone beem sl dhided. sich that 56 S0UHKT erane squity siamy having dacs wahie of o THE- (o bondied anby each fally gadop,
wimnids 1ub donded intz R0 s Tan) sguoitye s aems hmng b valis ol B O @ ben andy) sach, ully paafop, ke pan paii e sl sspacts. The Board of Direciors of the Caxmpary i the Soard mesting
datod Apel, 82, 2724 and Frarehoklers of the Company in the Exira Drckrary Gamners| hsaiting detsd & peil 25th, 224 haws sppoved !J'- Sham aplit

= Duitng tha perlod, the Company his rattad money wa Privain Placement datod 851k fune 2024 by kising T571000, 30 |[ore 24 by leing 1650000 Eqidby Shaces end 1300 joly 2004 by mvaeg 262000
oty Share nigasthvily hadng Deow walue o A 10 moh ot 2 pilow of RL 250 each duding pransduim of Re240 cachy, raniing pa passu ailh tha geivting Touity Shares

= g Board of Deckors & i menting hald on Agnl 03, 2024 .guwlw% B3 e athe applizakle grevivans, i amy, ef the Companies 801, 2003 and iues mada traseslsl, propused thel o sm of @
#1043 Lakhs be cangalzed arBoses Eguity shems out af free reserves and surmles, and dinribwond smemgst the Lquity Sharehsidons by inaus o 41842250 fully paid up Bonus Equity shares of REE each in
Al ki f 512 i, T Bémiy Eejuity shire Tor svey § eaiating ety share of the Tompany) o he sharehobdes wha reld shares on 2rad dpel 024 ic. Mecord date Bhan been sppiasid in the rarling o1
sharrhakders bedd on Aped 75 2104

Turmeirighte attsched i wquity dhoree

‘ating

Each iharehaldor (¢ ontided te one vote par shane bekd

Dividends

The Campdry dodores and pays dividends in Ingion nupess, Tre dividend proposed by the Dozed of Directars in siyect bo scoreral oF U sharghalders m arsung Annia! Goneral Moeting deoapt o thecase
wahee frherr dlidend o distiibuled Thie Company Pas red distrbobed any diadend iy the oument perod,

Lingesidation

I thae it wf Baquidadioe of the Campang, the srashelcers thel be ent#led b ceceren all of the immaining et of fhe Company dftm disinbuben of ol prefesestinl ameunts, § o, Such detribubon amounts
willl b b propotion 1o dhe numbsr af souily share feld by the sharshalifers

The Campary has no beidog compary

Detait of sharehohivrs haliding mers then 5% of squily share ol tie Company

Ar st Arat gk A
March 31, 3015 March 11, 2015 Margh 11, 1024 Mwreh 31, 2018
Hame of sharehsldary Mumbar Fareaelsgu Number Percartage
Eanaag Kumar R JTATR H41.853 ABATR
Sl Jalan EOTAT 60D I S5750d LY
Knshan Kimas |akan 53,7600 25AE% 4308 2625%
§.34.50,270 B5SAE 16.75.7E2 [

A3 per the Serame of Amaigamanion of tha mry.damrcmqpmin: will b merged wath tho authonzed share capitsf of the Transleres Compary by paying dHamrn:_rI'u! ater wefting off fhe
fae .]-“d_-l- el I;lr“ql'rlmr-uw :grnF.l.ﬂ-I.m 18 ity =-P|IJ Cansiderirg tha sbavs, aHar clubbing of authesizad thara copital of Transdarsf Companies it s Trinhe i

Company, the authodsed and pafd up share copital of Hie Transferes Comgpany s fallows-

of rach entity's squity sharus sschangesd to offect the busines

Particidars Autheriied Authorkied Paid Shase Capital | Pald Share Capital after
. Share Capiial Share Captal reinre sanctioningf senciomng of Sclwme
bafors after sanctinning|of Schame (In Rap f{in Raj
saictioning of  |of Schems |1
Til
A-cna Steals india Private Lemited 1.500.00 - L3637 -
uaryarr Hitech Steals indla Private Limited 54,00 a _ ArER] -
A inglia Private Limite 150000 375040 1,304.00 bR
quﬂphnmd nemtyer of dhares imaued, together with the Ind A3 1635, Business Comhinatiana parcemtaga
sombination
Farticulars B-ore Steafy Il Pt Lid Aaryan Hitach Sieals ndla Pat Ltd
Pra Acguistion |Past Acqulztion | Pre Acquistion Ptk Aespilstan
Mo of Shates outstanding as on March 31st 2021 13,463,170 - 62, 26,000 =
Mo of Sharey isisad by Tranaferes to the Tramfeor 280408 . By83e
on aecount of Rebrychuting




G ONE FTTELS INEAA LIMITED

(Farmmry ko an "A-Oive Sheel sl BBoyy Priwaie Limatad”, "&-0ns Steals il Privste Limitad™)
Hestus ia the Samidalens Finaincisl statmments fon e yeer snded Meach §9, 2025

2k arponnt s i F Lhing , ks obheree sisleil!

LA

Tiv Bk of Dicsctors by thair mestng an 2nd Bprd, 2024 haee iecommended by inius & 50 AT05 hully paid by shares af fia, 10)- wich by sapitaliziog foee reseree 0f Rs, 4102305007 - {lup=es Forky Ore
i Fighly Foue Labfs Tharty Trssand Fea Hu el Sl in gapesiaon of S el new sguity bonus share ol B - ssch o every 20wa] hdly perd-up sqmly shane ol fis T dach hald i the Comoany
by toe misting shasmbuidnin (3L whione name spps e in fhe Ragiclar of Mamben & on G2nd Spnil 2024 Record Dute) during tha parnd of 5 ysan mmedisely prececing (e Falance seet date || b been
appraved In tha meeting of shareforlders hekd on April 35 2004

A psr the drcier passed by the Morbie NCLT, Bengaloru Bench vide CFICAAY Mo 383 B/210 7 dated 220 Moveribes 2007 s 230210 ol the Camparies det 23013 fod sppeoving the Scheme'of Amalgemation
(St af B D Scesds |nadli Privats Limied (Tiardesor Company Mo 1) and Aaryan Hitech Stoah brcha Frvste Limited iTansferor Company N 21 with &<One Sl and Allys Prrste Lirited (Tisnstees
Cormpanyt, tha Fransforse Companmy his b 1400e| iy shire ol BOT00- wap® flly paid-up in mlTumhuMEammu, o1 avery 488 sty sbare of R 00 wach faly paicd up helel by e sharsboldacs
m tht Tiknitarar Seenpare- 1 and | (Cned egeety shates of B 100/~ sach fully paid-up mthe Transores Company for sy 55,50 ety share of R 1005 sach bl padd ug e by the shambaldaryin the
Traeeforos Compary -

An aggregale ol 173722 sguy shares of Ra 100 doch wers bsusd putiuest 1o amalgamab oo, withauk paymest being resawind b duih i mmediily pracading Tva yaas Roks note 581

|x|. Dutails af squity sares hald by Prometen st ihe s of year
ftzme =f prometen Bu st L] As b
March 1131085 shangs March J1, 2034
Purmtees Pecomiage Musabiar Percastags
Zandeap Kumar LMEaAI0 ERIEY 15.54%) LEAl ) ELECL
unl jallan OTaT S0 WX 11T SALEM 3o
Erizhan Humai jalan 15375200 ZLALE L4 ) A ES TR 2EI5H
54580 270 I 55 187N 190%

(i Mo shares ste reserad bo be iasaed under optison and contreciy’ sammrtmants for the sale of shared? duinyssiment.

{xiT, DU Mon Cumalsthe Mea Conyertibia Racogmakle Profevence shams of 10,50,000 of & 100 sich hava been ired on privas: plicamart bads ot thaic Batrs Ovilinaey Ganesd Mssting dated 9th farch pozd
for & period of [0years 600,000 preference shares have besn redeama on 2518 Saptamnbe, 2024 and 4 00000 peederance frases have bean redoamed on Brh Seprarshorn, BOk4 a1 2 premtien af 6% Fate vahis
al Al ol Shares Le, Az 1000 lakke Paveben transferred to LRAL

mrad Moodase of fhare) have Bane Bought back during tha panod of 5 s immediately procoeding tho Balanca Sheat data

I | iher squity Asat I-0Y-35 Ay 1t-3-34

(Tutsll Talali

Ti} |Ratminad sarnings
Opericg Ralince FLF Al anreen
Ewuirums acquilred 1 ough busosss crnbenation .
Lo g Sy i 14,184.57]|
Lavi: Sharw isvus mpenssy S4.97) .
Praft Faar 2hvs yamar AET201 LELETE
Raraagireiant of defreed hensfd plans 12,89 ITE5)
Tax on Rmasarymant of deflmed bl plans &1 1%
Dreitsnd pad during the pered - 1o
Transher 1 Capstal Radarmiplion Resren 1 e | .
Eluing balanrs 2H210.34 2% TEE.10

wilp | Swiel e g esinlum
Dprerirg balincs {57) 2,35200 235200
| & eistinn duar g b s stned PRGN ] .
Clashing balsnes 260700 2405208

{iil | Copital Aeweres
Opariy balines {0R) IFSEE 1S LalEas
Ailriiticin dising Him e md - a
Clwibing balance LRI 2E 161238

livt | Capital Fedlumplion Rasarve
Ciowrirg talanca [CR] - -
Akl disring thi feriod 4L .
Clsaing balanca = 1,089 A0 ==

N7, 5 43 R

Halure and purpens of other squity

. Retained samings
[t e Barnigs resrasnnts {ha ounphas) \\dn‘w n profit and logs account and Wuphlllm

1§, Seeariies premum
The pmist ritasod in gugen of face vahue of the eowty sharas i iscognited in Socorities Pramium, (L can gnby b usTied Tor mitbed prapees in aceandaoca with tha piodsions of 1h Compases A, 2018

fdl, Hems of sthar carmpraheasive insame
Remasiirament of squity insTumants
Fhe Cam aary has dected fo racogrize changes btk Fait vihin of coftaim -""'W"""*"'h"'*‘hl' meui o i othnt carnprekanike lsioee Thise thanges aie armumelsted in Hw A0 eguity ireestmests.
reserve. The Campany iarlen ameunts from this rezorve to retsinad azerings whian tha ralovant coquy secaritins o derocogmised o4 wedd degy iinpairent loss o sch et umats & reclasdhed o the
Statwrenk af Profland Lass
Asmeamursmant of defined benofit sbhgation
Thee Com sary Poc gl ehamgs on 3200w of remazsuroment of the net definad bdnafit sty 3t part of othar compraertive jncorwe with wapatare dieclours, which compries ob

- aesuaial gaing and fozses
« return of phan Jccaty, aoduding amounts fckidod in ral Tnbseest an T et defined el Bsbditg and
- any Eamge ivehe affect of the assot caling acuding amounts imtaced b el Eanet o e net cefned bl bl
Uyl ¥re axcoes of L valun of nel aesls dequind oven concidesation padl @ 3 cammon el frareection § m:nqruqnd A% cap Rl reare

bl

Tha amsnt sl farm walia ol radamplion of pralrence thered (e s 1000 fats has bean Lranshe il to Capiel Nadermptan feseve e Gereral fiesare




A=-0ME STEELS INDIA LIMITED

MNotes to the Standalons financlal statements for the yoar ended March 31,2028
Al amount arp in T Lakhs , dnless otfrenwise slaled)

{formurly known as “A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited”, *A-Ons Stwels India Private Limited™)

12 |Borrewings (non-current) Asat Az at
March 11, 2025 March 17, 2024
Secured - at amortised cost
Tarm loany
- frem banks g018.14 1Z,532.56
- from financial institutinn: 212598 2.097.28
Less: Currenk matunbies (4,688.16) (4,526.03)
Vohecle and eguipmant loans,
- fram banks 14581 14230
Less: Current matuntiss 143,76} {35958
Sales Taw Deferment Loan 1,876,708 1.721.82
Unsecured - 8t amaortised cost
Loans from directors G.064,10 A,592.45
Othears -
Unswcured - st amortised cost
Preference Sharas:
- fram Preference Sharehalders - 423.39
14,198.69 16,947.79
Note:
For tarms and Conditians rafer nota 40
For explanation on the Company's liguidity sk management process. réfer nobe 53.
For Related Party Transactions refer note 51
13 |[Leass liabilities [non-currant) s Bt A m
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loase liabilitias < Mon Curment 10.815.62 11,104.77
10.915.62 11.104.17
Note:
Far sxplanation on the Campany's liquidity risk management pracess, rafar nate 53.
Refer Note 50 for Laasa lablities
14 |Other financial linbilitiss (non-current) A at As at

March 17, 2025

March 37, 1024

Dapotits fram agants

206045

227433

2,060,485

227433

P obmc

Far explanation on the Company’s liquidity msk management process, refer nate 53




A-OME STEELS INDIA LIMITED

[Farmery known as “A-Ona Steel and Alloys Private Limited”, “A-One Steals India Private Limited®)
Miotes to the Standalone fimancial stataments for the year ended March 11,2025

LA amount g ¥ T Lakhs . wvess otharwiie stated)

15 |Provisions {non-current) A a1 Anat
March 11, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for employes bensfits
Provision for gratuity 44218 25710
Provision for Compensated Absenses B1.93 46,79
524.11 343.89
15 | Deferred tax liabilitios (net) #a at As sl
March 17, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax labilities inet) 33764 2581.13
337.64 261,15
Foter Note 56
27 |Othar non-current habiities M 3l s 3l
March 11, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deberred fair value gain on sccount of deposits from agents 251.88 166.07
Peferrad fair value galn an aceaunt of loan fram directars 119009 1,183.01
Dietarmed fsir valus gain onaccount of Praferenca Shares - 492 22
Deferred fair valus gain sn account of Sales Tax Defermant Loan 1,566,068 1,785.61
3,00E.65 383691
28 |Gorrowings [current) As a3t As at
March 37, 2025 March 37, 2024
Socured - al amortised cost
Warking capital foan from hank (refer Motes i} 19:869.11 2117221
Cash credits from banks 1184119 9,551 47
Bills discounted payable (Secured) 433097 17,574,186
Currant matunt es of nan-current borrowings (refer nofe 224 4731583 458201
Unsecured - at amortised cost
Leans fram Cithers 1.4 343
Loans from Directors 1.061.09 5.075.26
Bifls-discounted pavable (Unsecwred) 13.405.62 3.881.96
§5,243.29 67,822.50
Mobe:
iy For terms & condittory, repayment and natue of security given, refer note 49
ity For Exﬁil‘lihﬂl" on the fnmpﬂn}"s |l;|u.i|:ﬁ|:r risk managemnent proceds, seler nabe 51
15 |Lesse liabilities (current) A at As sl
March 17, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lewasa fabilities 22569 197.50
215.69 197.50
Nate:
Far qxphn.lhun on the {EII'HPII’L}'IS |nqunii|r sk m-n.igemtnl process, ey pate 53
fefar Note 50 for Lease labilitios
10 |Trads payables As at As al
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(i} total outitanding duss of micro entarpnses and amall enterprses 43153 57111
i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprisor and small antorprices 6065650 36.197.74
(i) total catstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises - Disputsd Duss = -
fru) total outstanding duss of ereditars othee than micra anterprisas and small enterprisas-Disputed Cues - -
€1,088.43 36,768.89




A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED

{fermery knewn as " A-Ona Stesl and Alloys Private Limited", “A-One Steels India Private Limited"™]
Metes to the Standalene financial statlements for the year ended March 11,2025

(! @t are i € Lafhis, unfess onhonwise stated)

Motes:

(#] For exglanation on tha Company's liguidity dsk managemant process, refer nota 53.
(i) Tracke payahiss ageing-|Ouldanding from the date of transaction)

{iy Far dsdosures relating to suppliens registened wnder Micr, Small and Mediom Enterprise Devslopment Act, 2006 refer note 47,

March 11, 2025

Particulars As at Asat
Mareh 37, 2025 March 11, 2024
Duea to micra entarprises and small enterprises
Less than 1 year 402,34 5196
1-2 years - 2900
23 ymars 2500 015
Mare thar 3 yzars 019
Duss to others
Unbilled Cioses 303016 219227
Less than | year 703642 3258204
1-2 years 27892 0630
2-3 years 201461 41175
Mare than 3 years 4578 442
§1.038.43 316,768.89
11 |Other financial lahilities (current) As at As at
March 11, 2025 March 11, 2024
Payatsle for Cagital Goods 506.00 5Z5B5
Ernplayezes related payable 33042 23241
Derivative Financial Liability on account of Hadging 3504 -
Conuderation F‘h]lll:ﬂl for Business Combenation BRASD X
1.530.06 758.26
Mote:
Far explanabion on the Compary's houdity nsk management process, refer note 53,
For explanation an Derivative Financal Liil:ﬁlity on account of Hedging, refer note 55
32 |Other current linkifities As at A= nt
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advanice from customers 1.651.25 1540028
Datarrad fair value gain on sccount of loan frem directors F62.74 BE220
Deferred fair valie gain an account of depouts fiom agents 156855 18301
Dafarred fair value gain on account of Prafarence Shares . 61,76
Diafarred fair value gain on account of Salas Tax Defarmant Loan 278.894 21898
Statutary dues payable 1,244.62 17312
5,036.09 17,499,132
31 |Provigions {eurrent) As gl Asat

March 31, 2024

Prowvigion for employse benefits

Prowision for gratuity (refer note 43} 11.04 864
Provision for compensated absances (refer note 4584) 217 143
13.21 10.07
14 |Current tax Habiities (net) Az at Az at
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Currant tax [atelities (nat) (rfar note 581 1,187.23 -

1,187.23




A-OMNE STEELS INDIA LIMITED

{formarly known as " A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited™, "A-Onae Steals India Private Limited"|

Maotes to the Standalone financial statemants for the year ended March 31,2025
fAl amount ace i T Lakhs , unfess otherwtse sfated]

For the yuar ended

For the yaar snded

35 |Rsvenus from operations March 31, 2025 March 37, 2024
Sale of products 3,00429 50 3 AB97TE 16
Sale of services -

Other operating revenues
Edport incentivas 092 074
3.00,430.52 3,48,975,90
Sales of Products includes Sale of Traded Goods amounting to Bs 8217861 takis
Infarmation required as per Ind AS 115: For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 11, 2025 March 31, 2024
Disaggregated revenus information as per geegraphical markeis

Revenue from customers based in India 2,95.386.99 343527.89

Revenus fram customers based cutside india 5.043.53 534807
Timing of revenue recognition

Transfarred at a paint in tirme 3.00,430.52 3 48875.90

Transterred owar time = %
Trade receivables and contract assets/{liabilitiea]

Trade recaivables 43,65 88 53,143.97

Contract lability {advance from customers) 365125 15400 28
Parformance obligation and remaining parformance chiigation
Thera are na remaining performance chligations For the period ended March 37, 2025, as the same is satishied upen
delivary of goods/senices.

38 | Othar incame For the year smded For the yaar enided

March 37, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rantal income B.90 6.38
Interest ineonme

- on laans given to related parties 35.21 23.63

« on fixed deposits AL RES 506.63

- pn security deposits B3.00 26 80

- gn secwity deposiis waing EIR methed 37,40 2191

- on defarred fair value gain on Dapasits from Agants 250,66 183.03

- on late pagpment from custamers 1207 321

- on deferred fair value gain of unsecurad loane 559.50 35959

- on Royalty usng EIR methad 243 238

- o0 athers - Interest [ncoms 25,97 0034

- mn deferred fair value gain of Preference Shares 31,95 61,76

- Unirealizad Gain on Fair Valuation of Derivative Finanaal Assets r H-

- on deferred fair value gam of VAT Loan 21894 171.88
Profit on sale of property, plant and squipmen 2847 5405
Profit ar Cammodity Hedging = 663.85
Foweign exchange flucluation gain - 15921
Sale of Capital Hems 11068 -
Miscellaneous meome 3275 547

1,107,594 1.425.02




A-DMNE STEELS INDIA LIMITED

{formerly known as "A-One 5tesl and Alloys Private Limited”, “A-One Steels India Private Limited”)

Motes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025
(Al amount are in T Lakhs . unless atherwise staten)

37 | Cost of mater|als consumed Far the year ands< For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening stock of raw material 17,058.19 23970 10
Add: Purchases 2,50,098.04 28772231
Add: Freight, transportation and Inading rharges 4911699 11,929.36
Add: Liguidated Lamages 43220 1,268.16
Add Impert expenses and high sea purchase wxpanses 1,370.92 2,550.70
Add: Royalty expandes 8729 63157
Add: Handling ehanges 1.667.41 244389
Add: Compensation cess asam H2472
Add: Custom duty 55217 1,044,066
Lass: Clessing stock al raw matarial F0.657.71) (1705819
2,50,813.51 3,15,317.24

The Company procures the raw material with an intention to use in the manufacturing process however based on the opportunities available the company may

sale raw matenal Therefore the entim purchase is shown under Cost of Malerial Consumed.

38 | Changes in invenlories, finlshed goods and work-in-pragress For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening stock
Finished Goods 2585844 1837181
'-By Products 167650 1,061,971
Closing stock
"-Finished Gaods 12847437 125858 44)
"By Products (186841} (1878501
{2,807.34) (8,101.22)
33 | Employer benofit expenses For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 March 11, 2024
Salary, wages, bonus and allowances 471,96 2.899.15
Emplovers’ contribution to provident and other funds 11282 BO7R
Gealuity 151,77 101.82
Seaff and labour welfare 155.26 21516
3,891.81 3,256.85
40 | Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended
March 11, 2025 March 31, 2024
jrtetest axpentas
- an bofrowings 399243 4,100.52
- on lease liabilithes 95418 904.37
-on late payment of statutony dues 17.65 13475
- on others - Interast Expenses 231538 1.675.85
- on fair valuation of Agants 25495 16847
- an fair unluation of Royalty 237 247
- on late paymant to suppliers 21281 23235
- on fait valuation of Preference Shares 11459 4118
- on fair valuation of Unsecurad Loans 568,72 369,12
- on amortoed loan processing fees 14.89 1604
- on fair valuation of Security Deposits 24.84 2339
- on fair valuation of Sakes Tax Defarment Loan 15496 113.80
Other horrowing costs £36:39 441.14
Legs; Barrowing costs capdalised dunng the perod {14601} {138.40)
8, 718.20 8,089.26




A-DME STEELS INDIA LIMITED

(farmerly known as " A-One Stesl and Alloyz Private Limited”, "A-One Stesls Indin Private Limited”)
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025

{AN armaunt ace in © Lakhy | undess othenuee dated)

41 | Depreciation and amortisation sxpense For the year ended For the year snded
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation an Property, plank & equipment (refer note 3) 3,586,719 2,606.82
Amoriisation of inkanglble assets {refar note 4) 21.10 27.42
Diepreciation an Aight of use of asset [refer note 5 579.37 580.97
4.186.66 1215
42 | Other expenzes For the ysar ended Far the yenr endad
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Pawer and fual 19,901.75 17.071.65
Cutside labour charges 2176599 1.660.04
Expart sxpenses 127581 576.14
Packing. freight. forwarding and handling charges (outward) 168811 1.308.51
Seciirily charges 184,34 144.11
Sitting Feas 11.58 -
Cammisson axpanaes 297.08 187.02
Royalty anpenses 500.49 450169
Rant and hire chargas 9580.61 209.50
Insurance 11312 7053
Travelling and canveyance 21987 21487
Advartisernent and business promaotion edpensas 12131 1,302.67
Legal and prolessianal axpenses 6580 43520
Charity and denatians .05 19.70
C5R expenses 19193 23235
Repair B maintananca
-Plart and machinery 50576 B06.01
~Buildings = 0.ap
-Dihers 152.55 13651
Allowances for credit losses-on trade raceivables (2313 12386
Impawmant of advances to supphers 1621
Faregn sxchange fluctuation loss 152.55 <
Sundry balances written off! Bad debts * 1541 BEI2
Rate & Duties 144,08 1217
Miscellaneaus expenses 3072 331.35
30,722 81 25,993.24
Nota:
Payment of remuneration to suditors (excluding G5T] Far the year ended Far the year endad
March 31, 2025 March 11, 2024
- a3 auditar
» for stabutony audit 850 10:00
o for tax audic 315 200
11.65 12.00




A-ONE STEELS INDA LIMITED

{formorly known an " A-One Steal and Alloys Privale Limited”, "A-One Steals India Privats Limited")
MNotes to tha Standalone financial statemants for the year ended March 31,2025

Al amaunt ave in T Lakhs | unfess othianwisa siated)

43 Earning per share

{a}, Basic and diluted sarmings per share (in absolute figuwres)
Fram cantinuing eperations attributable to the eqguity holders of the Comparny

(b}, Reconciliations of sarnings used in caloulating samings per share
Basic earnings per share
Profit fram continuing operation atiributable to the equity share haolders

Profit attributable to the sguity holders of the company used in calculating basic and
diluted sarningy per share

fe). Weighted average numbar of thares used as the denaminater

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in caloudating basic and
diluted sarnings per share

Shares autstanding a1 the beginning of the periacd

Effact of Share Split during the perod

Effect of Bonus during the period

Shares isssued during the perind

REE

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

706 15646

457201 251878

4,672.07 2,618.76

G62.05 1674
16,73,722.00
1.50,63 4%8.00
4,18,43,050.00
T6,24.541.70

The Campany has not issusd any instrurnant that is potentially dilutive in the future Hence, the weightad average rumbar of

shares eutstanding at the end of the year for cakeulation of basic as well as diluted EPS is the same.




A:OME STEELS INDIA LIMITED

[Fermpry known o “A-One Steol and Alloys Private Limited”, "A-One Steals India Private Limited")
Netes ta the Standalone financial statzments for the year spded March 37,2025

LAl smmunt sre in T Lakhs | unless otharwise stabel)

44 Contingent Habiiitier and commitments A at Azat

i

Mareh 31, 2035 March 37, 2024

In the erdinary course of busines, the Campary faces clalms and amertians by varous partes. The Company assss s such daims and asserlions and monitors he legal
enwirsnmant on an on-geing basis with the assistarnce of srternal legal counsal, wherever necessary, The Company records & lability for any daims where a patential lass is
probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, if materal For polential lesses that are eongdered pagibie, but ngt probabis
the Company provides dischosure in the financial skstermants but doss rot recard a liahifity in its sccounts uniess the 055 becomes probabie.

The foliewing is & description of clams snd assertions whers 4 potential loss i pessible, but not probable. The Company befieves that nene of the cantngencies described
o would have 3 material advierse effect on the Company’s financial condition. resulls of opetations or cash flows.

Litigations
The Company is invalved in legal proceadings, both as plafntiff and a5 defandant. Thera are claims which the Company does not belimwe to bo of & matertal nature other
than those described below:

Ircome tas mattecs irefer Note I THELE 6,220.07
GET matiers irefer Note i) 1,663,854 BTG
Vahicle . -
Onaccount of intellectual property dghts 2L A2
Gusrantees

Vaiya Steels Private Lirmited [rofer Note i 16380.00 14, 750.00
#-One Gold Pipes & Tubes Private Limited [refer Nate iv) 1185000 5,850.00
Hamataka Renewat Energy Development Limitad (refer Mote v 9500 R
Drepnrtiriert of bdustries 8 Commence {tefer Mobe o) 3,788 78851 i
Radiance Ka Sunshine Sz Private Lirmided refer Notew)) 22950 £20.50
Radiance Ka Sunshine Five Private Limided (refer Mole v BlEG 14 25
FP Surm) Privata Limited (refor Neta ix) 56.25 25
Anarthapur Energy Projects Private Limited (refer Mote « ! 6240 -
Greer Infra Clean Wind Pawer Limited {rofer Kote xi) 23067 -
Egan Solar Powar Private Limited (refer Mote &} 5530 55.30
FPEL Cefestical Private Limited {refer Mobe i) B 1254 =
Grert b Claan Solar Energy Limited {refer Hote siv) 285375 -
Icharays Enargy One Prvate Limited {refer Note o) 535 -
Aszistant Caommissianer of Customs, Vishalapatnam Port (rafer foatnote wi| |PEEYS .
Aasistant Commissaner of Customs, Gopalpur Pork - 199.48
Assistant Commisdoner of Customs, Haldia Part - 18398

Capital commilmanta
Ettimated amount of contracts remalning ta ba executed on capital sccosnt ol provided for (et of capltal sdvances 4,709.73 118237
of Rs.4581.48 akhs an March 31,2025 anel Az 55633 akhs on Manch 31, 2024)

Motus:
Contingant labllity with respect to lncome Tax matters fs for search action canductad under Section 132 oF the Incoma Tad Act, 1961 asd other demands faied fom Income
Tar Department fram jime to fims,

Mame af th £ E
ol . Mature Forum whers the dispute is pending Ko “:::':jh Ry Amount
Tha Income= | Incame tas e AY20T0-11 fo
Aut , High Pitched s t B8,
T Ak 1961 | Bsses First Appelate Authority, Higl sesIEn Arzsn JE81.18
i

~.Space intentiarally left blank. . |




A-OME STEELS INDIA LIMITED
{Formerly known a2 “A-One Steel and Allays Private Limited”, “A-One Steels indla Private Limited )
Flotes te tha Standalane Anancial statements for tha year anded March 11,2025
(Allamount are n [ Lakhs , unlsas stharwise staled)
Continued from previous page
fii} Contingent Nability with respect to GST matters is for demand order undar BT Act
Follnwing ars the frums, where the disputes ate prading:

NI:;:LHI Nature Forum where the dispute is pending Pieiudts i:‘:ﬁh' i Ayreoond
ds anvd
Sarvices Tax |Appeal Deputy Cormmismana FY20 1 7=18 and FY20159-211 B9.44
At 2017
Caeds and 7
Seruices Tan £ Addilional Directar Fraf17-13 ta FY2019-20 g33.81
Agsessment
Act, 2017
Goods and e
Sarvices Tax Drapusty directar P 2000-21
A sesymient
act 2017 1912
(Goods and e
Sarvices Tax et Cernmissinner FY2017-18
Act 2017 Faienmnat 74791
Goodsand | ’
Services Tax Assestant Cormmissloner FyY2021-22
Avimssment
Act, 207137 148,17
Gioods and
Seruces Tax gk Supanntenchant FYan17-18 and FY2022-23
s oy |emement 6290
el T
services Tax i |@int Commissionar P 208324
Aet, 2017 126
e e Seizure of
Servces Tax kst ' Daputy Stata Tax Ofhosr FY 2024-25
et 217 A48
A Seizure of
Serynees Ta ;n'nh-:kr |eint Commissioner Fr 2024-25
Act, 217 584

* The abevs amaunt includes the deposit made to the G57 Dapartmant in respact of tha disputad [ability,

(i) The compary has sied various carporate guaranteds 1o vanious Banks and Finencial Institubions for borrow nos obdained by s subsidiary Varys Sleeis Private Limtad
aggregating o Rs 17,780 lakhs i FY 22:23 and tatisfied during tha your smounting to As. 1400 lakhs.

{iw) The compary has issuad various carparaty guarantees to various Banks and Finandal Institutions of &s, 5850 lakihs and to Mitcon Credsntia Trustesship Serices Limited of

s 6,000 lakhs for borrowings obtained by (s wholly owned subsidiary A-One Gold Pipas & Tubes Private Limited aggragating to Rs 17,850 lakhs.

[ The compary has gsued bank guarastees ta Karmataka Renewal Enargy Davelopment Limited aggregating to ® 25 lakhs In FY 20.21

[wi} The company has Bsued bank guarantees ta Gepartment of Industies & Commerce for avaling Sales Tax Deferment Loan aggregating to ¥ 2972 32 lalés in FY 22-23 and
£76 58 in FY 23-24 respectively

{wil) The company has s Eank guarantees to Radiance s Sunchine Six Prvate Limibed aggtegating to € 229 5 lskhs in Fr 23-24.
{wiil} The company has ssued I:ml-uk guarantees {o Radunce Ka Sunshine Free Povate Limted sagregating ta € 61425 akhs in FY 23-22
{ix) The company hat dsued bank guarartees to FP Surz) Private Limited aggregating to € 8625 fakhe in Y 23-24,

fm) The company has ssusd bBank quarantess ta Ananthapur Enargy Projects Private Limited aggreqgating o T 624 lakha in FY 24-25
(i) The comparry has issusd bank guarantess to Geeen Infra Clean Wind Powss Limited aqgregatng to & 24067 lakhs in FY 24-25
{uiil The company has issued bank guarantees to Egan Solar Powar Private Lemited agyregatng o £55.3 lakhsin FY 23-24,
{uiil) The campany has issued hank guarantoes ta FPEL Colestical Privaka Limited aggregating to- & 1284 lakhs in FY 24-25
(wiu} The cempany has issued bank guarantees to Green Infra Clean Sola Enargy limited aggregating to ¥ 28525 lakhs in FY 24-25.

[=v) The cempany has isiusd bank guaranteas ta lsharays Enargy One Private Limited aggregating 1o ¥ 85,25 lakng in FY 24-25,

[wui} The company hat iswed bank guarantees to Assidant Commissioner of Custome, Vishakapstnam Port aggregating to 12357 lakhain 7Y 24-25.




A-0OME STEELS INDIA LIMITED

(hormerty known 32 "A-Oine Steel and Alloys Privsts Limited”, " A:One Steals india Private Limitad")
Motis ta the Standalene financlal statements far thy year anded March 37,2025
(AN amount are (o ¥ Laktha , unless atherwise stated)

45 Expendlture on C5R activithes

A3 per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required o ipend, inevery finantal year, at least bwo per cent of average net profits of the Company made
during tha threa inwmadistely precading financil yeass in accordance with s TSR Policy in respact of activities specified in Schedule Wl of the Companias Act, 2013, The

datails of C5R axpwnses for the year are sz under

For the year snded Far e yoar snded

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Amount reauired to be spent dunng the purlm:l 4 [0 113 LR |
Shorifalld tewcess) amount of previeus period 2741 {0.59)
Tatal 163,07 204.94]
Armount |.Pani l:hrlng the ear on
= constructiendacguisiion of any propery, plant sod equipment -
- purpases ather than abovs 19193 23235
Tetal 19153 23245
Shovtfallf [excess) amount carried forwsnd to nexl penod [28.36) :2]‘.-"“
Derails of related party transactons
Naturs of CSR activitian

The amaunt has been spent on various setivithes suth as education and health care which ate mertioned in Sehedule VI of the Campanles Azt 2013,

(ih Guarantes:

Thie compary has issued varous corporate guarantees b1 vanows Banks and Francial [natitutsans far Barrawmgs oblained by its subildiasy Vanya Steels Prwate Limited and
wiknlly cwred mbsdiany A.-0ns Gold Pipas & Tubas Privata Limited aggragading ta @ 28,210 lakha. Tha banaficiary com pandes haws ussd amount of beerowngs far their

prircipal business activitios.

fir) Leans

Thie Company has given leng-term loan o 1 whaily owned sebsidiary f-One Gold Pipes & Tubes Private Limited, having outstanding balance ast ot 355t March 2025 %

1.23%9.70 lakis 1376t March 2024 s ameunting ta T 1,154.07 lakhs), The subsidary has used this fund for [ts grincipal buginess activities

(il Investmenks

The compary bas made bwestments of Rs 54108 Lakhe in Subsidiaries and Rs TASEA6 laidw in Othar than subsidiaries ze 3t 315t Mar2025 aggregating total Investm ents

made o Rs, 12,B57.50 Lakhs

&7 In teems of Section 12 of Chapter V of Micro, Small and Madium Enterprise Dovelopment Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2008}, the disclosures of paymants due to any

supplior are s follews
Ag at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024

The punopsl amount and the intersst due therson remaming unpaid to any MEME supplies a5 at the end of each
ascounting year included inc
~Tradq payabias 40153 54192
- Payable far Cagital Geads .00 1828
- Interess due 2200 2919

431,53 583.39
Tha principal amount and the intecest due thorzon remaming unpaid to any suppier as &t the end of each accounting :
- Principal A0E 53 B9
-Interesc due 2900 2519
Thie ameunt of interest pajd by the buyer in teons of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amaunts of -
the payment made to the epplier bayond {he appointed day during aach accounting pear.
Tre amaurts of the paymants made toomicra and small suppliess beyond the appointed day dunirg each sccounting 56015
pennd
The amount of interest sccrwed and remasmng wnpad 3t the end of axch accouniag year, 2EL0 FLAL ]
The amount of further ntesest rémaireng due and payable even in the succeeding years, wntil such date wher the %00 2519

interest dues as above are actually maid to the small enterprise for the purpase of disallowance as a deductible undar
saction 23 of tha MEMED Act, 2006,




A-0NE STEELS INDIA LIMITED

{Farmarky knawn ax * A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limitsd", " A-One Stesls |ndia Private Limited")
Notes bo the Standalons financlal staterments for the yeser ended March 11,2025

(Al st ara in © Lakhe . unless othorwioe iated)

Employes banaitis

Defined contribution planm:

I'ne Company makes coriributions, determined as a specifed parcentage of employee salanes. in respect of gualifying employees towards provident fund and libour welfare
funed wehich ae defined contribution plans. The Company has no-abligatons other than to make the spediied contributions. The contributions are charged to the siatement of

prﬂﬁrand Ensz as thoy accrue:

Expanse undar defingd contribution plans includs: For tha porod endaed Fot the pariod ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Empleyes’s centibution te provident lund R4l 5404
T6.40 S4.04
Defined bansfit plan:
Gratuity

The Company aparates & pest-asmpleymant dofined banedit plan for Gratuity. This plan ertitles sn emphoyes 1o recewa balf manth's salafy far cach year of complated servdco af

thii tirrse of retivementiasit,

The presaat waslus of obligation 4 datermined based on achuanial valuaton ysng the prejected unit credit method. which recogniss each peried of aarice a2 gving rse to

aciditional emiployes banafit entitlement and measures sach unis separataly to bulld op the final coligaton

Thie mest recent actuanal waieation of the piasant walue of the dafined beriafit obligaton for gratuity were camied oot as at March 17 2025, The present value of the defmed

benedit obligauons and the mlsted corrent aeivice cost and past service cost were maasuned using te progecied ot oedil method

Mat dufined baneiit lability /(s As al As at

Mardh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Pressnt value of obligatans a532:2 30574
Fair walue of plan gasets .
Tutal ermphoyes E b bl | new 13} 45332 574
Mon-curant 44318 257,18
Cuarrent 1104 BEd
Thie detalls of the defined benefit retiremant plans aad the smounts recogaized in the financial stataments a5 ar March 39, 2025 are e follows:
Particulars L A ml

March 11, 2028

March 51, 2024

Change in definsd benefit obligationa

Benefit obligations at the baginning of the year 05 74 265
Seivice Cost 11235 at.ad
Intargel eapania 1185 1599
Pail servioo cost - plan amendmants .
Rarmeasuements - Actuamal igains! Josis 288 165
Banghits paid = {1195
Banalits ohbged at the sad of the year 453.23 0574
The amaunt for the year end=d March 31, 2425 recognised in the staternent of Profit and Loss sccount snder emplayee banefit oxp is o Followa
Particalars Fer tha pariad endad Fer tha pericd ended
March 11, 2025 March 11, 2034
Senvice Cost 11275 8%.40
Mot interest en the ret defined benelit i 218 1598
Plan amzndmants = -
Mat gratuity cost 13480 8738
Foot Note:

The company also made an incremental expenses amounting ta Bs. 1718 Lakhs on acoount of emplayees wha beft during the yrar and net covered In the achuarlal valiation at

the balanes skeet date:

. Tha amaunt for the yeir ended March 31, 2025; recognised in the itatement of other comprebsnsie incoma is as follows :

Particalnrs Fer the period ended Far the period ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Aemansuremants of the net defined

Artusial {gains) / lases dus 1 dempgiaphic assumption changes In DAO - 3.1y
Actuarial [gainal /lesses doe o Fnancial assumption changes in DBO 521 20487
Aictusrial {gainsl | logses doo to spenience adjustmant an DEQ 1633 {5612
{Ratumi} lozs on the plan assets Sus t descaunt rate = -

180 T.65




A-OME STEELS INDHA LINMITED

{fozmarly known as “d-One Steel and Alleys Private Limited®, *A-One Steebs |ndin Privste Limibsd™
Netes to the Standalone financial ststemants For the year snded March 17,2025

(Al amount are in & Lakhs | unbess otharwie ialed)

- Cortriuea fram preves page
E Plan assots
A at s af
Plan aseets comprines of the following: March 11, 2028 Mianch 11, 2024

Total plan assats = -
Funds managed by insures -
% of Plan assats

F Actumrial assomptions
The princpal assumptons are the daccunt rate and sslacy growth rate. The descoond cale is bassd upon the macket yelds avalatie oo governmant bofds at the accaunting date
with & teem thal matches thal of liabftes Salary increass rate takes into zccount of nflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant fsctars an h’lg teem basd, Valuatias
assumptions are as follows which have been selacted by the Company

As sk Mareh 31, 1025 Axat March 31, 2024

Giscgunt rate G500 TA5%
Expestad rate of future salary mcroacse 16% for tha fust thioe  10% for the first throe yours
yuars and 7% thereattsr and 7% thersalter

swpected rate of attrition 1o - 3% 15 - 3%
Marsality AL 2214 IALM 2012-14

G, Sensifivity anslyss
hammblr p;:;slhlu r,hangn at tha mpl:;llng date to oneof the relayvasd actuarial avsimgations, h\:ﬂl:lmg other ausumplions consbant, r_luulrl have aflected the definsd Benatit
obligabion by the amaurts shawn below

As at March 31,1025 March 37, 2024
Imgrunse Dacrzasa Incroase Decroae
Diisemunt rate {(1,00% movement| 364,80 5324 26007 3E304
Futurn sabary growth {1.00% mevesnant] 529.80 Jaaaz 354,38 142
Abrition rate |S000% movemarnt) #5041 A55.08 i a7
Mortality Rate 10,000 mowvarnont) 45325 45174 30581 557

Saraitaities a1y rate of milation, ate of moreass 0! pensiors in paymant, rRie of increaie of pemions Tafore ratiramant and e expectancy ara not applicable being .« imp
wurn Denefit on mbremert

CDeseription of Risk Exposures

Valeations are based on certsin assumplions, sich ae dypamic in nature and vary cver timg &8 such the Company s spoied fo various risks as follows:

al). Salary increass: Actual salary ncreases will increase plan's lability: kncreass inosalary noreass rete saxumebon in fulure vahations will alse merdase the labiity,
b. Discount rate: Reduction in discewnt rte in sidaequent valuations can incresse the plan's liabifity

ch. Mortality & disability: Actual desths & dsabiliy cases proving kewes ar higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the llab#ilas,

d]. Withdrasiale Actual withdrawals proving higher or iower than assemed withdrawak and change of withd inwal refes at subsequent valuadions can mpact the
plan's liahility

H. Expectad malurity anabyals of the defined banefit plans in future years

Duration af defined banefit ohhgation Az at March 31, 2025 As at March 11, 3024

Less than 1 year 11.04 BS54
Bietween d-5 years Bb6.03 4227
Betwaen 610 year 114,40 1540
Owar 10 ymari ' Gl 41 1, VEAER
Tatal 1,795.87 131678

. Apece wntenfomaliy et bk




A-OME STEELS INDIA LIMITED

|Formarky known s *8-One Stesl and Alloys Private Limited”, “A-One Stesls Indla Private Limbad™)
Motes to tw Standalone financial statements for the year saded March 312025

[BH amaunt are in T Lakhs , uniess otherwize stated)

Contied from prawows page

Dafined benefi plans:

2 Eamed Leave Plan

Tha Campany operates an Eamed Leave Plan This plan entties an empoyee rght to scoumulate sod cirey Farward his leave toa future peocd or encash the leave.

The prasant value of abigation & determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected urit credit mathadl which necognize vach perind of service as giving rise

to additional employee benefit entithérnent and ressures each unit separately to build up the fimal obligation

The mast recant achusrial valuation of the present value of the Leave Liability for Leave Encashment wese carriad cut s at March 31, 2025, The present valus of the

teava Lizhility and the related current senvice codt and past service cast, were measured using the projected wit credit method.

Nt defined benwfit iabifity/[asset] Bis at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Prasent value of obligations Ba.in AB22
Fair wal v of plarr ssests - -
Total In]phyn benefit linbilltres/{ aaaets) 24,18 4822
Hon-cuirent B1.93 A6TH
Curramd 217 L43]
The details of the definad benafic plans and the ameunts recognized in the financial staternents as at March 51, 2025 are 2= follows
Particulars hia at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 17, 2024
Present Yalue of Oh&gation af the end B0 Aa.zE
Fanr Walue of Plan Assets - -
Surpus ¢ [Deficit] 18410 (423
Effeets of focet Cailing, IT amy = .
Mt Aswat | |Liability| {84.10) (48.22)
Tho amount for the yaar andad March 31, 2025 reeognised in the statement of Profit snd Lo=s sceount under employes banefit expenses ix as follows :
Presant valus. of phiigation as at tha beginning 148221 -
Present valwe of obligatdon as art the end 8410 A
Bareht Payment 550 E:
Actual return on plan assels n
Transler In f {Ouk] B a
a7 38 L1
Plan aaseis 3
Flan maets comprises of the following: Az at Ba &l

March 31 2025

March 37, 2024

Total pfan assets 5
Furds managed by insares -
% of Mlan assety =




A-OME STEELS INDIA LIMITED

|Farmerdy known a *8-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited”, “A-One Steels indla Private Limited )
Matas ta the Standalone financial statemaents for the year ended March 112025

[ Al amount aze-in T Lakhe , unless otherwise siated)]

. Continued fram grewous mage

Actuarial ssmumptions
The pnnopal assumplions &re the discount rate and salary growth rate: The discowsnt rate 15 basad upon the market yields avallable on government honds ar the
accounting date with & tecm that matches that of lishifities Salary increase rate takes into sccowrd of miflidion, senbonly, prametsonand ather relevant factars on lang)
Farm badia Wal uation aseemptions aie s followd whizh have been walected by the Company

Asat As mt
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Discount rate £.00% A
tupacted rate of future salany nomass 10% for the first 10% far ihe first
thres years and T {hese years and 7%
tharealtar (heruaftas
Expactad rate af atbition IH-I% - 3%
Martality Ak 2012-14 BALM 2512-74
Sansitivity analysis
R,Dliﬂﬂlhhl paujhl. :hanqu attha reparing dats 10 ane of the edevant actuanial assum prtiond, Iuil:l'mg othier anurnptinn: constant, would have
March 11, 2025 March 31, 2024
_Increase Decronse increaze Decrease
Discount rate {1.00% movemant) mnaa 10naT 4087 5741
Future salary growth (1.00% movement) 0zn T4 5F2R 4083
attnbion raie (50.00% mowement) 831385 8426 af32 i i
Whartality Rate (10 00% movement) a404 B410 4523 4821

Sznsiretio a io rate of mflakon, rate-abincisase of peneons in paymani, rate of iIncimasa of pansions before retirement snd |ife sgpectancy are nol appicatls beang o
lump sum benefit on metrement.

Puscrigtion of Risk Exp ws:

Valuations are based on certam sssumptions, which sra dynamic in natura and vary over ime, Assuch the Company 18 expoged Lo vanous neksas follows;

a}, Salary increase; Actual salary Incroasas will inoredss plan's llability, Incrase in salary ncrease rete asaamption in futurs valuations will also inowass the lability.
b)Ciscaunt rate: Reduction in discount, rate in subsequent vahaations @n increase e plan's labil iy,

). Mortality & disability; Actual deaths & dfzability cases praving lower o highes thar azsurmied in the vaksation can imgact the lizbilities.

d). Withdrawaly: Actual withdrawals praving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and chasge of withdrawal rates at subsequent waluations can impact the plan's
liztility,

Expected maturity anslysis of the defined benefit plars in future yosrs .
Durstion of Leave Lizbility Asal A =t
March 37, 2825 March 11, 2024

Less than 1 year 217 143
Between -5 years 1105 619
Between 6-10 years 2053 1234
Cwar 10 yuars 33291 15546
Tolal 166 35 215 44,

_ Space intentionally et Blank.
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A-OME STEELS FNDILA LIMITED

(Tormardy known 28 "A-0ne Stesl and Allays Privets Limited”, "A-One Slosls India Private Limited"]
Motes ko the Standnl finnneial far the year ended March 173025

(Al amaount are In T Lakhs | unbiss othenwise stated)
50 Laases
& Leases as a leasee
1. Non-exempied lsaves

i Movement in lozse iabiities

Cipan mg halarcs

Additions on sceount of new lente contiacls entered irto during the pear

Finanga cost accrved durng tha year
Paymant of lease habilities
Modfications m [ease liabilities due 1o change [nlsase term

Closding balance

i) Break-up of current and non-curent leass labilities

Cuirant kease liabilfic:
Mon-current lease labililies

(R} Matunty snalyss of leass lisbilifies

The detals ol cenbiactual maturities of lease labilliies a5 at gear end on undisesurted bass are as follovwes:

Commitmisits for lease pagmanls o relation o non-exemplod leades ane payablo 2 follows:

«ruat latet thar o yoar
- |ater than are year and nat later than five yeard
= later than five years

(iw) Amount receginied in the statemant of pralit and leas

Deprecation on right-of-use amssts
Finarms cosis on kease labilices

As at A at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
11730057 11,4585 75
95418 90437
1,185 {1,088 40
11,4131 1150168
A at Avat
March 31, 2028 March 37, 2024
22658 157.50
1091552 17,104,78
17,141.317 17,301,688
March 17, 2025 March 117, 2024
|, 141,83 §,151.58
473380 465456
1590273 M13662
14.828.38 25842 28
Far the periad snded For the period endsd
March 31, 2028 March 11, 2034
57537 54097
85415 90435
133182 1.485.13




A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED
(formarly known as “A-One Steel and Afloys Private Limited”, *A-One Steel Indis Private Limited")
Noles to the Standslone financial statementy for the year ended March 11,2005

|8l amnound are in T Lalths | unless othorwiss siwted]

i) Aimouni recoginied in statemanl of cash flows

[

{1}

Cash flow from fimancing activities

Paymant of leaza Fabilities

For reconcilision of eatrpng amount of nghl-ol-se asels and detads thereo! miar nota 5.

Enamptud laasai

The Company has recognized € 4750 lakhs as rent espenses dunng the year which pertainz to short term leage) low vahie asset whech was not recognised as part of nghtof we

adist.
Lo ana leiasr
Cperating loases

Amount reeagini

d in the el

nt af prof snd lois

Rental income from assets given on operating lease

Mlatuirity analats of lanme recarvaliles

The detaili af contractus maturties of lanse recelvables ns a1 year end on usdiscounted basie ars a2 fellows:

Mot later than one year
T-2 yoars
-3 pears
3-4 years
-5 yaars

Ploke

The Company hat sub-lessed a part of its head office building 4 wated at #-One Hous, Mo, 326, CQAL Layout, Ward No, §, Sahakar Nagar, Bongabhey, Rarnataka . 580092 to

fallowi ng companies:

1 Vanya Steals Frivate Limited - Subsidiary

2 A4-Qne Gold Steels India Private Lim ted - Subsudiary

i &One Eold Flpn. and Tobes Private Limited = Subsciary
4 shri Gauri Shankar lalan Charftable Trust

5 A-ONE GOLD RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED

For the perind anded For the period ended
March 11, 2015 March 31, 2014
1,714 52 1,095 44
1,174 52 1,098.24

Far tha perdad snded Far the permd snded

flarch 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
. CEE
£.50 £.34]

Azat Az at

March 31, 1025 March 51, 1034
B40 6384
&40 (Rl




A-ONE STEILS INDLA LINITED

{formerly knoun a3 “A-Ona Steel and Alloys Private Limited”, "A-One Stesis Indiz Private Limitad*)

o)

Moted te the 5 finamciad 1

for the yeur ended March 312025

| &l wmaunt ars in T Lakhe , alass otherwine stated)

57 Related party disclosures

The relsted parfies 22 pet lerms of Ind A5 24 "Rzlated Party Disdosures”, specified urdier Section 133 of the Companies 821, 2015, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (hocounts) Rules. 2014

ars dischosed below:

A, List of relwied parties where control sxizts and/or with whom tanuactions hasve taken placs

Zaslraidiarine Hams of Campany Couniry of % ol Holding % of Holding
Incorperation March 11,2028 March 11, 2034
Warys Sheels Frivate Limited Indii 55.7% 5T
A-Tne DGold Pipes snd Tulees Prvste Limaed Indis Tl 100%
A-On G hd Staels India Frrvata Lmited Irdia TO0% 100%
A-Orie Gold Singspare P, Lid Singapale 100% 100%
Bazi Sieals and Powsr Private Limitad iacquired
on 23rd November, 20241 [ T 0%
mm::::.m*h::“h. Bellary Tusbes Carparahon [discontinaed as a rebted parky from 130 june 2024)
stgnifizant Ilﬁ.::‘:(mhtﬂwﬂ Lt St
Laksh Sioeks (Promeietarehip]
Moy Manasgement Personne| (KM [5uril Jallan ‘Whale Time Direchor
Sandeap Kumar Managing Dirsctor
Umnashankar Goyanka Whale Time Director
| jmavika Poddar Indll:_bn.ndmrﬂlrlchr
Frishan Singh Barguzar Indepandent Directar
Kamraldeep Singh Indepandent Erectar
Saurahh Jindal Chwf Enanoal Cficas
Pooja Sars hagarzis Company Sscratany
Director (Dther than KM7) Maral Kumar (Resigrad an 126 |une 2024) Directar
Relatirss of KMBPs Kana |sfan Wi of Directar
Frizhan Kumar |alan Fainer of Director
Friya [allan Wit ol Chairman
Enterprises  in  which Chirecters  arm|Shii Gown Shankar |alan Charitabia Trust
Irfmrselsd A:Orin Gl AQelad frasle Limibed
B. Traseactisnr with mlsied partins during the yasr ane o foilewing: -
Naime off Ralsted Party and Mature of Transsciisns For the year anded Fai thi yuas anded
March T1. 2025 Macch 17, 2024
Sale of goods et
Wanys Sleels Pruate Limibed 0oae.e aB5a55
A-Cre Gobd Pipas and Tubses Brivies Limited ane? 1183566
Enilary Tubes Corparatinn S0 10 a061 340
Laksh Shasis aH1 2 255048
A O Gotd Sirgapors Ple Lid L1600 A196.00
lurqhutn-rgnndl [t}
Warya Staats Privata Limiod 1N 1181188
A-Ore Dodd Miped and Tubres Prvate Lonided LR FRNEERR]
Beallasy Tubse Couponation A, 254 55 ThT1L6Y
Enbigh Simels S05183 T0AZT 36
A Oinee Gl Sirgapere P Lid AE8E15 2240 36
Pure b of CW I/ PPE
Wanya Steely Frivala Limisd a3 2THT
A0 Gobd Pipas and Tulees Privace Lenitad 20718 17863
Laksn Sluels L7 155
Sale of PPE
Wanys Steels Privabu Limited 1765 -
#-Ore Goid Pipes and Tubes Private Limited 14360 -
Rentzl incoma
Wanya Steels Privake Limited RO 180
A-Ore Godd Steels India Prsaie Limided 150 150
#-Ora Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Lirmited 150 130
Shiti Gous Shankar [alan Chartable Frus Q.60 156
a=Cire Gold Fetail Privata Limited 150 {firg
Interwed inceme an laen ghien
Ae-Ora Gold Pipes and Tubes Privats Umited BhGY

a-Cne Gold Singapore ple. Lid

4527




A-ONESTEELS MDA LIMITED

{Tornarly hnown a3 *A-One Stsal and Alloys Privale Limited, “A- Ore Sloeb indis Privale Limsbed )
Metes bo the Siaidaks tar the pesr eoded March 31,2625

(i) et mis A @ Ll | wnlis otherwiss atcbed)

Liguidated Damages
Baflary Tube Comparstion
Laksh Sieels

Handilng Charges incorme
Wy Stasls Brivste Lemifed

Qemmmrage Charges
Aelae Gold Singapors pe, Lid

Freighl Charges
B-Onve Gold Pipes snd Tubes Private Limied

Loading and Unloading Changes Ingoms
A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Prate Limited
Wanys Steely Procale Lirmied

Pagrrmnt af Ak
Laizh Sinels
Bazai Steels and Power Private Limited
Labshy Shewds (Froprisioesis)

Socurity Doposil GHeen
Lokt Stauls

Githar Income - Security Depodits (E1R) Method)
Batzi Steals and Pawer Private Limiied

Finanta Covt: on falr valisatlon of Security Daposit
Bactni Sheets ard Power Private Lisnitad

Interest pupaiiaes on bomomwings
Sumil faflan
Sangaep Kumar

Inkureat swpaneen on lnnse lishdities
S.Iﬂdup Harnas
F it Jollai
Wanya Shesls Privaie Lonied
Basa Stuels and Powe Prvata Limited

Borrowings tatken
Sunil Jallan
Sandenp Kumar
A-One Gald Singapore ghe. Lid

Bomawings ropaid
Sunil Jalar
Sardesp Himas
Krighan Kumar falan

Irvestmanic
B3l Steeds anl Pesvef Private Limitnd

Cofpomis gunmntes givan
A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Privata Lindjed

Misleans of Corporets guarantes given
Warpa Steels Brivate Urmited

Peesonal guansanise gl
Sunil fallan
Sarmfeep Kumar
Mona fadan
Frign Jallan
Fiaya [alban
Frishan Furmar jalan

Papmant of leass Aakillsies
Sandeep Kumar
Mora [allan
Bixsal Steels and Power Frnate Limeaed

9505
ot

082
4588

216

50
18739

.00
.14
a3

284.78
54

]
128
EE2

235008
d040ed

264249
30051

455010
BOO0O0
1 A0

2287610
2w
T4ET6 10
TRE7E1E
TAATEI0
185810

961

191.55

20650

23275
13635

s
rA3
3

AERELD
A07RER

126162
LZ2nEY
(En ]

960




A-OHE STOELS INDIA LIMITED

{lormerly hnown as “A-One $teal snid Allays Private Limited®, *A-One Stesls ladia Private Limiled*)
Hotes to tha § da| Fnancial for the year andad March 31,2015

180 amoant are i P Lakh | unless othersise slaled)

Purchase of Investmants
BOine Gald Pipes and- Tebes Pracate Uimitad GO0
Sale of Inverimants
Varpa Sheals Frivale Limled = -Ero
Employas Benefils
frighar Hurmar falan
£ Balance sutstanding with or from related partio es at:
Mame of Relatsd Party and Nabure of Balances ikwat AWt
Bdarch 11, 2005 March 31, 3024
Unsscursd borrowings
Sueill Jallar 4,721,580 4522
Sardeep Kumar 313307 ATax0r
Hrizhan Kumar Jalan Jad Taa
Leasn labilities
Sardoen Kumar BT i 58
Mona Jallan 217 (252
Bassi Stosts and Power Private Limited hE14.54
Ramiinuralion payshls
Swnll [allan - 415
Salary payable
Saurabh findal 134
Bdunnce Zalary to Dlrector
Urma, Snankar Gayanka 18a7
Sittirug Faws Payabls
mavika Peddar 250
Hrighan Smigph Baiguaar 140 .
Rarmatdess Singh 230
Trada receivablos
A-One Gold Pipes snd Tubes Frasts Limined 1,138 48 155940
Betiony Tube Corporabon ElinEd
B0 Gold Retail Private Limited 348 .
4-One Gold Singapare Pre. Lid 140733 FASS 2
Laksh Steals B0 .
Advance to Supplier
Laksh Staels 142343 -
ellany Tuke Cocparabian FERLE Y
Basai Stwels & Power Private Limsted EeH d
Trada paynldas X
Basai Stwels B Power Private Limided - A5 -
Laksh Steek (Proprictosbip! 58 AHTEON
Aeyancs fram Curtomerz
Wanya Steels frivate Limited a7 104528
Cther Apesivable
&-Cine Goid Steels India Private Lemitod 241 T2
Vanya Stesl Private Limitad MaT -
Belymnce far Investaania
Basai Sseefs & Powor Private Limited GB350 FE0000
Conaldarstinn Payakles tar Buslnes: Combinatian
Basal Steels & Power Frivate Limvtod 658.50
Han-cstront loans
A-Ompe Gald Ppes and Tubas Fravefo Umitd 1,239.70 1154001
Semurity Deponits
Basai Stewls S Pover Prjvate Linwred 48
Laksh Steek 500
Lanksh Steels Pragriemrehip! o0




A-OME STEELS INDIA LIMITED

[T rly Enown ai “3-0ne Sinel mnd Alloys Privsis Limited", = 4-Cne Steels Indla Private Limiked®)
Metas to the Sendalons Minandal statammnts for the year endoed March 31,2025

(Bl amwomang srw o # Laihs . undon otherene etnisd)

Prapaid Lesss Hant

Basal Steels B Power Privaze Limized naz
Imvesiment In Subbideny

Vaivga Stoels Private Limited S0 08
Atine Gold Singapars P [td i
#-Ome Gold Fipes &nd Tubes Frivate Limited 500
&-Chne Gold Steets indis Privae Lirsted 500
Basal Steek and Powsr Privasa Limited 455000
Corporats gqusrantce greenUnexscubed)

Ay Godd Pipes asd Tubes Prambe Lirm ted 1185000
Wanya Steels Private Limitod 16R360.00
Peryonal gusrnates taben *

Suanil jallan 02,2270
Sandeep Kurmar 10222700
Wana alan BIA20.00
Priya jakan 2000
Daya jallan B3A2000
Frislin Bumiar falan ghgenon

* Persanal Guarcantse smount s indusive of Rt 50 crores (sanition Timity which was orginalty exended by inghusing Bark and subsepenily Laken ovr by Sato Bank of Infia a5 parthe

termEaet oul if e beibere dated Oecombe) 30, 20024
= Pladge of tatal 10% Lnercurmbrred shares of compary in'the name of M Krichan Humar Jalan { Guarantac)

. Compunustion of Koy Managarial Pavsonnel/ Relative of KMP
The compensation of directors and other member of Key Managersal Parsoanal,’ Ralstive of BME duilng the yoas/pariad was a5 folows

Bhla
U]
500
sdo

E A5
VT, EG00

7$,350.50
M3.350 50
M0
T390
Tl 343 00
7rEaien

HMarme of KM B fgladive of HMP Matuny af Compensation Far ihe perod ended  Far the year snded
March B 1025 March 11, 2024
Sunil jallan Shurt tarm amplo e benfits Ta4 00 14200
Miznoj Kiamar (KMP Resigied on fune 12,2024} Shart e smployes benefit 480 2400
Sandesp Hurmar 8P} Shert terrm amployoa benefits TR0 1000
Uma Shanikar Goyarsa (KM Short besrn employes bhemeli 1800 1800
. Brishen Kumar [shan Short term employee benefis = G000
Priva jallan Short term employes banefits = 400
Saurabh findal Short term employes benedity 1050 :
Pocja Sara Nagadsga Company Secratary) Short berrs evnployen benefits TR 7.00
Jetvikes Poddar Sitling Frees 5.00
righan famgh Barguear Sikting Fops EE]
Karnaideop Singh Sittatig Fee 250 -
IVRTR 437 00
Footmate:

bt ferm enpleyes benefits o the noturs of Salary

e i tentioially it bk




A-OME STEELS INDIA LIMITED

(formery known as "A-One Stesl and Alloys Private Limited”, "A-One Steels India Privato Limited™)
Notes to the Standalone financial staternents for the year ended March 31,2025

(Al amount are in ¥ Lakha , unless otherwise stated)

52 Segment information

Thie Company publishes tha standabone financial statements of the Company along with the consolidated finangial statemants, In accerdance with Ind AS
108, Dparating Sagments, the Company has disclosad the segmant information in the consolidated financial statements.

Space intentionally it blani..
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&-DNE STEELS INDIA LINWTED

(farmerly known a3 *8-One Steal and Alioys Private Limited", “ A-One Stesls India Private Limited")
Notes te the Siandalone financial #atemends for the year ended March 31,2025

(Al smount are in ¥ Lakhs | uilass otherwie stated)

_Contimued friovm previous page

i),

Fair valus hisrarchy
Lavel 1: it includes financal instruments maassad wing quotsd prices

Lavel 2: The fair valuz of financial instrumenss that are not traded in 2n active market s determined using valuation techniques which mazimise the use of obsenable madket
data and rely as fiitle as possible on enity specific eatirmates. If ol significant inputs required to fair valus an indrument are ohservable, the mstnement is included in level 2

Loval 3 If ans ar mars of the sigraficamt syats B ool based on obuercabls markel dala, the instrument o ncludded (n level 3 The faie velue of hnancial sssets and babilibes
Included (m Level 3 is detérminsd i accordance with geneally accepled pocing modely based on docounted cash flow anabpis using prices from obyenvable cirreot marke
transactions and dealer quotes of smilar insruments,

The carrying amounts af trade reorivabies, cask and cash squvalents and other financial esseds and babslitres, apprasimates the far valuss, due 1o thelr short-term natire. Fale
walln of financial assats and fnancial labiliter |5 similar to the camying value as thare is na significant differences batwaen camying value and fair wlue

Valuatien processss
Tha Management perferms the valsations of finandal assets and liahilities required faf finandal reparing purmoses on a periodic basis, including Jevel 3 fair values.

Financial riak managamenlt
The Company has expasure to0 the fallowing risks mrsing from financial instruments:

= Creeit rizk

» Licpidlity risk

« Market rsh
Crudit rish
The maximurmn exposare o oedit risks is represenied by the tota camying amount of these finarcal assatsin the Galanos Shest:
Particulars Asat Ayat

Macch 31, 2025 Wiarch 31, 2024

Inwestmants TASGBE 593858
Invastments in Subsdianes 541064 BalEd
Trade recarvables 4189488 5314351
Cash and cash squivalants B94.84 Th1.00
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents ANTE S 745413
Loans T361.84 122643
Cthar financial assets na1az2 BAGE.TE

Cradit risk is the risk of inancla! loss to tha Company i 2 customar or counterparty to a financial instromant fails to meat fts comractual obligations, and arises prindpally from
thie Company's Tecerabies from custoimars

The Compary's credd nisk is primacly to the amourl due frem customers and koans The Company maintanas o defined credil policy and rromiors the exposures to these oedit
fisha an an engoing basis, Cradit risk on cash and cash aquivalerts is mited as the Company gerenlly irvests in deposits with scheduled commercial Barks with high credit
ratings astigned by domastic credit rating agenries

Financial instrumiants thas are subject to-credit nsk and corcentration thereol principally consist of rade ruceivables, [oans receivables, bafances with bank, bank deposits, and
firanclal guarankees providad by the Company. None of the finandal instumenis of the Comgany mesult in matarial soncentration of aredit risk except Trade romvables. The
Company's exposug to customars is diverefied. bn respact of financial guarantees provided oy the Company to banksdinancial institutions, the maximurm expesure whidh tha
Cornpany s exposed to s the maomiom amount wiieh the Company woold hive (o pay of the giesranies 1 callad upun,tahbd on the expectafion al the eod of the reparting
periad, the Campany consders that it is more likely than nat that such an ameunt will nat be pagable under the guarantees prowsded

The maximum expasure te the credit rigk at the reperting date i primarily from trage receivebles. Trade receivables are tnsoured and arg derved from revenue aamed from
custemens primaily located in India. The Company does manitor the ecomomic enviranment in which it operates and the Company mansges its Credit ek theough oedi
appiovals, establishing credit limits and confeucusly monilormg credif worthiness of custamers ta which the Company grants credit tarms in the normal coste of business

Cn adapbion of Ind A5 104, the Company wes enpectad credit loss moded to assess the impairmans loss of gain, The Company establishes an allowance fon impainment that
rupwesenty b ecpected cracht losses in respec of trade recarsable. The rnlnlr.?lrnw.l ues a limp"'md lppln-nch ﬁp hased on §jlelima ECL:l lor the purpose o aTp& men | |
allawancs, the Company =stmates amounts based nn the business emvrenment inowhich the Cormpany operates and management considers that (he tade recevabiles are in
detautt icradit impairad) when counbes party fils o make piyments ks per teems ol sale/asvics agreements Howsver Lire Company Baded upan b voical expensnce
determmene an impairment allowancs for lass an recervables,

When 3 brade recevakle s coedit impaired, i is wiittan off against rade recervables and the amount of the loss & recegnizad in the income statement Subseguent reccvaries
ol amounts premously wilten off ae endited to the income staterment.

Thi grass carrying amaunt of rade meosivables = disdosed in Mote 14

The Compary befisves that the wimpalred ameunts that are past due by moene than 30 days ae sl callectible in full, based on histancal payment ehavour
The Campary's expasure to credit fisk far trade receivables are as follows




H-DNE STEELS INDEA LIBITED

farmerly knawn 35 "A-One Stesl snd Allogs Privite Limited"”, " A-One Steals India Private Limited"|
Mertes 1o the Handalons financial sialements for the yesr ended March 31,2025

(Al mmiownt are in T Lakha , unfess othe rwise atated)

i,

Parliculars fa uk ) st

March 31, 8 March 31, 2024
Lass than 180 days past due 40,916 45 5257722
180-365 days 2407249 33431
A65-730 days Gra. 52 54232
e than T30 days 78151 T81.25
Taolal 44,993.77 5424510
Mewament in the lowance for imparment mrespect of trade recaivables For the ysarendad  Fer the year anded

31-Mar-25 1-Mar-24

Balance at the buginaing (110118} TR
Impairment ioss)perafit recognised 23] {12297
Imparment lass utilised - -
Balancu at the and .098.88) 17.707.719)

The company bas givan bank{corporats guarantess amounting to Ru 318729 Lakhs |refar note ne. 4d),
Liguidity rizk

Liguidity ish is thie risk that the Company will encoustar ditficulty in meeting the ohligatiors assoriatad with its finantia liabilties that am settied by detivering cash er another
fnancial aszet. The Company's apprsach te managing Bguidity i to ersure; a5 Far as gassible; that it will bave sufficient los dity to meet its Habilities when they are Tallan due.
urrder both parmal and stresied conditions, without incuming unsceeptable losses or risking damage to-the Compary's reputatian,

Prudent liquiday nsk managemant imphes masrtanmg sufficwnt cad and maketabls secaritios and the ausilabslity of funding through an sdequate amount of credit facilities
o meet abligations when due. The Company's policy isto requlary maniter it kauidity require mients ba srsure thal i1 mainfaing sufficient seserves of cask and funding from
Company companies to meet 115 liquidity requirsments m the shart and long tarm

The Company's liquidity managament process as mondored by managsment, inchides the fallowing:

- ey to Day funding. managed by monitaning fture cash Nows to ersm that requinsmants can ba mat.

= Maintaining redling. torecasts of the Company’s ligudity pasition on the basi ol sxpected cash Bows:

Enposiire to guliity rsk
The following are the memaining conteactual maturities of fnancial liabilltes ot the reperting dake:

Carnsiog Contrachuml cash flows
By at March 31, 2025 R Lt i Batweun ong to More than Toual

frve ywara fiven ynars

Borrowings EAE4198 SED36.59 1932800 4443 85 480844
Leasa llabiliflas 11,188 31 1,141 83 478380 1890213 24M7R5
Trade payabies 6106843 91,0843 - - 6108843
Other finareal batwlities 5,555.39 153007 236500 14313 403826
Total 1.45.427.10 178, 796,93 F1AT6.80 23,435.77 164,763 .50

* Carrying vakes rapresants outtlanding baladce &t per books of accaunts

5 Contractual cash Mows

s it March 33, 2024 . Earrying T ——— Tare than
amouni. Leus than one year s S g Tatal

Boarowings B,770.28 67,82250 14,719.81 222387 B4, 77025
Loase liabilifias 130167 18750 1,137 10,080.47 1130187
| Trache payabias 3676859 IE76889 - - 16768 89
Othar fnancal Habi e 3,0325% 303259 286500 - 589759
Total 1.35.873.43 T.07.811.48 18,590.61 1201834 1.38,TI8.43
Market rish

Markeet rigk i3 thi risk that the future caah flows of a financial instrumant will fluchsste becausa of changes in markes prices. Marke? risk comprises theee types of sk interest
rate risk, currancy nek and athaer price risk, the Campany mainly has axposure 1o two type of market sk namely: eurreney sk and (nterast rate risk. The obisetiie of market nik
rmaragerrent is to manage ard control market sk esposwes within soceptable parametars, whils optimizing tha raturn,

2 Interest rate rigk
Intarest rate sk is tha rik that the fiuture eash flows of 3 financial instrursant will fuctuste because of changes in market interast rates. Tha Cempany's main interast rate risk
armsat from longeteim borrowings with variabla sales, which expose the Company to cash Bow intesest rate dsk.

Exposire bo interest rate Hik
The Company’s interest rate tick anises majory from the term loans from banks carrying Aoating rate of interest, Theso obhigations expotes the Carmpany to cath flow intarest
rade sk The nxposura of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes = reporled to the managerment at tha erd of the eporting periud are is folicws




A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED

tlermerty known az “#-Ona Steal snd Alloys Private Limited”, "A-Gne Stoels india Private Limited®)
Neles to the Standalons fnancial s tx for the yoar anded March 11,2025

(Al armounk ars in T Lakhs , unless otherise stated)

Variabla-rate instrumants Bt i
1-Mar-25 i1-Mar-24

Tarm |eans from banks & Fls 10,209.37 1477214
Working capital demand Inans fram banks 19,5000 211732
Cash credits from banks 11,52 3.64 945347
Bills discounted under LC 1771248 17.574.16
Bills discounted undar TReDS = 988196
Total 59,645.69 TL953.94

Cash flow ssnalthdty analysh for varahle-rate insdraoments

The sensitivity anafyses below have been determined basad an the exposure bo interest iabes at the and of the reporing pariod

Far flasting rata liabilities, e analysi b prapared assumang he smount of tha llability sutetanding st the end of the reporting parind was cutstanding for the whola year A 50
basis poent incredse or decisase 3 eed when rporting intecast rata sk intemally 1 key management personnel snd reprasents managemant's assassment of the ressanably
possible changa mnteres! rabes

Prafit or loss Exjulty, net of tax
50 by increaze 50 bpa decreais 50 bgis inervase 50 bps dacreaae

Torm loams from banks & Fis

For the penad endad March 31, 725 {57051 5105 138,300 3820

For tha year anded March 31, 2024 173.861 T3 86 {5527 5527
Werking capital demand loans fram banks

For the penod andad March 31, 3325 (949,00 29,00 (74,08 P

For tha year anded March 37, 2024 105 86| 10556 (79 7922
Cash credits from banka

For the panad ended March 31, 2025 (59 62 5962 4615 4481

For the yoar ended March 31, 2024 AT 41T (35 14y 3574
Billy discaunted under LT

For the period snded March 31, 2025 [RA.551 856 156271 5627

Far the yasr ended March 31, 2024 [87.87) 3387 16575} E538
Bills discounted under TREDS i

Far the pernod esded Mareh 31, 2025 - - - -

For the year ended Mareh 31, 2024 14041] 4941 13657} IRIT

L Eontimued’ on next page




A-OME STEELS IMDIA LIBMITED

fermerty known as "A-Ooe Steal and Alloys Private Limited”, "A-One Steals india Private Limited™ |
Notes o the Standalone fnanclal slatemenls Far the year ended March 17,2028

(Al amiount are in ¥ Lakhe , unfess otherwize dated)

Cintinad from seevious page

b Currency vk

Currency rmk i the resk that the fture cash Bows of o iosncial insfoment will flockuste becauss of chanoes in foeign exchange rates. The Comgany is sxposed io lha affects
of fiuctuation in the prevaliing foreign currency swchanga rates on it financisl poanon and cash flows bo the exent of samings and axpenses in foregn corrences. Exposars
arises primarly due to exchange rate fluchiations between the functional currency and nther currencies fram the Company's sperating, mvesting and Francig activities

Expoware to fofeign currency risk
The canying amounts of fe Company's foregn currency denomnated maenstary assets dand manetary Eabilities which arz not hadgad at the end of the reparbieg perod 2 a3

foilown
Buat B at
Particulars Da inath March 17, 2025 March 31, 2024
Forsign currency Equiwalont T Faraign currency Eguivalent T
Rocwnvables
Trode Reoesivables uso 131 LE2G TN 2003 1A 25
Eulcy a1 55.99 - -
Unhedged receivables 1962 1.681.52 0,03 167025
Payahbes
Trade pavables UED 13690 1171605 1339 111679
Unhadged payahiss/if hib 13630 1LT16.05 13.33 1,115.73
Nt unhadgad farsign curreney seposim 15 u] (10,089,713} 55346
Nat unhedged fareign currency expozure Euto 2580

Faraign currency sansithvity analbysiz

Tha fol kowing tabla datalls the Company's mnsitlty tooa 30 bps norease and decesse in the INR (%) aganst USD, 50 bps is the senstivity rate used whan reporting foralan
currancy AEs intemaly to ey manegéemen! perionnel and fepdeten it management's siesiment of the masonably possible changs in forgign exthange ralet, The sensdnly
analyss inchudes only aulstending forewgn currency dencminated manetary fems and sdusts their ranslation at the pericd snd for 2 50 bps changa in foraign currancy rates
|n case of net foreign currency sutfiow. & posime number balow indicates an increasa in prafit or equity where the T sirengthens 50 bps against the relevant currensy, For 3 50
bps weakering of the T against the relevant cirrency. there weuld ba 3 compara bls impact on the prafit or sguity, and the balances befew would be negative. |ncase of net
Foreign currency nflew, & positive mimber below ndicates an increase in profitor equety whese the ¥ weakens 50 bips sgaimet he refevant cuniency. For a 50 bps stremgthening
of tha & against the sebsvant currency, thers would be 2 camparable imeact an the profit o equity, and the balances bolow would be negative

Profit or foss Equity; net of tan
50 bpe 50 bas 50 bps 50 bps
incroase diecrease increase docraasa
uso
Far the yesr ended Maich 37, 2025 5% 59 (044} q44
Fiat tha yarar eded Maach 31, 2024 33 1332 28 |& a8y
IS0 Unitod Statae Dollar

54 Capital mansgement
Faa the purpese of the Campany's capital managemens, capital includes swued equty share capfal and all ether squity rasenmes
Managemant azseises the Company's capital requirements in ordar to mintan an aficient cveeall finanang steacturs, Tha Campany manages the cap)fal druciure and makas
Adjustrments to it in the light of thanges in ecanomic ronditions and the risk characteristics of the underlng assets
To maintain or adust the mpital inichira, the Company may etum cagétal io shareholdecs, ralse new defd ar lsese new shares,
Fhuy Eewnr P eapihl an the bang of the dabt lo expital vatie, whech o caloulsted as hllrul—bming dubily draicded 5-.- alal c,pp;l,.l {.q.;&l-,l inelueled aiaed ety share
cagatal, algre premium and all ather squityl

A al At
March 1, 2025 Murch 11, 2024
Aarmawngs 5583658 FA.615.52
Less Cash ang bank balancas 11,530.45 1137530
Adjustod nat debt (A} 4530813 5B,440.02
Total equity (81 §4.753.01 35.431.07

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (4/81 0.7% 1,65
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A-OME STEELS MHOLA LIMITED
| il aely knewm 22 "8 -Chne SBlawl snd ARsys Privele Limited ", "&-0ne Sleels India Privale Limited”)
Motes ta the Randafone financial stabements for Uoe paar snded March 1712025
{40 arenzn are i ¥ Lakhs , unless otherwise stated |
5 Migdme tanw
Aannmnds recognied in e Staiseent of Proft ssd Loss far the period anded Farahe yesr anded
March 31, 2025 March 37, 2004
Incoma tax expemse
Currgmni fam | 87T 1.C2T 16
|ncarma tax far garbier years (L3 5] -
Dufarred iy napanie
Chanie 1 fecag nised temparay cfferencs 0 L]
TA7.68 85754
d {n Qthar Compruhansive |ncoma Por the pariod ended March 31, 2085
Before Tan (eupaise)’ Mt
L5 A of tax
I%ema that will not b reclessifiad 10 profit o ks
Aemneasisemet of egudy nstuments . -
Rermeaneremerts of defined benafit obligations 11287 i2a {5 L)
LT iia =N 3]
i Tecoge in Othae Camp Imtama Fr tha yunr andad hlacch X1, 2924
Exfare Tat fexpensel’ Met
inm e el of fmn
{tamiy thab will net be reclassified ta profit or lnss
Hemeasuomed of adu by it ts - - -
Humadsa:eimerls of defiied benefit oaligabons (R 103 1575
{7,685} 131 15,721
e Rueeanelilation of wffe i ta zie Far the perind snded btarch 11, 2028 For tha year ended Barch §1. 2044
Enty Amagimt Rys Ami
Brofit bafors tax from continuing aporations 25T £301.81 BT 358030
Tai ushng the Compary’s damesic tax rate 1.851,59 L0
Tax sffaciaf a
Expenisarat Mir vabistion of fnandal instraments & Loases (BTRI 1.501.£2
Incsioe an o falr vakatlon of fnandal instrumants & Leasac (TTHSAH 1266711
mpawmont of Trads Recsivables A8 [P e
Evpanditires disallowad under the Inceme Tar Ast 137822 1,nu6.An
Expandituires ol cwed undir the incoma Tax Act [ARRE ] JLEL ]
Gratulty [LELT (7606)
ther sdjuriments 1,234,930 i1 4 150
189161 AL
o i o d 12n b At [ —— Tasmgaivnd A ad
Mareh §1, 2074 im Pl im 3 areh 31, 2025
Defarred tay assoks
Trada receivables eTE |58l 2657
Prowisions for omployoe banafits 9102 &9 L4 1ahi4
Lazses FEEED 10545 E ATis
Eugandimss dealbownl under Incarme Fae fct 2935 (3935 3 £
Secury Sapatin 25t 157 & ED ]
Oy 1, 32643 LIEEED = T4
G- Total (&) 2,004 53 1 2T5RS Lid 1188
Defarred tax Rabifitien
Preopety, plant & squproent 160538 (LS L] - L1770
Infaspble e .55 57 . {7968
Raroairg 1,13050 |1.778:20) 221
Sube Total (b P RTTET] (1, 1271 122275
Diedrves] tna Habilities {net) ik = () IE1.14 187 [TRT] JA0ET
D Mswwment in daFerrod ta halanges Baal [ m——— Nucagnised Aanl
March 11, 2833 i PAL in OC1 March 11, 2834
Duinrend baz awseds
Trade recareatdes Frrirg 5473 = 2TT15
Proveiors hor ernployes benstt 4399 515 1.8 51.02
Luasas ) 20851 1615 - 3580
Expumrelibuu shnallovarel sndar Iniarmg Tos Act nad (2172 3335
Smourily deposts 153 age z37
Chars [t S T 1, 32043
Fub- Total ja) 3354 158175 1.4 1E54.53
Beferred tan lihdities
Praparty, plant S equtament w2118 R . 1,08455
Irtarsible asaets 11,503 (143 - L
Demeabve Financal Arset 1904 M54 - -
Borrowings T 11753 . LR R ]
Othan 0 (L) a -
Sk Tolad il 06735 1,488.71 = 1,355, 4%
Difprrmd tan liadifitias (mat) i) « (al 18M [#5.44) [ %3 26114




A-DME STEELS INDIA LIMITED
|formery knawn as “8-Ons Pesl snd Alloys Pevnts Lirmitsdd ", “A-Onn Stanls indis Privete Lmingd”)

¥

h

i)

Matay im the Standalens fimandal Tor the yenr andod Masch 17,7025
| A8 sreount sre in © Lok, unless atharwie staisd)
Hay Finandal Raties
Ratins Farmulas P T st i Pt W ywar bl % Change Rezson for changs
1Mt 28 07 M- 32
Cunan ariits / Y
i .
Chatearil 1805 (i Simas) Lt Kab Wtk 1.5 1.4 EATE Lassthan £5%
Thaste Is incraass W
Dabs aquty ratis [in timas) Dett # Sharehalder equity 08 L3 VA 1] e doaly
compaced &0 previous year
Ezrriira avaiabla for debt senjoe: | Earnings during tho pennd has
Dighat yarvita oovarage ratia (in timae) (et & L] iy} AETE been intiaased compared ko
bamrawingz + Wnlarest| pnevioud yaal
: Earnings dining the paciod has
Predfitfions) aiver fanas ¢
et o Erguiby faliaa 19 wriige Shefaldar's i ang FEELE [ |I|I.1I.‘l:ld camvpared b
PAVIoUE Yuar
rrivig bafore iy
Rt on Capital Employed #atic (Fro s (%) Rareig bafors frmenid o/ Ciplal R wr ansin Lo than 5%
el oyad
An iNcigazs in iewvanue frem
s, praafin f Romnun eparaars wihour & arepectiona
Mt prolil ali 1.56 B 1a7.2a
a ki from apartians rie i conts booats the et pealil
mapn
Inveriory Tumeaver Ratia hw
invenieny Tameser Ratio {n tienai Eost ey fald &m (81 BT e crennnd becwinn of supply dam)
Byrage brventoiy e
= i
Cradit dalis ¢ v Trage Rucalvable Turmever Batlo
Trarks Raveivals Timiver Eatio- [ times) L i a1% a0z (TR ETY has docrcared barauca of oeding
ale recnrablo
men pales
Trage payables rurnaves rifvs hax
Crm A
Tréde payables tomover rabia fin times) m::d’:“:.:ﬁl:“w 1 HrE BN deermaied brcatse ol o i
e frade payalikes
Mot cagrtal Taipesar Ratio §in Gmar Rivwn i ":'“ !b:llmﬁilnl 1888 2524 £ 5 Hgher ‘Warkdag Caoital Levels

iwil

Aptum o Investmant Aatio i@ net appl cabin to tha Company Fefer oo 8

‘Formulas

Biarrant Asseis=Totsl Curmrd Assabs

Laarrmint Liabilies = Total Curant Lakdibe-L o rant Maleobes of Lang Tern Dbl

Dokt =Leng Teers b Shan Term Barmewingy

Sharshulers's Fisnd=Tnkal Equity

Eaminge avallablo for dobt sonvicas=Earmdngs Bofase Inganasy Fas aed Doprocalien L Ame tizaion
Hepayrrmet 2l Bermrmingut Inbermpl = Comramt Matarity of Losig e Dl = Fnsses Dol
Prohtsllcass| attes favesaProfit after Tax

Toual equliy=&vereos Shameholdar's Squity

Capinal Frrployed=Tessl shareholdns's squity (1) honsoxment baireviags i | cament boriorwings
Eamirg bofiorg intavowt & tar—Profit beforo Toxs Arance Cout

Hat Prota=Ma Profil sher Taes

Huvpnue bom Doorations=Tetal Revargs from Cpanilers

Cait of Gaosds Sold s Cant af materisly conmed « Changey in incentares al foished geads and wadk-m-progesm
Byerage Imvemtery = idoening Inverbory+-Llazsing (nventoodf2

Erpdlt Salas =Total Salas

Auniage Trame et kblio=Cipening Tiade Receinabi o rCasng Trade Reoenble 17

Cradit puschaies=#uichae of Matarials

[wwin} o seran Teactet Py ablena (Wptee vy Trscke P ayablas «Clcaing Tiade Payablea) (2

fadh
(xxk
i}

Revanua fom Dperatiens=Total Revenus tom Oparifiend
durernge woiking capdel=[Opening Wodking Canital+Closing Working Capitaly2
‘Warkarg Capeals Current Aasets-Clsert Lisbfiries
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A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED

{larmaddy knevn as 4. One Steal ard Alfoys Private Umsted®, “&-Onn Sleals indis Privats Limiad)
Hotas to tha Standaione financial iataments for the year sded March 11,2025

LAl armearnk ars in T Lakhs _ unlese atherades slated)

5§ The Hoohle NCLT Bengafuru Sanch, via Drde Mo, CREAA) Ne 24/88/2072 damed November 22, 2073, has approved the Scheme of Smalgamaran wnder Sections 230-252 of the Companies

(0 Act, 7073 Aceording o this schime, & One Steels ind s Private Limited and danven Hitech Siesls India Private Umited have merged inlo 84-Opne Steel and Siloys Private Lindted. Concuiveatly,
ke mare of &-Cne Stesl and Blleys Private Limited has been changed to &-One Steels iacia Privats Limibed with effeetive fram uee $52024 arad further 0 was again changed to &-One Steels
India Limited with effectv from Decamber 23, 2024,

59 Resolution Plan submitted by Prem Enterprises [Reandution Applicant’] far the acquistion of Hasal Steels and Power Provate Liriled ("Bassl Steels® was didy appeowved by the Hon'ble NCLT.
(8] Hpdorabad Bench, on 13042018 {".Appewnd Rezolation Fl.'m'] wndor Saction 3T oF 1ha tngalvency ard Banuptey Code, 2016, read with Reguiation 37 of tha Insalyency and Barkrupicy Board
af Irefia {necivency Resciulinn Fross for Cogorale Persons] Regulations, 2018 and 45 5000000 (Farky-Fiee Crere Rty Lakh) squity shares of fs 1 sach sllotted 1o #:One Steels nia
Limizad (Formary known as "A-(rg Staglz India Private Umsted” and "A-Cne Stool and Aloys Private Lmand”) -Strategic investar.
In Hire with the approwsd reschibion plan, &-Ons Skeel made payrents towerds clesiance of the duss of secured finenosl credifors avd e=ran op=rabonsl credibars (nvested drounl of By
B35 Cr a5 on 31 -Oct-2024) and subsoguently fHed |8 G480 Ma 19902029 seaking inter alis conderation of delay (n paymants and @8 1B Na. 15782004 ior diractions 1o Basl Steal to
comply with tha terms of aporoesd meanlubion plan whech inter alia inchudes allatment of sguity shares in Sasa; Steel
Sirrdaaly, fslwatis ARC Pt Imitsd tfinancial creditor and majority sakeholder o Commitae of Creditaey filed 18 980 Mo, 19042024 foe condonation of delwy and sppropaiation of
paymanss fowards resolufion plan dues Simiady, Edolwois ARC Pyt Emited (firandal caditar and maatity stakehaldor in Commities of Coeditors) filed 14 1B Mo, 1974/2024 foe
crndonation af delhy and apprapristion of payments asands resohition plan diss
In 2w of the approvad rasalution plan, 45,50,00,0080 {Forty-Five Crone Fifty Lakhi aquity shares of B2 1. sach ware aliotted too4-Cing Stadlz India Umited (Formerly Knawn 22.73-0no Steals
Iretin Prvabs Limited” sorl “8-Ore Steel and &llays Prieats Lireted ") -Strategic Imesstor &fter the allatmend af Bguity sharss 1ATBC) Woo 18772020 was wibhed rawin
The balanca equity Sares shall b allatted to A-Ore Steals India Limited, in acoordarce with fts entithement and in progortion ta-the total funds Infused by it in Basai Steeli and Power Privats
Lirnted, m line with the {erms shpulsted n {he approved Resaludion Plan
Thim Hen'bls NCLT wide its order dated 10A0G/2025 has sflawed thess applicasions vide 1A 16T Mo 177873024 andd 1A (IBC) Mo, 157872024

80 The Pasliament of India has approusd nise Labour Codes which would impact the contritutions by the Company towards Frodent Fund, Smployee State baurancs and Gialulty. The elfediv
date from which the dranges ane applcable is yet bo oo rabified and the niles ane yet bo be framed The Compary wél cary out s evaluabon of the mpact ard recard the same in the financial
siaternenis in the pericd in which the Codey becomm effectve and the relsted rules are publi shad

B1  The Company doss nof e sy ransactions sith companize stiuck-off under Saction 248 of the Compardes for 2013 ar Sectien 550 of the Companies At 1956

82 The Compamy doos not have ary immesable praperty iother than properties whene the Company i 2 lessee and the luase sgreementy are duly eveculed in the Lavour of e laee| schose Hifle
degdds e not hekd in the name of the Company exceptas d sckesed In Note 3.

£3  The Company does not have any Bensmi propenty, where any proceeding has been initiabed or ponding againet the Compary far holding any Benami arapety.

B The Campany has nat baded ar swmaited in Crypla eurrsaey o Virkual Cuseney dosing the ransial gas

&3 Subsequent Events

(i) Subsaquant i the Pariod-and, i the company receimd two orders from ths G5T departmant Show Cause Matice dabad May 06, 2925 isueel in Form G5T DRC-00 for the 7 202221, 2023-
2d and 202425 by Aesstart Cammissener (5T annccount of winng s ment of input tax eredit in the case of b-One Stesl indln Limitsd armounting e fr 112.39 lakha
Anothar order. May 08,2025 lssued by Assistart Commisioner an sceaunt of not dodared coirect tas labdity in thy e af A-One Stesls inda Limted amourting 1o.Rs 2572 lakhs.
A the dete of issusnce of theae financisl staternents, these matteno remains under neview ard e company haa fed o eply sgairet those onders
This s sonsigerad a nan-adjusting rbroquent svant, as it peraing ta canditions that aresa aftar ihe yoar-end Accardingly, ne adjustment has beon made to the finandal stxtements: Howower,
the evert has besn diadoed to proide wiess with inforration aboul e matter thal may aed: the mmpay's future financial restfs

[} Subrequent fo the repartng period, the Company has ieceived sparovals from the Natenal Stock Exchanige of india Limited (N5E), BSE Linited {BSEL and the Securdies end Exchange Board of
Imd i (SEBN Bor It Deaft Red Harring Proszectus (DRHP), marking o significant map |n the proposed inalal Public Offering NPO) process. Thise asprovals wora obtaired on Agrll 18, 2025 far
MSE and BSE and May 3, 2025 for SER

The: management consgers thess spprovals i non-adiusting: ovenie undar fnd AS 10— Ewents aftgr the Reporting Pariod. fccordingly, no: sdiustmuonts have besn made to the fisaneisl
taterments in respect of thess events.

[} Subrequent o the balance sheet date, Dass Steals ard Powar Frvate Limbed. subsidiaryof A-One Steels India Limited. has asued add fonal ooty shares amainting to 14665 core o us
This ssuance of thares incraases the tolal irvestmeent by the holdihg company in te subsidiay 10 23215 core =
This tasishrice af sharey hay been mede 0 scordance with TIRP. This svend i dassifiet a2 8 modcadjioting wibiisqoent svenk singe the. condtions [sading fo the suance srase affer the
raporting pariod. Howsvar, cus fo it materlality, approprate disslosurs is warranted in tha inandal staterments.

66 The Company have not advanced or loansd o invested funds 1o amy other personin or snting@ies, | neluding foreign snt tes {intermadiariesi with the undermanding shat the intermsdiany shall:

fa) dirmctly or indrecily lerd or meest in other peisons orectities dentified @ ey manner whatsoeser by or on behalf of the Company iUlbrats Benefebnest o

th} provide any guarantee, security o the like io or'on behallof the Ulimale bereficiare

7 The Company hewe not recewed any fund lfom iy peislsl ar entity|ies), meludmg dorsign snhtees (Funding Parkyd wilh e onderssancing o hetter reeiondsd i variting ar othenwiss| that the
Coempsatry sheall

ial direetly at indmectly lard or irvest in other periens o arfites identifed m any masres whatosve: by of on Behalf of the Campany iVlomate Benaficiariasl er

1h provide amy guarantee, security of e llbe 1o ar o8 bekall of the [Nimate Reraficianes
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A-DNESTEELS INDIA LIMITED

[ Farmarly koveven 25 *4-One St=el and Alloys Private Umided”, “8-Doe Steals indla Privats Limited™)
Motes to the Siandab fi dnl wind for the ywar snded March 11 2825

{8l mmawnt wre in T Lakho | anlees stheredee stated)

The Comgany hat nat dona any sueh fransaction which & nat recondied i the books of acmunts that has been surrendarad o disciousd o inome ciring the pess o The e gssddunants uhder
tha Inenere Tax Act, 1951 |sdch a5 search or sty or any othar refevant provisians of the income Tax Act, 1961),

The Company has not been deciared & willul defaulter by any bank or finandal (nstitations or athes fender in acordance with the guidalings on willul dofaulizen Tuued Dy the Resarse Bank of
Inclia.

On 291h May 2024, & fire acciurmed #t the comipany's plank stuated at Gauribidariur, resulting in damege bo the Furnace amounting e an et mated less of Red, 04 crargs which #apart o PEE
Thee sepairs ars undortaken immedistely b restors the dsmages. The Furnace has been cpevationdl from 0Mh July, 2024 afte Somplets Overhaaling The company has sulbimitted & clam
covering for its lomsdn iy mmurance provider for the damaga ar busineys inkarmu ptiee ksses incumad due in 1he fire As of 1he reparting date, the insurance daim is in pracess. and the
eaThpany exaecty to MaTaN'e compansation for a partion of tha laszes. Howevar, the amadnt and timing of the settiement are uncettaln at this $lage. Company js astanatiog o ecmer the full
amourtt of loss which has been incurmed. The company has nob yet ecogrezsd apy s | du i the fimaresal hacausa tha claim is shll urde: e By pobentisl pain frem
the clairm will be recognizen when it becmes probaile that the insurance seftlomont will pooue and can be (sasonably estimated,

T Company has nat wed any borrowings frem banks and finandal indtiutans for purpose ather than ter whith it war @hen

Trigse Franclal Slitements wene approved for issus by the Doard ol Directon an Aoguat D1, 2025

Date TLARERZS Darg: 1,/00/2025
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BOARD'S REPORT

To,
Dear Members,

Your directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 13%"Annual Report of the Company together
with audited financial statement for the vear ended 31% March, 2025

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS/STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS:
The financial performance of your Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 is summanized below:
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
From ist April From 1st April From 1st April From 1st April
2024 to 31st 2023 to 31st 2024 to 31st 2023 to 31st
March 2025 March 2024 March 2025 March 2024
[_I'I.l.'ﬂll'll'." o
Revenue from operations 30043052 34897590 354178.09 383421.24
Other Income 2101.94 2425.02 2784 80 282261
Total Income 30253246 | 351400.92 356962.89 38624385
Total Expenditure 295525.15 347820.62 353762.59 38042594
ﬂﬁrﬂiimlm} before ' .
- exceplional ibems and tax 7007.31 3580.30 3200.30 5817.9(0
| Less: Exceptional items H3.69 0 443.69 0 R
Profit/(Loss) before tax “6563.61 3580.30 I756.61 581790
| Tax Expenses, MAT Credit & o
Deferred tax 1891.61 961.54 1712.99 1996.949
Profit / (Loss) after tax 1672.01 2618.76 104362 | 382091
| Add : Other Comprehensive
Income {9.65) (5.71) (0.83) 1.49
Total Comprehensive Income -
for the year 4662.36 2613.05 1042.79 3822.40
Eanings Per Share (Basic) 7.06 156.46 158 225.29




Earnings Per Share (Diluted) 7.06 156.46 1.58 J 228.29

2. PERFORMANCE REVIEW:
Standalone Operations:

During the year under review, the Company has registered revenue from operations of Rs. 300430.52
Lakhs as compared to previous year’s revenue of Rs. 34897590 Lakhs. Company has recorded Profit
before tax of Rs. 6563.61 Lakhs as compared to the previous yvear profit of Rs. 358030 Lakhs and Profit
after tax of Rs. 4672.01 Lakhs during the FY 2024-25. The company registering a growth rate of profit of
83.33% compared lo last year profit before tax.

Consolidated Operations:

During the year under review, the Company has registered revenue from operations of Rs. 354178.09
Lakhs as compared to previous year revenue of Rs. 383421.24 Lakhs. Your Company has recorded Profit
before tax of Rs. 2756.61 Lakhs as compared to the previous year profit of Rs. 5817.90 Lakhs. Profit after
tax of Rs. 1043.62 Lakhs during the FY 2024-25,

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:
There is no change in the nature of business carried out by the Company during the financial year 2024-
25.

4. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAI YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT:

There are no material changes and commitments except as stated hereinbelow may affect the financial
position between end of financial year and dale of report.

a. Subsequent to the Period end, ie. the company received two orders from the GST department.
Show Cause Notice dated May 06, 2025 issued in Form GSTDRC-01 for theF.Y 2022-23,2023-24
and 2024-25 by Assistant Commissioner (ST) on account of wrong availment of mput tax credit in
the case of A-One Steels India Limited amounting to Rs. 112.39 lakhs. Another order May 08,2025
issued by Assistant Commissioner on account of not declared correct tax liability in the case of A-
One Steels India Limited amounting to Ks.25.79 lakhs. At the date of issuance of these financial
statements, these matlers remains under review, and the company has filed a reply against those

orders. This is considered a non- adjusting subsequent event, as it pertains to conditions that




.

arose after the year-end. Accordingly, no adjustment has been made to the financial statements.
However, the event has been disclosed to provide users with information about the matter that

may affect the company’s future financial results.

Furthermore, post closure of financial year following events reported in the one of the subsidiary

company whose accounts are consolidating with the company. However, this doesn’t have any affect on

the Standalone financial position of the company:

B

o

For Basai Steels and Power Private Limited (Subsidiary), As per the resolution plan Rs. 102.50
crores were payable till December 2023. However, payment of Rs.62 crores made up to December
2023 and remaining Rs. 40.50 crore was paid in July 2024. Thus there was delay of more than six
months in implementation of the repayment plan. The holding company applied for condonation
of the delay payment to financial creditors and others. On the Companies Application the
Hon'ble NCLT heard and being satisfied with the reasons as submitted, condoned the delay vide
its order dated 10.06.2025.

For Basai Steels and Power Private Limited (Subsidiary), Mr. Gopal Agarwal (one of the member
of the subsidiary) has filed applications before the Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench for (i)
liquidation of Basai Steels and Power Private Limited, and (i) alleging oppression and
mismanagement in the subsidiary. Both applications are currently pending adjudication.
However, the holding company has filed a petition challenging the maintainability of these
applications on the grounds that the applicant does not meet the eligibility criteria under Section
244(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and otherwise also it's not maintainable.

For Basai Steels and Power Private Limited (Subsidiary), Canara Bank Ltd has filed an
application before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Hyderabad Bench,
seeking interest on delayed payments. The matter is currently under discussion between the
Bank and the NCLT. The outcome of the application is presently uncertain and will be evaluated

for its financial impact, if any, once further clarity emerges.

DETAILS OF SICGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGCULATORS OR

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S

OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There are no significant and material order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the

going concern status and company’s operations in future. However, following orders were passed by

the Regulators / courts / Tribunals during the review year:



6.

1. The Company has filed Adjudication Application in the matter of Section 203(1) and Section 454
of the Companies Act 2013 read with Compames (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel)Rules 2014 before the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka on 10.01.2024.The Tolal
penalty amount imposed by the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka vide order File No.
ROC(B)/ Adj.Ord 454-203/ A-One Steel & Alloys/Co.No.063439/2024 dated 24/05/2024 against
the Directors and the Company amounted to Rs. 27,56,000/-. Company has filed Appeal before
the Regional Director (SER)dated 05/07/2024 and has requested to modify the order passed by
the Adjudicating Authority by levying the nominal penalty. The Regional Director, Hyderabad
vide its order no 4876 dated 29.11.2024 reduced the penalty amount to Rs. 15,00,000/-. Company
paid all the penalty on 30.10.2024 and the matler stand closed.

2. The company received Show Cause Notice for violation of Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 vide notice no ROCB/S5.177/AROC(N H)/ 100073481/ A-ONE SIEELS INDIA/FU/2024
dated 25/07/2024. Company had submitted its reply along with all supportive documents with
the Registrar of Companies on 05.08.2024. The Registrar of Companies issued order vide no
ROC(B)/AdjOrd 454-177/A-One  Steel/Co.N0.063439/2025 dated 23.01.2025 and levied
maximum penalty of Rs. 21,00,000/- to company and officer in default. Hence, company filed
appeal before the Regional Director, Hyderabad on 17/03 /2025 and matter is pending,

3. The name of the company changed from A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited to A-One Steels
India Private Limited w.e.f. 29.06.2024

4. Company converted from Private Limited to Public Limited and name of the company changed
from A-One Steels India Private Limited to A-One Steels India Limited w.e.f 2312 2024,

5. Company has filed Draft Red Herring prospectus (DRHP for Initial Public Offer (IPO) amounting
upto Rs. 650 Crores as per the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended (SEBI ICDR Regulations) and other
applicable laws on 30.12.2024. Subsequent to the reporting period, the Company has received
approvals from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSF), BSE Limited (BSE), and the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) for its Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP),
marking a significant step in the proposed Initial Public Offering (IPO) process. These approvals
were obtained on April 16, 2025, for NSE and BSE and May 30, 2025 for SEBL

JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have Joint Venture Companies. Hence the disclosure is not required to be made.
However, the company has Subsidiary companies and Associates Companies. The Details the details, as




available under the subsidiary companies and Associate Companies are disclosed in Form AOC-1,
"Annexure-I".

Subsidiary Companies:

Following below are Subsidiary Companies:

1. Vanya Steels Private Limited

2. A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited

3. A-One Gold 5teels India Private Limited

4. A One Gold Singapore Pte Ltd

5. Basai Steels and Power Private Limited
Associate Companies:

Following below are Associate Companies:

1. Radiance KA Sunshine Five Private Limited
2. Radiance KA Sunshine Six Private Limited
3. FP Suraj Private Limited

However, while preparing the consolidated financial statements for the financial year 2024-25 the
company is not consolidating above said Associate Companies Financials because the company is not
having significant influence on these associate companies. The details of the significant influence, as
provided under the applicable accounting standard, is usually evidenced in one or more of the following
wa}'s.'

(a) representation on the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the investee;

(b) participation in policy-making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends or
other distributions;

(c) material fransactions between the entity and its investee;
(d) interchange of managerial personnel; or
(e) provision of essential technical information.

The Company holds equity with restrictive voting rights in the above Associate companies solely to
satisfy the requirements under the Electricity Act, 2003 for captive power consumption and in also
preserve its position as a captive user, Further, the company do not have any control or significant
influence and not to direct the financial or operating policies of the Company, all strategic and
operational control—including appointment of directors, key managerial personnel, and day-to-day
decision-making —rests solely with the management/promoter of the above said Associate Company.
Therefore, due to above said reason, the Company is of the opinion that the company is not required to
consolidate the financial statements of the above said Associate Companies under Section 129(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Review of the affairs of the Subsidiaries:



During the vear, Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of the subsidiaries in accordance with Section
129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013,

Consolidated Financial Statements

In accordance with the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Company has prepared its consolidated financial statements,
which forms part of this Annual Report. As mentioned herein above that the said consolidated financial
statements, due to the reason as provided above, doesn't include the financial statements of the associate
companies.

The statement in form AOC-1 containing the salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiary
companies and associate companies of the company, also forms part of this Annual Report.

In accordance with the third proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act, the Annual Report of the Company,
containing standalone financial statements and the consolidated financial statements and all other
documents required to be attached thereto is available on the website of the company

at www aonesteeleroup.com.

DIVIDEND:

Your Board of Directors have not recommended any dividend for the year ending 312 March, 2025.
Pursuant to SEBI's notification dated 8th July 2016, the Board of Directors of the Company have
formulated a Dividend Distribution Policy (“the policy”). The policy is also available on company

website www aonesteelgroup.com.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
The Company retained Profit of Rs. 4672.01 Lakhs in the retained earnings. The amount equal to face
value of redemption of preference shares ie. Rs. 1000 lacs have been transferred to Capital Redemption

Reserve from General Reserves.

SHARE CAPITAL:
The Board provides following disclosure pertaining to Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rule,

2014:
SI. No. | Particulars Disclosure
1. Issue of Equity shares with differential rights Nil
2 Issue of Sweat Equity shares Nil |
& Issue of employee stock option Nil
4, Provision of money by company for purchase of itsown | Nil




' shares by trustees for the benefit of employees

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on 319 March, 2025 was Rs. 91,00,00,000/- consisting of

8,00,00,000 (Eight Crores Only) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 11,00,000(Eleven Lakhs only) Non-
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each.

The following changes taken place during the year.

i 7

Wi

On 25.04.2024 company sub-divided Equity Share of the Company having a face value of Rs.
100/~ (Rupees Hundred Only) each into Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each

On 25.04.2024 the Authorised Share Capital of the company increased from existing Rs.
47,50,00,000 (Rupees Forty Seven Crore Fifty Lakhs) divided into divided into 3,65,00,000 (Three
Crore Sixty Five Lakhs Only) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each and 11,00,000 (Eleven Lakhs Only)
Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Rs. 100/~ (Rupees Hundred Only) each to Rs.
91,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ninety One Crores Only) divided into 8,00,00,000 (Eight Crores Only)
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 11,00,000(Eleven Lakhs only) Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each ranking pari passu in all respect with the existing equity
Shares of the Company as per the Memorandum of Association of the Company

On 25.04.2024 company issued and allotted 4,18,43,050 fully paid Bonus shares of Rs. 10/- each
by capitalizing sum of Rs. 41,84,30,500-/- (Rupees Forty One Crore Fighty Four Lakhs Thirty
Thousand and Five Hundred Only) standing to the credit of free Reserves of the Company in
proportion of 3(Five) new equity bonus share of Rs. 10/- each for every 2(Two) fully paid-up
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each held in the Company by the existing shareholders (5:2), whose
name appears in the Register of Members as on 02 April 2024 (Record Date).

During the period, the Company has raised money via Private Placement dated 05th June 2024 by
issuing 28,73,000 Equity Shares , 20th June 2024 by issuing 36,50,000 Equily Shares and 13th July
2024 by issuing 33,62,000 Equity Shares respectively having face value of Rs. 10 each at a price of
Rs. 250 each (including premium of Rs.240 each), ranking pari passu with the existing Equity
Shares

On 26% September 2024 company redeemed 6,00,000, 0.01% Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/ - each with 6% Redemption Premium on face value aggregating to
Rs. 6,36,00,000/ - (Rupees Six Crores Thirty Six lakhs only) out of profits of the company.

On 28" September 2024 Company redeemed 4,00,000, 0.01% Non-Cumulative redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- cach with 6% Redemplion Premium on face value aggregating to
Rs. 4,24,00,000/ - (Rupees Four Crore Twenty Four Lakhs only) out of profits of the company.




7. On 24" December 2024 Authorized Share Capital of the Company increased and re-classifed
from Rs. 91,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ninety-One Crores Only) divided into 8,00,00,000 (Eight Crores
Only) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 11,00,000(Fleven Lakhs only) Non-Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each to Rs. 91,00,00,000/ - (Rupees Ninety-One Crores
Only) divided into 9,10,00,000 (Nine Crores Ten Lakhs Only) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

10. DEPOSITS:

11.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

As per Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company shall place a copy of the annual return on
the website of the company, if any and the web-link of such annual return shall be disclosed in the
Board's report.

The Annual Return  of the Company is available on the Company's website ie.,

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

13.

There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company with Promoters,
Directors or Key Managerial Personnel which may have a potential conflict with the interests of the
Company at large. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval of
Independent Directors of the Company and the Board for approval, if required. The Company has taken
necessary approvals as and when required as per the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, as
the case may be. The details of the transactions entered into, at arms length basis and in the ordinary
course of business, with the Related Parties are stated in the notes to accounts, and also in Form AOC-2 as
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 which is annexed herewith “ Annexure-11".

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR).
In terms of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors have
constituted as Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and adopted a CSR policy,

The Company formulated and adopted a CSR policy which provides the focus areas (in accordance with
Schedule VII of the Act) under which various developmental initiatives are undertaken.




14.

15.

The composition of the CSR Commitiee, CSR policy and projects / programs approved by the Board are

available on the website of the company at, www aonesteclgroup.com.

The details of the constitution of the CSR Committee along with the details of the meetings held during
the financial year i.e. 2024-25 are also provided in the Corporate Governance Report which are also
annexed with this report.

The Annual Report on CSR activities for the financial year 2024-25 as required under the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 has been appended as “Annexure-III" and forms
integral part of this Report.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

All the Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they meet the criteria prescribed for
independence under the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and continue to comply with the Code of Conduct laid down under Schedule IV of
the Act.

The Board has assessed the veracity of the confirmations submitted by the Independent Directors and
thereafter has taken the same on record. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their
status as Independent Directors of the company. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors
are competent, experienced, proficient and possess necessary expertise and integrity to discharge their
duties and functions as Independent Directors. The names of all Independent Directors are included in
the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs,

In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors are independent of the management.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws , evaluation of
performance of every Director, Board and the Chairman was carried out by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. The Chairman of the respective committees reviewed the performance of the
respective committees. The performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole,
Committees thereof and Chairman of the Company was also carried out by the Independent Directors
through a separate meeting of the Independent Directors. Evaluation of Independent Directors was
carried out by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the Director being evaluated. The evaluation was
carried out on the basis of response of the Directors to a structured questionnaire covering various

aspects of Board performance such as Board composition and expertise, Board oversight, strategy and




direction, Corporate Governance and Board administration and inputs shared by the Directors at the
meeting.

16. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

SL PARTICULARS DISCLOSURE
No.
(A) | Conservation of Energy: The Emnergy conservation continues to

i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of | receive priority attention at all levels. All
energy efforts are made to conserve and optimize

use of energy with continuous monitoring,

if) The steps taken by the company for utilizing | improvement in maintenance through
alternate sources of energy improved operational techniques.

iii) The  capital investment on  energy

conservation equipments

(B) Technology Absorption: Updation of Technology is a Continuous

process; cfforts are continuously made to

(i) The eHorts made towards technology | develop new products required in the
absorption; Company’s activities.

NA

(i) The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution.

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported

during the last three years reckoned from Nil

the beginning of the financial year).

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and

Development. bl

17. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: (amount in Lakhs)




Particulars As on 31.03.2025 As on 31.03.2024
Foreign Exchange Earming 504353 5348.01
Foreign Exchange Outgo 39695.29 55523.71

18. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES;

The Board comprises following Directors as on 31/03/2025:

SL.No. | Name of the Director Designation

01. Sandeep Kumar Managing Director

02. Sunil Jallan Chairman and Whole-Time |
Director

03. Uma Shankar Goyanka Whole-Time Director

04 Krishan Singh Barguzar | Independent Director

05 Kamaldeep Singh Independent Director

06 Jeevika Poddar Independent Director

Following are the changes in compaosition of Beard of Directors during the financial year:

Name of the | Designation Date of event Nature of change
Director
Manoj Kumar Director 12 June 2024 Resignation

Krishan  Singh | Independent director | 23+ December 2024 Appointment
Barguzar
Kamaldeep Singh | Independent director | 23 December 2024 Appointment
Jeevika 'oddar Independent director | 23 December 2024 Appointment
Sunil Jallan Chairman and Whole- | 24% December 2024 Change in Designation

Time Diirector

Sandeep Kumar | Managing Director 24 December 2024 Change in Designation
Uma Shankar | Whole-Time Director | 24'" December 2024 Change in Designation
Goyanka
Krishan  Singh | Independent director | 24 December 2024 | Change in Designation
Barguzar

| Kamaldeep Singh | Independent director | 24 December 2024 Change in Designation
Jeevika Poddar Independent director | 24 December 2024 Change in Designation




Mr. Sunil Jallan and Mr. Uma Shankar Goyanka the director(s) liable to be retiring by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for the re-appointment.

Details regarding the appointment of director as the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings (“55-2"), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
approved by the Central Government are provided as part of notice to the AGM.

Key Managerial Personnel:
Key Managerial Personnel Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key
Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company are:

51. No, | Name of the KMP Position held in the company

01 “Saurabh Jindal Chief Financial Officer |

02 Pooja Sara Nagaraja Company Secretary & |
Compliance Officer ]

Nir. Saurabh Jindal appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 04.09.2024.

Committees and their Constitution:

As required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBl (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board had formed/ reconstituted following Committees :
Stakeholders” Relationship Committee
Audit Commitiee

-

=)

Nomination and Remuneration Committes

3
4, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

5. Risk Management Committee

6. PO Committee

7. POSH Committee
The details of membership of the Committees are disclosed in Corporate Governance Report which
forms part of Board's Report. Even though Corporate Governance report is applicable only to the listed
companies, our company is in the process of [PO, for better compliances we are attaching Corporate
Governance Report, to the extent possible, as additional Annexure IV. Keeping in view the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to the extent possible as amended from time to time, the Board

reviews the Terms of Reference of these Committees and the nomination of Board Members to various
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Commitiees. The recommendations, if any, of these Committees are submitted to the Board for
approval

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS:

During the year, the Company has paid remuneration to following directors

Sl No Name of the Direclor Remuneration
01 Sunil Jallan == Rs. 12 Lakhs Per Month

02 Sandeep Kumar Rs. 10 Lakhs Per Month o
03 Uma Shankar Goyanka Rs. 1.5 Lakhs Per Month

During the year, the Company has paid remuneration to following Non-executive directors

51 No Name of the Director Sitting Fees

01 Krishan Singh Barguzar | Rs. 5,00,000/-
0z Kamaldeep Singh Rs. 3,50,000/ -
03 Jeevika Poddar Rs. 5,00,000/-

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is to ensure that the remuneration is in line
with best comparable market practices, as well as competitive vis-a-vis that of comparable companies
both in India and other international markets, which will have a motivating effect to act as a driving force
to ensure long term availability of talent and also retention of the best talents. A brief description about
the Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration,
including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and other
related matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 are previded in the Corporate
Governance Report, which forms part of the Board’s Report annexed as Annexure-IV.

As specified above that the disclosure in terms of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 pertaining to the
Corporate Governance is not applicable to yvour company. Even though Corporate Governacne report is
applicable only to the listed companies, our company is in the process of IPO, for better compliances we
are attaching Corporate Governance Report and disclosing the necessary informatiori, o the extent
possible to possible, as additional Annexure IV. ‘

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website at URL

* www. aonesteelgroup.com.
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CORPORATE COVERNANCE:

Company places utmost importance on its fidudary role as a guardian of stakeholders’ interest and
strives to achieve a mutually aligned objective of value and wealth creation for all interested parties, The
Board and the Management humbly acknowledges this role and continues to propagate this belief
through all layers of the organization to create an environment of accountability and trust. These
responsibilities continue to be the focus of its attention through the tumultuous ride along the path of
expansion, ensuring the highest standards of ethics and integrity in all ils business dealings while
avoiding potential conflicts of interest. The result of this is a corporate structure which serves its ever
expanding business needs while maintaining transparency and adherence to the above stated beliets.

As specified above that the disclosure in terms of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 pertaining to the
Corporate Governance is not applicable to your company. Even though Corporate Governacne report is
applicable only to the histed companies, our company is in the process of IPO, for better compliances we
are attaching Corporate Governance Report and disclosing the necessary information, to the extent
possible to disclose, as additional Annexure IV,

During the Financial year 2024-25, there were 26 Board Meetings held on the following dates:

Sl Date of Total Number of i Attendance
N eti directors associated ' e ——————_
= TR i S Number of directors U of attendance
the date of meeting Attediad
1 02.04.2024 4 4 100
2 03.04.2024 1 [ 2 50
3 25.04.2024 4 ' z | 50 [ G )
3 06.05 2024 3 2 50
5 20.05.2024 1 2 50
6 20.05.2024 1 2 50
7 05.06.2024 4 [ 2 50
8 12.06.2024 1 2 50
9 20.06.2024 3 2 66,67
10 02072024 | = 3 == 2 66.67
11 02.07 2024 3 2 66,67
12 13.07 2024 3 2 .67




13 20.07.2024 3 2 66.67
14 21.08.2024 3 2 66.67
15 29.08.2024 3 2 66.67
16 04.09.2024 3 2 66.67
17 26.09.2024 3 2 66.67
18 28.00.2024 3 2 66.67
19 13.11.2024 3 2 66.67
20 04.12.2024 3 2 66.67
21 73122024 3 3 100
22 23122024 | o b 100
n 28122024 6 4 66.67
24 30.12.2024 6 6 100
25 07.02.2025 6 B 100
2% 08.03.2025 6 3 100

LDuring the financial year following Committees meeting held on the following dates:

Type of Date of Total Number of members Attendance
commiltee meeting associated as on the date of T (7o Ty v
meeting members

l Attended
CS5R 02/04/2024 | 03 a3 100
Committee
Audit 23/12/2024 | 03 a3 100
Committee
Nomination 23/12/2024 | 03 (151 100
and
Remuneration
Commilttee
Audit 28/12/2024 |03 03 100
Committee
PO 30/12/2024 | 04 o 04 100
Committee
POSH 13/01/2025 | 4 04 100
Committee




Audit 07/02/2025 | 03 03 100
Commiltee
Audit

Committee

CSR

08/03/2025 | 14 04 100

35/03/2025 | 03 03 100
Committee
Stakeholders
Relationship
Commiltee
Risk
Management
Committee

31/03/2025 | 03 02 66.67

3/03/2025 | 03 02 66.67

23. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

The Company has given loans, the investment made and guarantee given under Section 186 of the
companies Act, 2013 is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and the details as follows;

{Amount in Lakhs)
SINo | Name of the Company ‘Nature of | Number of shares | Investment D
Transactions be allotted Amount
) JGuarantee
Investments 1,51,60,166 850,08
; Vanya Steels Private 1.imited - Cnrporate = 16360.00
subsidiary company Guarantee
E AOne Gold Steels India | Investments 49,999 5.00
Private Limited - Wholly
Owned subsidiary company
3 A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes | Investments 49,999 5.00
Private  Limited-  Wholly
Owned subsidiary company
Corporate - 11850.00
Guarantee
- Loan given s 1154.01
1 A One Gold Singapore Pte Ltd | Investments 1000 (.56
5 *Vyshali  Energy  Private | Investments 22,000 2.20
Linuted
6 *Radiance KA Sunshine Five | Investments 1,27 40,000 1274.00
Private Limited




7 “Radiance KA Sunshine Six | [nvestments 47,60,000 476.00
Private Limited

8 *FP Suraj Private Limited Investments 56,00,000 560.00

9 *Atria Wind Power (Bijapur | Investments 2,69,675 597.28
1)Private Limited o

10 *Green Infra Clean Solar | Investments 73,50,000 73500
Energy Limited

11 *Green  Infra Clean Wind | Investments 1.88,52,000 1885.20

L= Power Limited 3

12 *Atria Wind Power Private | Investments 75,543 197.92
Limited

13 *Blyth Wind Park Private | Investments 26,10,375 522.08
Limited I _

14 *Egan Solar Private Limited Investments 3,329,000 160.00

15 *FPEL Celestical Private | Investments 840,000 84.00
Limited _

16 “Ananthapur Energy Projects | Investments 56,31,811 563,18
Private Limited -

17 *Isharays Energy One Private | Investments 40,00,000 400.00
Limited

18 ***Basai Steels and Power | Investments 45,50,00,000 4550.00
Private Limited

*In order to establish a captive consumption ownership structure in accordance with the provisions of
Electricity Rules, 2005, company has invested the amount in the Equity Share capital of Vyshali Energy
Private Limited, Radiance KA Sunshine Five Private Limited, Radiance KA Sunshine Six Private Limited,
FP Suraj Private Limited, Atria Wind Power (Bijapur 1) Private Limited, Green Infra Clean Solar Energy
Limited and Creen Infra Clean Wind Power Limited, Atria Wind Power Private Limited, Blyth Wind
Park Private Limited, Egan Solar Private Limited, FPEL Celestical Private Limited, Ananthapur Energy
Projects Private Limited and Isharays Energy One Private Limited.

**Company has transferred 45000 Equity Shares of Rs. 221 48/- aggregating of Rs. 99,66,600/- of Atria
Wind Power (Bijapur 1) Private Limited in favor of Vanya Steels Private Limited on 08.03.2025.

*** Resolution Plan submitted by Prem Enterprises (“Resolution Applicant”) for the acquisition of Basai
Steels and Power Private Limited (“Basai Steels”) was duly approved by the Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad
Bench, on 13.04.2018 (“Approved Resolution Plan”) under Section 31 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016, read with Regulation 37 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India (Insolvency
Resolution Process for Corporate Persons) Regulations, 2016 and 45,50,00,000 (Forty-Five Crore Fifty
Lakh) equity shares of Rs. 1/- each allotted to A-One Steels India Limited (Formerly known as "A-One
Steels India Private Limited" and "A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited") -Strategic Investor on
23.11.2024.

24. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that:



25,

(@) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to the material departures;

(b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the

Company for the year under review.

(C) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

(&) The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

(f)  The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. The Company has
complied all the applicable Secretarial Standard issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India

(ICST).

b, RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has been addressing various risks impacting the Company. In today’s challenging and
competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of
the Company are imperative.

The common risks inter alia are: Regulations, competition, Business risk, Technology obsolescence,
Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. It also includes exchange risk as the
transactions takes place among foreign countries. Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial risk,
political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk. As a malter of policy, these risks are assessed and steps as

appropriate are taken to mitigate the same.
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The company has also constituted Risk Management Committee. The disclosure pertaining to the terms
of reference of the committee along with the constitution and other information is provided in the
Corporate Governance Report of the Company which are also attached and forming a part of this report

HUMAN RESOURCES:

The management has always carried out systematic appraisal of performance and imparted training at
periodic intervals. The company has always recognized talent and has judiciously followed the principle
of rewarding performance.

28. REMUNERATION POLICY:

The Company is covered under the provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 The
remuneration policy as adopted by the Company envisages payment of remuneration according to
qualification, experience and performance at different levels of the organization. The employees who are
engaged in clerical, administrative and professional services are suitably remunerated according to the
industry norms. The Remuneration Policy is available on the Company’s website at

www.aonesteelgroup.com.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for
directors and employees in confirmation with Section 177 (9) of the companies act 2013 read with Rule
7(1)(b) of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules 2014 to report concerns about unethical
behavior. The policy of vigil mechanism is available on the Company's website at
www.aonesteelgroup.com.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:
The Company has laid down a system of internal financial controls with reference to its financial

statements. The integrity and reliability of the internal control systems are achieved through clear policies
and procedures, process automation, training and development of employees, and an organization
structure that segregates responsibilities. These controls are reviewed and tested by the internal audit
team to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the preparation of reliable

financial statements.

The internal financial controls of the Company with respect to the financial statements are adequate and
are operating effectively.
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All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management. The Company is

following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining books of accounts and
reporting financial statements.

31. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL

HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT

WORKPLACE

{(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place a prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the requirements of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An
Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual

harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.
During the year 2024-25, no complaints were received by the Company related to sexual harassment.
The delails of the sexual harassment cases received, disposed of and pending are given below:-

Number of Sexual | Number of Sexual | Number of Sexual | Number of Sexual | Number of
Harassment Cases | Harassment cases | Harassment cases | Harassment cases | Sexual
pending in the | received during | disposed off | pending for more | Harassment
beginning of the | the Financial year | during the | than ninety days | cases pending
Financial Year | 2024-25 Financial year at the end of
i.e/01.04.2024 2024-25 Financial year
2024-25
0 0 0 0 0

32. DISCLOSURE FOR MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS PER SECTION 148(1):

The Company is maintaining the books of accounts and other related records as per rules prescribed by
the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013

» THE

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING

PENDING UNDER THE

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH

THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

There is no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2012 as on 31st March, 2025,

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME

OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE

BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF:
As on 31st March 2025, the Company did not enter into any transaction for One Time Settlement of
loan/borrowings from Bank.




The company has complied with the provisions relating to the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.

« PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

During the year under review, the Company had no employees who earned remuneration beyond the
limits specified under Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016.
The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of top 10 employees of the Company is

detailed as under:

Sl | Name | Designat | Relatio | qualificati | the age | Nature | Date of | the Remunera
N | of the | ion n with | ons and | of such | of Employ | percent | tion (Per
o | Emplo any experienc | employ | Employ | ment age of | Month)
yee directo | e of the | eg; ment equity | (Amount
r of the | employee; shares | in Rs.)
compa held by
ny the
employ
ee in
the
compan
y —=]
01 | Sunil Chairma | Brothe | Qualificat | 52 Full Time | 09/04/20 | 30.29% | Rs.
Jallan n and |r of | ion- Years Employe | 12 12,00,000/
Whole- | Manag | Graduate £ e
Time ing Experienc
Director | Directo | €-25 years
T
02 | Sandee | Managin | Brothe | Qualificat | 48 Full Time | 09/04/20 | 3281% | Rs.
p 5 r of | ion- Years | Employe | 12 10,00,000/
Kumar | Director | Chair | Graduate e -
man Experienc
and E-Elyeal".i
Whole-
Time
Directo
r
03 | Preeti | Manager | - Qualificat | 42 year | Full Time | 17/02/20) | - Rs.
Srivast | -Finance ion-CA Employe | 25 2,16,667 /-
ava & Experienc @
Account e-22 years
5
4 | Deepa | Manager | - Qualificat | 53 Full Time | 01/04/20 | - Rs.
k ion- years Employe | 24 2,00,000/-
Gupta Graduate 8
Experienc
e-25 years
05 | Manoj | Presiden | - Qualificat | 48 year | Full Time | 01/08/20 | - Rs,




Kumar |t FPlant ion- Employe | 18 2,00,000/ -
Incharge Graduate e
Experienc
cowm €-25 years
06 | NM Presiden Qualificat | 59 year | Full Time | 02/06/20 Rs.
Rajend |t Project ion- Employe | 19 2,00,000/ -
ran Sales Graduate e
Experienc
e-36 years )
07 | Amit Sales Qualificat | 39 Full Time | 01/08/20 Rs.
Vikram | Head- ion-Post | years | Employe |24 1,50,000/-
™T Graduate e
Retails Experienc
e-16 years _
08 | Saurab | Chief Qualificat | 31 year | Full Time | 05/09/20 Ks.
h Financial ion-CA Employe | 24 . 1,50,000/ -
Jindal | Officer Experienc e
e-8 years
09 | Sriniva | VP Qualificat | 33 year | Full Time | 01/09/20 Rs.
sa Rao | Technica ion- Employe |17 1,50,000/ -
Pothin | | Diploma e
a Experienc
e-18 vears
10 | Sohil Presiden Qualificat | 47 year | Full Time | 01/05/20 Rs.
Dattani | t ion- Employe | 21 1,32,000/-
Marketin Graduate e
8 Experienc
e-28 years |

37. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)
During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to the Investor Education

38.

39.

and Protection Fund (LEPF), as per the requirements of the [EPF Rules.

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for all its Senior Management Personnel and Directors
and the same is affirmed by all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel as required under
Regulation 34 read with Part D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A declaration signed by Mr. Sandeep Kumar, Managing Director of the
Company affirming the compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the financial year

2024-25 has been annexed as part of this Report.

AUDITORS:
i) STATUTORY AUDITORS:



M/s. Singhi & Co, Chartered Accountants, Bangalore (FRN: 302049E), were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the company at the 9 Annual general Meeting of the company held on 30.11.2021 for
the period of 5 years and to hold office until the conclusion of the 14 Annual General Meeting.

AUDITOR’S REPORT: The Auditors’ have issued an unqualified Report for the year ended 31+
March 2025 and hence, do not call for any comments from the management under Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Further, the Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as
specified under Section 143({12) of the Act.

Following are reported in the Standalone Auditor's Report:

1. Point No 2 (iv)(j} of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: Based on our
examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
However, we found that the audit trail at the database level is editable.

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention for the entire period from April 1, 2023 except that the audit
trail retention at the database level is available only from April 12, 2023, and at the application
level only from October 2023

Management Reply: The marginal delay was due to the reason that as this is being the first year
of implementation due to which the integration and upgradation of the new software for audit
trail with the existing accounting software takes some time for proper implementation. The same
is now properly implemented and integrated. Hence, maintenance of Audit Trail remains duly
compiled and implemented by all operational units as on date.

2. Point ii(b) of the Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report:

b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in
aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions during the year on the basis of security
of current assets of the Company. The company has filed quarterly returns or statements
with such banks, which are in agreement with the books of accounts other than as set out
below :

Quarter | Aggregate | Amount | Amountas | Amountas | Amount | Reasons for




working utilised | per books | reported in of material
capital during the | of account | the quarterly | difference | discrepancies(h)
limits quarter(b) (<) return/ {e)
sanctioned(a) statement(d)
June
2024 36,500.00 29,632 .40 54465 94 55,158.10 (692.16) Refer Note
September :
2024 36,500.00 3185491 | 47,059.55 46,896.92 162.63 Refer Note
December
2024 36,500.00 31,491.51 49,190.12 49,763.19 (573.07) Refer Note
March
2025 39,250.00 31,81031 | 50,187.00 50,677.98 (490.99) Refer Note

Management Reply:

The differences are on account of statement filed with the banks prepared based on
provisional basis and regrouping of various ledgers.
While arriving the drawing power the creditors are adjusted from bank balances
available as on respective quarters.
The Company has a practice of submitting position of debtors, advances to suppliers,

inventory and deducting creditors, advance from customers, Unsecured Bills Discounted
with RXIL & Poonawala Fincorp and LC payable. Therefore for comparing with the
books of accounts the same practice has been followed to arrive at the net position
though there is a change in classification in the financial statements

3. Point No vii(b) of the Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report: According to the
information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by us, the

statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate

authoribies on account of dispute are as follows: -




Name of Amount Pﬂ:imt ** | Eorum where A.mnunt NS I,
Nature of - which the s .. | deposited
the W e (Rs. in Mgt the dispute is
statute Lakhs) i pending
Appeal has been filed
with First Appellate
Authority (CIT
Appeals) and
Lo AY2010-11 F";‘ﬂ;‘;‘f’%‘““’ Pending with High
| Income Tax | 7,681.18 | to AY2023- e Pitch Assessment
Tax Act, 24 High Pitched ottt aibe
1961 Assessment :
NII. The pending amount
includes interest
accruing on demand
also.
An appeal has been
Goods filed on 04/11/2021
and FY2017-18 Deputy against the said
Services Appeal 69.44 and Cnmm]:“m“w Order before the
Tax Act, FY2019-20 Appellate Authority
2017 253 and the same is under
adjudication.
Ana has been
Goods filed on 03/05/2025
and FY2017-18 i against the said
Services | , 5 | 3381 | toFyaome. | Additional Order before the
Tax Act, 20 Appellate Authority
207 31.54 and the same is under
A - adjudication.
An appeal has been
filed on 25/04/2025
G:n"';"" " against the said
3 5 Joint Order before the
f."' ISES | Nasesmmet | T || TRHARIR | o ctoaionier Appellate Authority
ax Act, :
2017 and the same is under
3740 adjudication.
Goods Reply is filed on
and - FY2017-18 10/10,/2024 further
Services | ment | 6290 and Superintendent NIL no communication by
Tax Act, FY2022-23 GST Department.
2017
Goods Reply is filed on
and 20/12/2023 further
Services | , ST 1912 | Fy202021 |  Depuby Nl it by
Assessment director
Tax Act, NIL GST Department
2017 -
Goods An appeal has been
and GST . Assistant filed on 04/ 04 /2025
Services | Assessment | 117 | FY2021-22 | iccioner against the said
Tax Act, Order before the




2017 Appellate Authority
6.15 and the same is under
adjudication.
= [ An appeal has been
Goods filed on 03 /07 /2023
and : ; against the said
Services sev’jh“:;:f 126 | FY2023-24 le‘i‘g:i“m Order before the
Tax Act, ) Appellate Authority
27 1.26 and the same is under
b adjudication.
An appeal has been
Good filed on 26/05/2025
and against the said
g Seizure of Deputy State Order before the
SaVESS | “yenice | R | FYMB | g Oficer Appellate Authority
Tax Act, 5
2017 4.48 and the same is under
adjudication.
| An appeal has been
Goods filed on 14/10/2024
and ; : against the said
Services | Tyooe | 584 | FY202425 .. Order before the
Tax Act, s Appellate Authonity
2017 and the same is under
= 3 adjudication.

Management Reply: The respective reply, for each point, is provided in the last column in the
above table.

Following are reported in the Consolidated Auditor's Report:

Point No 2 (iv)(i) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

Based on our examination, which included test checks and that performed by the respective auditors
of the subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been

audited under the Act, the Group, have used accounting software for maintaining their books of
account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except for the following
instances:

i. In two subsidiaries, at the database level, in case of certain accounting software, the audit trail is
editable.

ii. In one of the subsidiary audit trial feature was only enabled and operated from September 26,
2024, to March 31, 2025




During the course of performing our procedures and that performed by the respective auditors of
the subsidiary, except for the aforesaid instances of audit trail not maintained where the question of
our commenting on whether the audit trail feature has been tampered with does not arise, we and
the respective auditors of the above referred subsidiary did not notice any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with.

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the group as per the statutory requirements for
record retention for the entire period from April 1, 2023 except that
a) in case of three entities the audit trail retention at the database level is available only from April
12, 2023, and at the application level only from October 2023.
b) i one of the entity the audit trail has not been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention for the period from April 1, 2024, to September 25, 2024

Management Reply:

A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited and Vanya Steels Private Limited the audit trail is
editable. As specified in the herein above, initially software was in the implementation stage.
Hence, for short period it was editable. As on the date audit trial is in uneditable version.

One of the Subsidiary company A-One Gold Steels India Private Limited audit trial feature was
only enabled and operated from September-26, 2024, to March 31, 2025 and audit trail has not been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention for the period
from April 1, 2024, to September 25, 2024. This company is not having any operations. Hence, there
was no requirement of Audit Trial. However, for belter compliances, maintenance of Audit Trail

remains duly compiled and implemented by all operational units as on date.

A-One Steels India Limited, Vanya Steels Private Limited and A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private
Limited the audit trail retention at the database level is available only from April 12, 2023, and at
the application level only from October 2023 because the marginal delay was due to the reason that
as this is being the first year of implementation due to which the integration and upgradation of
the new software for audit trail with the existing accounting software takes some time for proper
implementation. The same is now properly implemented and integrated. Hence, maintenance of
Audit Trail remains duly compiled and implemented by all operational units as on date. Company
ensures compliance with audit trail requirements and implemented internal controls and system
configurations that prevent unauthorized editing of audit trails.



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT:
Paragraph 3(xxi) pf the CARO 2020, auditors report of the following companies has given
qualification or adverse remarks in their CARO report on the standalone/consolidated financial
statement of the respective companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the

FParent Company:
S |Name of (CIN Relationshi ate  of |Paragraph  Management Reply
| |the Entities p with the spective umber in
: Parent uditor’s ¢
N company pective
o ARO
. L rts
1 | AOne U28999KA2 | Parent 01.08.2025 [ 3(ii)b) & | Reply 3(ii)(b}: Reply
Steels 012PTCo634 Company 3wii)(b) stated above.
India 39 Hvii)b) : Reply Reply
Limited stated above.
2 | Vanya U74999KA2 | Subsidiar 01.08.2025 3(ii)(b), Management Reply:
Steels 005PTCI255 |y 3vii)(b) & | 2GiMDb) : The differences
are on account of
Private 78 Company 3{xvii) statement filed with the
provisional basis and
regrouping of various
ledgers.
i. While arriving the
drawing  power the
creditors are  adjusted
from  bank balances

available as on respective
quarters and net debtors
submitted to bank after
excluding more than %0

days.

iti. The Company has a
practice of submitting net
position of  debtors,
advances to suppliers,
inventory and deducting
creditors, advance from
customers, Unsecured
Bills Discounted with
EXIL. Therefore for
comparing  with  the
books of accounts the
same practice has been
followed to arrive at the




net position though there
i a change in
classification in  the
financial statements.
3(vii)(b): *Reply
mentioned as per below
table

3xvii-Reply: Increase in
cost of materials and
other expenses like
electricity charges and
labour cost, there is a
cash  losses  during
financial years. Company
is taking necessary action
for the same.

A-One
Gold

Pipes and
Tubes

Limited

U27200KA2
020PTC1398

Subsidiar
y
Company

01.08.2025

Hii)(b) &

3(xvii)

Reply-3(ii)(b): (i) The
differences  are on
account of statement filed
with the banks prepared
based on provisienal
basis and regrouping of
various ledgers.

(i) While arriving the
drawing  power the
creditors  are  adjusted
from bank balances
available as on respective
quarters and net debtors
submitted to bank after
excluding more than 90
days.

{iii)The Company has a
practice of submitting net
position of  debtors,
advances to suppliers,
inventory and deducting
creditors, advance from
customers. Therefore for
comparing  with  the
books of accounts the
same practice has been
followed to arrive at the
net position though there
is a change in
classification in  the
financial statements.

Reply-3(xvii): Increase in
cost of materials and




other expenses like
electricity charges and
labour cost, there is a
cash  losses  during
financial years. Company
is taking necessary action
for the same.

4 A-One
Gold

India
Private
Limited

U27300KA2

Subsidiar
020PTC1377 |y
Company

01.08.2025

Ffxvii)

Reply-3(xvii): company
is yel to start its
operations. Hence, there
is a cash losses, However,
Company is laking
necessary action for the

Same.

*Management Reply:

Name of the
Statute

Nature of

Amount
the dues i

{Rs.in
Lakhs)

Period
which
amount
relates

to

Forum
where
dispute is
| pending

Amount
Deposited

Management
Reply

The Income-
Tax Act, 1961

Income tax | 24.79

Asspssment

FY18-19

Commission
er of Income
Tax

Nil An appeal has
been filed with
Commissioner
of Income Tax
on 14.05.2022
and same is
pending.

T’he In'c-irme—
Tax Act, 1961

Income  tax | 1.80

Assessment

FY19-20

Centralized
Processing
Centre
(Income Tax)

Nil As current
demand belongs
to normal
rectification
done by Income
Tax department
on the return
files in past
year. We will
contest the same
against
appropriate
authority

The Income-
Tax Act, 1961

Income tax | 2.36
Assessment

FY22-23

Centralized
Processing
Centre
(Income Tax)

Nil As current
demand
belongs tor
normal
rectification
done by
Income  Tax




department on
the return files
in past year.
We will contest
the same
against
appropriate
authority

Goods and
Services Tax
Act, 2017

Appeal

84445

FY17-18

Deputy
Commission
ar

1.58

An appeal has
been filed
against the said
Order  before
the Appellate
Authority and
the same is
under
adjudication.

Goods  and
Services Tax
Act, 2017

Appeal

33.28

FY18-19

Deputy
Commission
er

3798

An appeal has
been filed
against the said
Order  before
the Appellate
Authority  and
the same s
under
adjudication.

Services Tax
Act, 2017

Goods and

 Appeal

90.53

FY19-20

Deputy
Commission
er

4.59

An appeal has
been filed
against the said
Order  before
the Appellate
Authority and
the same is
under

adjudication.

Goods  and
Services Tax
Act, 2017

Appeal

4.63

FY23-24

Jont
Commission
er

462

An appeal has
been filed
apgainst the said
Order  before
the Appellate
Authority and
the same is
under
adjudication.

ii) INTERNAL AUDITOR:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 M/s. Vishnudaya & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN: DOB456N /S200092) were




(i)

appointed as Internal Auditor of the company. The Auditors have issued an unqualified Report for
the year ended 31* March 2025.

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT: The Auditors have issued an unqualified Report for the year ended
31 March 2025,

iii) COST AUDITOR:
The Board has approved the appointment of M/s. Vishwanath Bhat & Co, Cost Accountants (FRN:

100509) as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2025-26 at a remuneration Rs.
80,000 plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses payable to the Cost Auditors in connection
with the Cost Audit.

The Board of Directors of the company proposes the ratification of remuneration of -M/s.
Vishwanath Bhat & Co, Cost Accountants (FRN: 100509) for the Financial Year 2025-26 at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting,.

COST AUDIT REPORT: The Auditors have issued an unqualified Report for the year ended 31+
March 2025.

iv) SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appomtment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed
CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva, Company Secretary in Practice (Membership No. F12205 and COP No.
18667), as Secretarial Auditor of the company for F.Y 2024-25 and received the report from them.
The Board proposed to appoint CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva, Company Secretary in Practice
(Membership No. F12205 and COP No. 18667), as Secretarial Auditor of the company for next 5
Financial Years from F.Y 2025-26 to F.Y 2029-2030 in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

The Report of the secretarial audit as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
annexed as Annexure-V.

The Auditors have issued an unqualified Report for the vear ended 31 March 2025.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUD REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 OTHER THAN THOSE REPORTABLE TO CENTRAL
GOVERNMENT:

Not applicable.



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your directors take this opportunity to thank its Bankers for their support in the growth of the Company.
Your directors wish to acknowledge with gratitude the patronage extended to the Company by the large
body of its customers and contribution made by the emplovees at all levels and look forward to their

dedicated commitment in the years to come towards the Company reaching greater heights.
Finally, Directors would like to convey their deep sense of gratitude to the members and look forward to

their continued support in the growth of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board
FOR A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED

Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor Address: Tower-3-39B, 39th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces SNN Clermont, outer ring road

Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024  Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 01.08.2025
Place: Bangalore



Declaration on Code of Conduct

I'o,

The Company Secretary

A-One Steels India Limited

A One House No.326, COAL Layout,
Ward No. 08, Sahakara Nagar,
Bengaluru, Karnataka 560092

Dear Sir/ Madam,

I, Mr. Sandeep Kumar Managing Director hereby confirm that for the vear under review ie. 2024-25, all
the directors and members of the senior management of the Company, have affirmed compliance with

the said codes, as-ayp

icable to them.

Designation. Managing Director
Place: Bangalore
Date: 01.08.2025



Limited)

Lakhs)

e-FORM NO. AOC.1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiariés/associate companiesfjoint ventures
(Pursuant to first provise to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with
rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Name of the Company : A-One Steels India Limited (Formerly known as
A-One Steels India Private Limited and A-One Steel and Alloys Private

Part "A": Subsidi
(Information in respect of cach subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.

1. Number of Subsidiaries: (5

Annexure-I

CIN/ any
other
registrati
on
number
of

subsidiary
company

U74999K A 2005
PTC125578

U27300KA2020
PTCI137708

U27200KA2020
PTC139870

202134892E

U27109TG2002
PTCO38411

Name of the
subsidiary

Vanya Steels
Private
Limited

A-One Gold
Steels India
Private
Limited

A-One Gold
Pipes and
Tubes Private
Limited

A One
Gold
Singapore
Pte Ltd
(USD)

Basai Steels
and Power
Private
Limited

Date since
when
subsidiary
was acquired

27/03/2017

16/09/2020

16/10/2020

06,/10/2021

23/11/2024

Provisions
pursuant
to which
the
company

has become a
subsidia
l'}"

(Section
2(87)(i)/Section
2(87)(ii))

Section
2(87)(ii)

Section
2(87)(1i)

Section
2(87)(ii)

Section
2(87)(ii)

Section
2(87)(ii)




02

Reporting
period for the
subsidiary
concerned, if
different from
the holding
company's
reporting
period

From April 01,
2024 to March
31, 2025

From April 01,
2024 to March
31, 2025

From April 01,
2024 to March
31, 2025

From April
01, 2024 to
March 31,
2025

From Apmnl 01,
2024 to March
31, 2025

Reporting
currency and
Exchange rate
as on the last
date of the
relevant
financial year
in the case of
foreign
subsidiaries.

INR

INR

INR

usD

Exchange
Rate: Rs.
855814

INR

Share capital

1584.14

5.00

5.00

0.56

6500.00

G| B

Reserve and
Surplus (other
Equity)

8447 40

(1651)

(4814.01)

2119.91

Total assets

36797 86

6.61

S| F

Total
Liabilities

26766.32

27243.17

3343.77

12526.39

1812

3205216

2635.92

390648

Investments

144.68

196

0

Turnover

44732.07

0.00

36889.29

12524.74

S| 8|8

Profit before
taxalion

(1213.34)

(217)

(2633.69)

(219.22)

(540.34)

11

Provision for
taxation

(228.06)

(0.02)

106.84

0

Profit after
taxation

(985.27)

(2.15)

(2740.53)

(219.22)

(540.34)

13

Proposed
Dividend

0

Q0

14

b ﬂf
shareholding

§5.70

100

100

100

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

2. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NA
3. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. NA




Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to
Associate Companies and Joint Ventures -
4 Number of Associate / Joint Venture: 03

r

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Namel |Name2 |Name3
1. Name of Associate/deint-Venture Radiance [Radiance [FP Suraj
KA KA Private
Sunshine  Sunshine  [Limited
Five PrivateSix Private
. Limited Limited
2. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 531/03/202531/03/202531/03/2025
3. Date on which the Associate erJoint- 07/12/202125/08/202207/02/2022
Venture was associated or acquired
4. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by
the company on the vear end )
A. Number 12740000 W760000 5600000
B. Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint 1274.00 #76.00 560.00
Venture-Amount in Lakhs
C. Extent of Holding % 26% 26Y% 26%
5. Description of how there is significant As reason  |As reason  |As reason
influence provided injprovided in jprovided in |
the Board’s fthe Board's [the Board's
Report [Report Report .
6. Reason why the associate/joint venture is  |As reason  |As reason [As reason |
not consolidated provided inprovided in provided in
the Board’s [the Board's [the Board's
Report [Report Report
7. Net worth aitributable to Shareholding as  [Not Not Not
per latest audited Balance Available |Available, |Available
Sheet
8 Profit / Loss for the year
A. Considered in Consolidation Not Not Not
Available |Available |Available
B. Not Considered in Consolidation Not Not Not
Available [Available |Available

Number of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.-0

Sl No

CIN/Any other registration number

Names of

Associates and
joint ventures which are
yet to commence
operations

Number of associates or joinl ventures which have been liquidated or sold

during the year- 0




SINo CIN/Any other registration number Names of Associates and
joint ventures which are
yet to commence
operations

Naote: This Form is o be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is
to be certified.

On Behalf of the Board
= HH{ A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED

M ND' A52495

Date: 01.08.2025
Place: Bangalore




e-FORM AOC -2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arms length transactions under fourth proviso thereto [Pursuant to
clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Company: A-One Steels India Limited (Formerly known as A-One Steels
India Private Limited and A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. : NA
*Number of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis:0

8 Z=w

Corporat | Name Nature | Nature | Durati | Salient Just | Dat | Amo | Date | SRN
e (s) of of of on of |termsofthe |[ific |eof |unt |on of
identity | the Relation | contrac | 0 contracts or | atio | app | paid | whic | MG
number | related | ship ts/arran contrac | @¥rangement | n rov | as h T-14
(CIN)or | party gement s Or for |al adva | the
foreign gfirans ty/arran transactions | ent | by | nces, | resol
company action | Bement | jncluding erin | the | if utio
registrati sftrans | actual / g |[Boa|any |n

on action | expected into | rd was
number contractual | suc pass
(FCRN) amourit h ed

or ) con in
Limited trac gene
Liability ts ral
Partners or meet

hip arra ing
number nge as
(LLPIN) me requ

or nis ired
Foreign or und
Limited tran er
Liability sact first
Partners ion prov

hip 5 iso
number to
(FLLPIN) secti

ot on
Permane 188

nt (DD
Account /™
Number MY
(PAN)/Pa YYY
ssport )

for

individu

als or

any other




registrati
on
number

. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis.

Number of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis: 12

|
No

Corporat
e
identity
number
(CIN) or
foreign
company
registrati
on
number
(FCRN)
ar
Limited
Liability
Partners
hip
number
(LLPIN)
or
Foreign
Limited
Liability
Partners
hip
number
(FLLPIN)
or
Permane
it
Account
Number
(PAN)/Pa
ssport
for
individu
als or
any other
registrati

Name (s)
of the
related

party

Nature of
relationshi

P

MNature of

contracts/ar
rangemenls
Jfiransaction

Durati
on of
the
contra
ctsfarr
angem
ents/tr
ansacti
on

Salient terms
of the
contracts or
arrangements
or transaction
including the
value, if any

Date
of
appr
oval
by
the
Boar

d

Amo
unt
paid
as
adva
nees,
if any




Annexure-ll
on
number
01 | U74999K | Vanya Subsidiary | Purchase On As mutually 25.03 | Nil
A2005 Steels Company Goodsand | need | agreed 2024
PTC1255 | Private and Mr. CWIP /PPE | basis _ | and
78 Limited Sunil Jallan | Sale of On As mutually 07.02
(Subsidiar | and Mr. Goods and | need agreed 2025
y Sandeep PPE basis
Company) | Kumarand | Receiptof | Asper | As per the
Mr. lease rent the Lease
Kamaldeep Lease | agreement
Singh- agree
Director | ment | .
interested | Handling On As mutually
Charges Need | agreed
Income basis
Loading On As mutually
and Need | agreed
Unloading | basis
Charges
Income
Sale of On As mutually 08.03
Investments | need | agreed 2025
- Basai
02 | U27200K | A-one Wholly- Purchase of | On As mutually 25.03 | Nil
A2020 Gold Pipes | owned Goods and | need | agreed 2024
FTC1398 | and Tubes | Subsidiary | CWIP/PPE | basis and
70 Private Company | Sale of On Asmutually | 07.02
Limited, and Mr. goods and | need agreed 2025
(Wholly Sunil Jallan | PPE basis
Owned and Mr. receipt of As per | As per the
Subsidiary | Sandeep lease rent the Lease
Company) | Kumar and Lease | agreement
Mr, agree
Kamaldeep ment
Singh-




Director freight On As mutually
interested | Charges need | agreed
basis
Loading On As mutually
and need agreed
Unloading | basis
Charges
03 | U27300K | A-One Wholly- Receiptof | Asper | As perthe 25.03 | Nil
A2020 Gold Steels | owned lLease Rent | the Lease 2024
PTC1377 | India Subsidiary lLease | agreement and
08 Private Company agree 07.02
Limited, and Mr. ment 2025
Wholly Sunil Jallan
Orwned and Mr.
Subsidiary | Sandeep
Company) | Kumar
04 | CNKPR4 | Bellary Ms. Asha Purchase On As mutually 25.03 | Nil
847R Tubes Rani- and Saleof | need | agreed 2024
Corporatio | Proprietor | Goods basis
n who is wife
of M,r.‘ Liquidated  On As mutually
Manej Damages need | agreed
Kumar sais
Director of
the
company
(Resigned
on
= 12.06.2024)
05 | AAGFL7 | Laksh Mr. Sunil Purchase On As mutually 25.03 | Nil
905F Steels- Jallanand | and Sale of | need | agreed 2024
Partnershi | Mr. Goods and | basis and
p Sandeep Purchase of 07.02
Kumar are | CWIP 2025
san(s) of Lease Rent | As per | As per Lease 08.03 | Nil
Mr. Krishan Lease | agreement 2025
Kumar Agree
Jalan who is ment
pstner Liquidated | On As mutually
Damages need | agreed
basis |
06 | AFKPKS | Laksh Mr. Sunil Lease Rent | Asper | Asper Lease | 08.03 | Nil
520] Steels- Jallan and Lease | agreement 2025
Pmpﬁemrs Mr. Agree
hip Sandeep ment
Kumar are
son(s) of
Mr. Krishan
Kumar




Annexure-
lalan who is
Proprietor B
07 | AELPKOO | Sandeep Managing | Receiptof | As per | As per the 25.08 | Nil
53Q Kumar Director of | Lease Rent | the Lease 2024
the Lease | agreement and
company agree 07.02
and brother ment 2025
of Mr. Sunil
Jallan ay
08 | AHTPG3 | Mona Jalan | Wife of Mr, | Receiptof | As per | As per the 2508 | Nil
534 Sandeep Lease Rent | the Lease 2024
Kumar- Lease | agreement and
Managing agree 07.02
] Director ment | 2025
09 | 20213489 | A One Wholly Sale of On As mutually 25.03 | Nil
ZE Gold owned goods necd agreed 2024
Singapore | subsidiary basis and
Pte Ltd company 07.02
and Mr. 2025
Sunil Jallan- | Purchase of | On As mutually 25.03 | Nil
Director goods need | agreed 2024
basis and
07.02
2025 |
Demurrage | On As mutually 25.03 | Nil
Charges need | agreed 2024
basis and
07.02
2025
10 | ABGTS64 | ShriGouri | Sunil Jallan | Leaserent | Asper | As per Lease 03.04 | Nil
15C Shankar and the agreement 2023
Jalan Sandeep lease
Charitable | Kumar - agree
Trust Trustee ment
Krishan
Kumar
Jalan-
Author of
the Trust
11 | U46620K | A-One Mr. Suml Lease Rent | As per | As per lease 31.07 | Nil
A2023FT | Gold Retail | jallan - the agreement 2023
C176723 | Private Director Lease and
Limited and apgree 07.02
shareholder ment 2025
2 Mr.
Sandeep
Kumar

Drirector




Annexure-ll

and
sharcholder
3. Mr.
Krishan
Kumar
Jalan-Father
of Mr. Sunil
Jallan and
Mr.
Sandeep
Kumar who
is
shareholder
of the
company
12 | U27109T | Basai Subsidiary | Receiptof | As per | As per lease 14.12
G2002PT | Steels and | Company Lease Rent | the agreement 2024
C038411B | Power Lease
asai Private agree
Steels Limited ment
and
Power
Private
Limited |
On Behalf of the Board

DIN: 02150846
Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor

Whu!e- me irm:h:n'

Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces

Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024

Date: (01.08.2025
Place: Bangalore

Managing Director
DIN: 02112630

Address: Tower-3-398, 39th Floor
SNN Clermont, outer ring road
Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045




Annexure-TT1

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY:

1, Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company:
The Company has formed a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee ('CSR Committee)

e

comprising of three members, as per the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act,

2013 ('the Act’). Based on the recommendation of the CSR Committee and the approval of

the Board of Directors, Board approved to spend for demonstrating care for the community

through its focus on education & skill development, eradicating hunger, health & wellness
and environmental sustainability. Also embedded in this objective is support to the
disadvantaged /marginalized cross section of the society by providing opportunities to

improve their quality of life.

The projects undertaken during the financial year 2024-25 are within the broad framework
of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

. Composition of CSR Committee:

During the financial year 2024-25, the CSR committee consisting of following Directors:
Members of CSR Committee as on 23/12/2024

sl Name of Director | Designation/ | Number of | Number of meetings

No. Nature of | meetings of CSR |of CSR Committee
Directorship Committee held | attended during the

during the year year

01. | Sunil Jallan .| Whole-Time 02 02
Director

02. | Sandeep Kumar Director 02 02

03. | Uma Shankar | Director 02 01

Goyanka

Members of CSR Committee Pursuant to the reconstitution of the Committee

S Name of Director | Designation/ | Number of | Number of meetings
Nao. Nature of | meetings of CSR |of CSR Committee
Directorship Committee held | attended during the
during the vear vear
01. | Sunil Jallan Whole-Time 02 02
| Director
02. | Sandeep Kumar Director 02 02




03. | *Kamaldeep Singh | Director 02 01

*Pursuant to the reconstitution of the Committee Mr. Kamaldeep Singh was
appointed as the Members of the CSR Committee with effect from December 23,
2024.

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and ('SR projects approved

by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: https:/ /acnesteelgroup.com/

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable.

(Amount in Lakhs)
a, | Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): | Rs. 9524.21 lakhs

b. | Two percent of average net profit of the company as | Rs, 190.48 Lakhs
per section 135(5):

€. | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes | Nil
or activities of the previous financial vears

d. | Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if | Rs. 27.41 Lakhs

any

e. | Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] | Rs. 163.08 Lakhs

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoeing
Project).:Rs. 191.93 Lakhs
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
() Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A.
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 191.93 Lakhs

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs,)

Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial Year | Unspent CSR Account as per | under Schedule VII as per second proviso to
(in Rs.) Section 135(6). section 135(5).




Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer
NIL N.A NIL NIL NIL
Rs. 191.93 g TOTAL =)
Lakhs

(F) Excess amount for set off, if any:

SLNo. Particular Amount (in Rs)
() @) (3)
(i) Two percent on average net profit of the company as per | Rs. 190.48 Lakhs
section135(5) (CSR Obligation
after set off from
the Previous
Financial Year is
Rs. 163.07 Lakhs)
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 191.93 Lakhs
(ifi) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs. 28.86 Lakhs
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or | -
activities of the financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years | Rs. 28.86 Lakhs
Ll | |

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three

Financial Years: NIL

1] 3) (4) (5) () 7) (8)

# | Preceding Amount Balance | Amount Amount Amount Deficie
Financial transferred | Amount | Spentin | transferred | remaining to be ncy, if
Year(s) to in the toa spent in any

Unspent Unspent | Financial | Fund as succeeding
CUSR CSR Year (in specified Financial Years
Account Account | Rs) under (in Rs)
under under Schedule
135(6) 135(6) VII as per
{in Rs.) second
proviso to
135(5),if
N any
Amount | Date of
(in Rs) Transfer
NOT APPLICABLE

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the financial year:

YES/NO;




If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired:
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: Not applicable

Sl Short Pincode | Date of | Amount | Details of entity/ Authority/
No | particulars | of creation | of CSK beneficiary of the registered owner
of the amount
the property spent
properly or | or
asset(s) asset(s)
[including
complete
address
and
| location of
the
property]
M @ @) @) (5) T ®
SR Name | Registered
Registration address
Number, if
o applicable

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

On Behalf of the Board

Sunil Jallan

Chairman Director
DIN: 02150844 DIN: 02112630
Address: Flal No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor Address: Tower-3-39B, 3%th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces SNN Clermont, outer ring road
Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024 Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045
Date; 01.08.2025

Place: Bangalore




a)

Annexure [V
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Corporate Governance Philosophy

Your Company is committed to the principles of *Accountability’, "Transparency” and “Trusteeship’ in
its dealing with stakeholders. Accerdingly, in the endeavour to take balanced care of stakeholders,
vour Company adhberes to good corporate governance practices in ils business processes. The
Company is conscious of the fact that the success of a corporation reflects the professionalism,
conduct and ethical values of ils management and employees. In addition to compliance with
regulatory requirements, the Company endeavors to ensure that the highest standards of ethical and
responsible conduct are met throughout the organization. The Company has a strong legacy of fair,
transparent and ethical governance practices.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Employees including the Managing Director
and Executive Directors. In addition, the Company's terms of appointment with Independent
Directors suitably incorporates the duties of Independent Directors as laid down in the Companies
Act, 2013. These Codes and terms of appointment are available on the Company’s website and can be
accessed at www.aonesteelgroup.com,

As specified in the Directors” Report that the company philosophy of high standard of Corporate
Governance along with that the Company plans to get the listing their equity shares on National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE), A Report on Corporate Governance,
to cover the major aspects of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendments thereto is outlined below.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the Board) is at the core of the Company’s Corporate Governance practices
and oversees how Management serves and protects the long term interest of its stakeholders. It brings
in strategic guidance, leadership and an independent view to the Company’s Management while
discharging its fiduciary responsibilities, thereby, ensuring that Management adheres to highest
standards of ethics, transparency and disclosure.

The Board consists of an optimal combination of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors
including Independent Directors, representing a judicious mix of in-depth knowledge and experience.

Composition and Calegory of Directors

The Board comprises of 6 (Six) Directors viz, 3 (Three) Executive Directors and 3 (Three) Non-
Executive Directors out of which 3 (Three) are Independent Directors. In the opinion of the Board, the
Independent Dircctors of the Company (ulfill the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and
also as pravided in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are
independent of the management.



Compaosition of the Board and Committees as on March 31, 2025 are given below:

51 | Name of | Designa | Calego | Boa | Audit Corpor | Nominat | Stakeholde | Risk ro Posh
. | Director/ | tion ry rd | Committ | ate iomand | s Managem | Commit | Commilt
N | Member ee Social Remune | Relationshi | ent tee e
o Respon | ration P commitie
sibility | Committ | Committee | ¢
Commi | ee
ttee
1 | Sunil Whele- | ED& s v s - v a4 s e
Jallan time Promot |
director | er
2 | Uma Whole- | ED v - - - 2 - 2 =
Shankar | time
Coyanka | director
3 | Sandeep | Managi | EDé& L | - v - - 7 - =
Kumar ng Promot
Director | er
4 | Krishan | Director | INED v s - S - v s =
Singh
Barguzar
5 | Kamalde | Director | INED P v " o 3 = E =
ep Singh
6 | Jeevika Director | INED 4 ' - v s - o -
Poddar
7 | Saurabh | CFO - 7 R
Jindal
£ | Fooja Compan | - v o
Sara v
Nagaraja | Secretar
y
9 | AshaBS | Member | - = 7
10 | Kunjeti Member | - = s
Suma
Vasu
v « -Chairman v -Member ED-Executive Director  INED-Independent Non-Executive
Director

b} Changes in the composition of the Board

Resignation of Director

During the year under review, Mr. Manoj Kumar, Executive and Non Independent has
resigned from the Company’s Board of Directors, with effect from June 12, 2024 pursuant to
section 168 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Appointment of Director



During the year under review, Mr. Krishan Singh Barguzar, Mr. Kamaldeep Singh and Ms.
Jeevika Poddar were appointed as Independent Non-Executive Directors to the Board of the
Company, with effect from December 23, 2024,

¢ Changes in Designation of Director
During the year under review, the changes in designation of director are as follows

Name of the | Previous Present Original  Date | Date of
Director Designation Designation of Appointment | Change of
I | Designation |
Sunil Jallan Directar Chairman and | 09/04,/2012 24/12/2024
Whole-Time
Director
Uma Shankar | Director Whaole-Time 06/04 /2022 24/12/2024
| Goyanka - Director
Sandeep Kumar | Direclor Managing /042012 24/12/2024
Director
Krishan Singh | Additional Independent 23/1272024 24/12/2024
| Barguzar Director director
Kamaldeep Additional Independent 23/12/2029 24/12/2024
Singh Director director
leevika Poddar | Additional Independent 23/12/2024 24/12/2024
Director director

¢} Attendance of each director at the Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting

d)

Directors Number of Board Meetings Attendance at the last
Held Attended Annual General Meeting
| I ' held on September 28, 2024

Mr. Sunil Jallan 26 26 Yes

Mr. Uma Shankar Govanka 26 08 No |
Mr. Sandeep Kumar 26 25 Yes

Mr. Krishan Singh Barguzar® 26 04 No

Mr. Kamaldeep Singh* 26 05 No

Mr. Jeevika Poddar* 26 04 No

*Appointed as Non Executive Independent Director w.e.f. 23.12.2024

Number of other Boards or Board Committees in which Director is a member or Chairman
Number of Directorships and Committee chairmanships / memberships held by Directors in other
public companies as on March 31, 2025 are given herein below.
SI No Name of the | Name of the | No. of | No. of No. of post of
Director entity where | Directorship | memberships = Chairman in
he/ she is a|in other | in Audit and | Audit  and
director and | public entities | Stakeholders’ | Stakeholders’
the category | including this | Relationship | ‘Relationship
of entity Committee(s) | Committee
Directorship held in other | held in public
public entities | entities
including this | including this
centity entity
m Sunil jallan A-One Steels | 04 3 0
India Limited-
Chairman and
Whole-Time




e

f)

Director
02 Sandeep A-One  Steels | (4 0 0
Kumar India Limited-
Managing
o Director.
o Uma Shankar | A-Cne Steels | 01 0 0
Goyanka India Limited-
Whole-Time
Director
04 Krishan Singh | A-One Steels | 01 02 m
Barguzar India Limited-
Independent
Director
05 Jeavika A-One  Steels | 01 02 01
Poddar India Limited-
| Independent
Director
| 06 Kamaldeep A-Une  Steels | 03 04 [
Singh India Limited-
Independent
Director

Note: Vanya Steels Private Limited, A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Private Limited and A-One Gold
Steels India Private Limited are deemed Public Company.

Number of Board meetings held and dates on which held

During the financial year under review. 26 (Twenty Six) Board Meetings were held on April 2, 2024,
April 03, 2024, April 25, 2024, May 06, 2024, May 20, 2024, May 20, 2024, June 05, 2024, June 12, 2024,
June 20, 2024, July 02, 2024, July 02, 2024, July 13, 2024, July 20, 2024, August 21, 2024, August 29,
2024, September 04, 2024, September 26, 2024, September 28, 2024, November 13, 2024, December 4,
2024, December 23, 2024, December 23, 2024, December 28, 2024, December 30, 2024, February 02,
2025 and March 08, 2025, The gap between 2 (two) Board Meetings did not exceed 120 (One Hundred
and Twenty) days as required under Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 & 4 of
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 along with Regulation 17 (2) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. These Meetings were well
attended by all the Directors including Independent Directors,

Meeting of Independent Directors

The Company's Independent Directors are required to meet al least once every Financial Year in
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Such meetings are conducted to enable
Independent Directors to discuss the matters pertaining to the Company’s affairs and put forth their
views. Further, Independent Directors also review the performance of the Statutory Reports Non-
Iindependent Directors, Chairman (after considering the views of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors of the Company) and the Board as a whole. During the year under review, the Independent
Directors met on March 31, 2025 and all the Independent Directors attended the meeting,

Pecuniary Relationship

There were no pecuniary relations or transactions of Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company
other than:



h)

i)

a) The payment of sitting fees and commission and reimbursement of expenses incurred by
them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Company.

Familiarization Programs for Board Members

The Board members are provided with necessary documents / brochures, reports and mternal
policies to enable them to familiarize with the Company’s procedures and practices.

Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Committee Meetings, on business and performance
updates of the Company, operations review, quarterly and annual results, budgets, review of internal
audit reports and action taken reports, statutory compliances, risk management, operations of
subsidiaries and business strategy and risks involved. Such presentations and documents provide an
oppertunity to the Independent Directors to interact with the Senior Management Team of the
Company and help them understand the Company’s business including any new segment, strategy,
operations, services, organization structure, finance, human resources, technology, quality and such
other areas as may arise from time to time.

Details of familiarisation programmes imparted to independent directors is available on the
website of the Company i.e. www.aonesteelgroup.com

confirmation that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill the conditions
specified in these regulations and are independent of the management,

All the Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they meet the criteria prescribed
for independence under the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and continue o comply with the Code of Conduct laid down under Schedule IV
of the Act.

The Board has assessed the veracity of the confirmations submitted by the Independent Directors and
thereafter has taken the same on record, There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their
status as Independent Directors of the company. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent
Directors are competent, experienced, proficient and possess necessary expertise and integrity to
discharge their duties and functions as Independent Directors. The names of all Independent
Directors are included in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute
of Corporate Affairs.

In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors are independent of the management.

number of shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive directors;

As on March 31, 2025 the Non Executive Directors of the company are not holding any shares in the
company,

Disclosure of relationships between Directors inter-se

There is no inter-se relationship between any Directors except Mr. Sunil Jallan and Mr. Sandecp
Kumar.



1)

m)

detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the expiry of
his / her tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no other material reasons
other than those provided.

Not Applicable

Key Board skillg/expertise/competencies

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 20015 as amended from time lo time, the Board of Directors have
identified the following key skills/expertise/competence that the Board of Directors comprises of a
diverse and multidisciplinary group of professionals with requisite skills/expertise/ competence who
can contribute towards providing strategic direction to the Company’s management to continue to
pursue its vision of providing quality and affordable healthcare whilst upholding the highest
standards of Corporate Governance.

Key Competencies | Brief Description i | Name of Direclors =
Governanceand | The Board shall collectively comprise of | All the Directors -
Board service Directors who demonstrate competence and

experience in application of Corporate
______ Governance principles.
Business/ Experience with, or can demonstrate | All the Directors
Management knowledge or expertise in, sound

management  and  operational  business

processes and practices,
Risk/Legal/ Ability to identify key risks to the
Regulatory organization in a wide range of areas
Compliance including legal and regulatory compliance

and monitor risk and compliance
management frameworks and systems.

Accounting/ Experience with, or can demonstrate
Financial knowledge or expertise in, accounting
Experience or Hnancial management mcluding

analyzing and  interpreting  financial
statements,  evaluating  orpanizational
budgets and use of resources, critically
analyze performance and financial viability,
oversee  funding  arrangements  and
understanding financial reporting,

Board Procedure

A detailed agenda and notes thereon are sent to each Director in advance of Board and Committee
Meetings. All material information is incorporated in the agenda for facilitating meaningful and
focused discussions at the meeting, Where it is not practicable to attach any documents with the
agenda, it 15 tabled before the meeting with specific reference to this effect in the agenda. To enable
the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively, the Board is kept abreast at every meeting on the
overall’ performance of the Company. All the relevant reports are also presented at the Board
Meetings.




The Chairman of the Board and Company Secretary, in consultation with other concerned members,
finalize the agenda for Board meetings.

Every Board member can suggest the inclusion of additional items in the agenda, The Board meets at
least once a quarter to review the quarterly results and other items on the agenda. Additional
meetings are held when necessary.

Board member evaluation

One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the Board evaluation framework. The
Nomination and Kemuneration Committee has laid down the manner of evaluation of performance of
the Board, its committees and individual Directors and its implementation and review. The Board of
Directors have adopted the same. :

Some of the performance indicators, based on which the Independent Directors are evaluated include:

#  The ability to contribute to and monitor our corporate governance practices

* The ability lo contribute by introducing international best practices to address business
challenges and risks.

¢ Active participation in long-term strategic planning.

« Commitment to the fulfilment of a Director’s obligations and fiduciary responsibilities; these
include participation in Board and Committee meetings.

To improve the effectiveness of the Board and its Committees, as well as that of each individual
director, a formal Board review is internally undertaken on an annual basis. The members may refer
to the Board’s Report for the evaluation process followed by the Company.

Audit Commitice

The Audit Committee has been constituted on 23.12.2024 in terms of Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Regulations 18 and 21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from lime to time.

The terms of reference of Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee are broadly as follows:

The Audit Committee provides directions to the audil function and monitors the quality of internal
and statutory audits. The Committee functions as per the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, The
responsibilities of the Committee include review of the quarterly and annual financial statements
before submission to Board, review and approval of related party transactions, review of compliance
of internal control system, overseeing the financial reporting process to ensure transparency,
sufficiency, fairness and credibility of financial statements, approve risk management policy, assist
the Board in oversight of risk identification, evaluation and mitigation and review management’s
assessment of risk. The Committee also reviews the functioning of whistle blower mechanism,
adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit function, review of management discussion and analysis
of financial condition and results of operation,



As on March 31, 2025, the Audit Committee comprised of 4 Directors. 3 are Independent Directors
and One is Whole-Time Director the details of the same are as follows:

Director | Nature of Directorship Designation
1. Krighan Singh Barguzar Independent Director Chairman

2. Kamaldeep Singh Independent Director Member

3, Jeevika Poddar Independent Director Member

4. Sunil Jallan Whole-time director Member

Meetings and attendance during the year:

MName of the members*

Date of Committee | No. of meetings No. of meetings

attending the meeting Meeting held attended

23.12.2024 4 4
28.12.2024
07.02.2025
08.03.2025

Krishan Singh Barguzar

leevika Poddar 2312204
28.12.2024
07.02.2025

08.03.2025

23.12.2024 - 4
28.12.2024
07.02.2025
08.03.2025

Sunil Jallan

23.12.2024 4 1
28.12.2024
07.02.2025
08.03.2025
*Pursuant o the reconstitution of the Commiltee Mr. Kamaldeep Singh was appointed as the
Members of the Audit Committee with effect from February 07, 2024

Kamaldeep Singh

Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company was constituted on 23.12.2024 The
scope and function of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in accordance with Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 19 and Part D of Schedule 1l of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Commitice includes determination of
the Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for the Executive Directors and Senior
Management, oversee the framing, review and implementation of compensation policy of the
Company on behalf of the Board. The Committee’s terms also include to frame a policy, procedures
and schempes of the Company and to review the Board structure, size and composition and make
recommendation for any change. The Committee also formulates evaluation criteria for Directors and
the Board.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is also posted on the website of the Company and can be
accessed at www.aonesteelgroup.com.

The composition, name of members and Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
as om March 31, 2025 are as under




n

Director Nature of Directorship Designation
1. Krishan Singh Barguzar Independent Director Chairman

2. Kamaldeep Singh Independent Divector Member

3. Jeevika Poddar Independent Director Member

Meetings and attendarce duing the vear:

Name of the members | Date of Committee | No. of meetings MNo. of meetings
altending the meeling Meeling held attended
Krishan Smgh Barguzar 1 1

Kamaldeep Singh 23.122024 1 1

Jeevika Poddar | 1

Performance evaluation criteria for independent directors.

The podormance indicators, based on which the Independent Directors are evaluated include:

e The ability to contribute to and monitor our corperate governance practices

The ability to contwibute by introducing international best practices to address business
challenges and risks.

Active participation in long-term strategic planning,.

Commitment to the fulfilment of a Director’s obligations and fiduciary responsibilities; these
include participation in Board and Committee meetings.

To improve the effectiveness of the Board and its Commitiees, as well as that of each individual
director, a formal Board review is internally undertaken on an annual basis. The members may refer
to the Board's Report for the evaluation process followed by the Company.

Stakeholders’ Relalionship Committee
The members of the Stakehelders’ Relationship Committee as on March 31, 2025 are:

Dyirector Nature of Direclorship Designalion
1, Jeevika T'oddar Independent Director Chairman

2. Kamaldeep Singh Independent Director Member

3, Sunil Jallan Whole-Time Director Member

Meetings and attendance during the vear:

Name of the members | Date of Committee | No. of meetings No. nf meetings
altending the meeting Meeting held attended

Sumil Jallan 31.03.2025 1 1

Kamaldeep Singh 1 1

Jeevika Poddar 1 0

name and designation of the complhance officer;

Ms. Pooja Sara Magaraja Company Secrelary & Compliance Officer

Details of the Investor Grievances




b)

c)

Number  of  sharcholders’ | Number not solved to the | Number of pending complaints. i
complaints received during the | satisfaction of sharcholders

financial year

0 0 " 0

Other Commiltees

Corporate Social Responsibility Committes

The members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as on March 31, 2025 are:

Direclor Nature of Directorship Dresignation

Sunil Jallan | Whole-time director | Chairman

Sandeep Kumar Managing Dhrector Memn ber
Kamaldeep Singh Independent Director Member

Meetings and attendance during the year:

Name of the members | Date of Commiltee | No. of meelings No. of meetings
attending the meeting Meeling held attended

Sumil Jadlan 02.04.2024 2 |2
Sandeep Kumar 25.08.2025 2 |2

*Kamaldesp Singh 2 |1

‘Pursuant to the reconstitution of the Committee Mr. Kamaldeep Singh was appainted as the
Members of the CSE Committee with effect from December 23, 2024,

Mr. Kamaldeep Singh-Independent Director of the company

The Committee owns the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and recommends any changes to the
policy (or related activities) from tme to time to the Board. The Committee also oversees the
implementation of the policy, approves plans and programs.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is also posted on the website of the Company and can be
accessed al www.aonesteelgroup.com.

Risk Mai ragement committee:

In terms of Regulation 21 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
205, the top 1000 listed entities, are required to comstitute a Risk Management Commiltee, The
respensibilities related to the Risk Maragement Commiltee are being performed by our Audit, Risk
and Compliance Committee. The Board has nominated the Audit, Risk and Compliance committee as
the Risk Management Committee of the Company.

In addition to the scope and function of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee of the Company
as referred above, the scope of the Committee is also to assist the Board in fulfilling its responzibilities
about the identification, evaluation, mitigation of operational, strategic and environmental risks, The
Committee has the overall responsibility of monitoring and approving the risk policies and associated
practices of the Company. It is also responsible for reviewing and approving risk disclosure
statements in public documents or disclosures.



d)

)

The Risk Management Folicy is also posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at

www.aonesteelgroup.com,

As an March 31, 2035, the Audit, Risk and Compliance Commitiee comprised of 3 Directors. Only

One Independent Directors and the details of the same are as follows:

Diirector Nature of Directorship Designation
1. Sunil Jallan Whole-time director Chairman

2. Sandeep Kumar Managing Director Member

3. Krishan Singh Barpuzar Independent Director Member

Meetings and attendance during the vear:

Name of the members | Date of Committee | No. of meetings No. of meetings
attending the meeting Meeting held attended
Krishan Singh Barguzar A 0

Sunil Jallan 31/03/2025 1 1
Sandeep Kumar 1 i

IPO Committee:

As on March 31, 2025, the IPO comprised of 5 members are as follows:

Drirector Nature of Directorship Designation

1. Sunil Jallan Whole-time director Chairman

2. Jeevika Poddar Independent Director Member

3. Krishan Singh Barguzar Independent Director Member

4. Saurabh Jindal CFO Member

5. Pooja Sara Nagaraja cs Member

Meetings and attendance during the yvear:

Name of the members | Date of Committee | No. of meetings No. of meetings
attending the meeting Meeting held attended

1. Sunil Jallan 1 1 N

2 Jeevika Poddar 30/12/2025 1 1

3 Krishan Singh Barguzar

4. Saurabh Jindal

5. Pooja Sara Nagaraja

1

1

POSH COMMITTEE:

As on 31.03.2025 POSH committee comprised of 4 members are as follows:

Member Designation

1. Pooja Sara Nagaraja Presiding Officer
2 Sunil Jallan Member

3 Asha BS Member

4. Kunjeli Suma Vasu Member




9. Particulars of Senior Management Personnel and changes since the close of previous financial
year:
*Name of Senior Management Personnel Designation
{(*SMP")
Anand Mohan Dixit VP Pipes & Tubes Sales of the Company
Anand Sharaff President Plant in-charge of the Koppal Facility.
Mahesh Singhal GM Plant In-charge of the Company
Manoj Kumar President Plant ln-charge of the Company
Rajendhran N M President Project Sales of the Company
Srinivasa Rao 'othina | VP Technical of the Company
*Board meeting held on 23.12.2024 company identified Senior Management of the company.
During the Financial Year 2024-25, there were no changes in the Senior Management Personnal.
10, Remuneration to Directors
a) Details of remuneration to Directors for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025
51 No Name of the Director Remuneration
m Sunil Jallan Rs. 12 Lakhs Per Month
a2 Sandeep Kumar Rs. 10 Lakhs Par Month
03 Uma Shankar Goyanka - Rs. 1.5 Lakhs Per Month
b) During the year, the Company has paid remuneration to following Non-executive directors
Sl No Name of the Direcior Sitting Fees
01 Krishan Singh Barguzar Rs. 5,00,000/-
02 Kamaldeep Singh Rs. 350,000/ -
0z Jeevika Poddar Es. 5,00,000/ -

Meetings and attendance during the vear:

Name of the members | Date of Committee | No. of meetings No. of meetings
altending the meeting Meeting held Attended

1. Pooja Sara Nagaraja 13/01/2025 a1 1]

2. Sunil Jallan 13/01/2025 1 0

3. AshaBS 13/01/2025 01 01

4. Kunjeti Suma Vasu 13/01,/2025 m 01

The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors comprises of commission paid pursuant to approval of
the shareholders under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, sitting fees of Rs. 50,000/~ per Board
Meeting and per Committee Meeting attended in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013. Further, reimbursement of expenses incurred by the Non-executive Directors in connection with
attending the Board Meetings, Committee Meetings, General Meetings and in relation to the business
of the Company are extended to the Non-Executive Directors.

¢) Service Contracts, Notice and Severance Fees



d)

)

12

14.

16.

As on March 31, 2025, the Board comprises of 6 (5ix) Directors viz., 3 (Three) Executive Directors and
3 (Three) Non- Executive Directors out of which 3 (Three) are Independent Directors. The Executive
Directors are the employees of the Company and are subject to service conditions as per the
Company's Policy. There is no separate provision for payment of severance fees. However,
Independent Directors are subject to a notice period of 30 (Thirty) days but are not eligible for
severance fees.

Criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Directors

The criteria for making payment to the non-executive directors is based on the varied roles played by
them towards the Company. It is not just restricted to corporate governance or outlook of the
Company, but they also bring along with them significant professional expertise and rich experience
across the wide spectrum of functional areas such as technology, corporate strategy, finance and other
corporate functions. The Company secks their expert advice on various matters in general
management, strategy, business planning, finance, science, technology and intellectual property.

Disclosure of relationships between Directors infer-se

There is no inter-se relationship between any Directors except Mr. Sunil Jallan and Mr. Sandeep

Kumar.

Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors: NA

. General Body Meetings:

a. Details of location and time, where last 3 Annual General Meeting were held:

Financial Year ended I'.l:w Date and Time of Location
Annual general Meeting
March 31, 2024 Saturday, 28.09.2024 -5.00 Registered Office
PM
March 31, 2023 Friday, 25.09.2023-3.00 P.M Registered Office
March 31, 2022 Friday, 30.09.2022-5.00 P.M Registered Office

b. Details of Special Resolution passed in the previous 3 Annual General Meetings: NIL

Details of Postal Ballots:
The company has not sought approval of the shareholders by way of Special Resolutions through
notice of postal ballot.

Details of Special Resolution proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting:

None of the businesses are proposed to be transacted at the ensuing AGM requires passing of a
special resolution through postal ballot.

Remote e-voting at the Annual General Meeting : Not Applicable
Means of Communication : As at present the company is the unlisted Public Company the

financials results of the company are uploaded on the website of the company i.e.
www.apnesteel group.com.

General Shareholder Information:
s Annual General Mesting Venue




The Company shall hold the Annual General Meeting at the Registered Office of the Company,
Details are provided in the Notice of this AGM.

Day, date and time
The 13* Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Thursday 28" August 2025 at
4.00 P.M.

Financial Year:

I'he Financial Year covers the period from April 1, 2024 to March 315 2025.

Dividend payvment date:
Dividend not declared for the year

Listing on Stock Exchanges
Al present no securities of the company is listed on any exchange. However, Company is in the
process of listing its equity shares on stock exchanges i.e NSE and BSE.

In case the securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the reason
thereof;

Mot ."Hillﬂi\'ﬂi\iq_'

Registrar to an issue and share transfer agents;

Bigshare services Pvt Itd.

56-2, bth floor Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri
(East) Mumbai - 400093

Board No. : 022-62638200 |

Share transfer system;

Being the unlisted company the transfer of the shares by the company is taken place by way of buyers
and sellers themselves only in dematerialized form. Pursuant to applicable provisions, post
conversion of the company from private limited company to public limited company, requests for
effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the securities are held in the
dematerialized form with a depository.

Distribution of shareholding as on 31.03.2025;

Category | No of Holders Total Shares | % of Equity Capital
Promoter 03 5,85,80,270 85.56

Promoter Group 03 204,000 0.30

Public 296 96,81,000 1434

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

As on 31.03.2025 entire Paid-up share capital of the company is held in dematerialisation form
with National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited.




Ouistanding global depozitary receipls or american depository receipts or warrants or any
convertible instruments, conversion date and l.ikc!y impact on equity;

No outstanding global depository receipts or american depository receipts or warrants or any
convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity;

Plant locations;

1. Gowribidanur, Karnataka
2  Bellary, Karnataka

3. Chikkanthapur, Karnataka
4. Hindupur-Andhra Pradesh

Address for correspondence.
A Ome House, No. 326, COAL Layout,
Ward No 08, S5ahakar Nagar, Bangalore-560052

Credit Ratings
The credit rating assigned to long term and Short-term loans of the Company during the financial
vear 2024-25 is given below:

Instrument Credit Rai'mg =1
ICRA
Long = Term Loans CRISIL A-/Negative
Short-Term Loans Fund Based- CRISIL. A-/Negative
MNon-Fund Bases - CRISIL A2+ Negative

Auditors Fees

M/s. Singhi & Co (Firm Registration No. 30249E) have been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company. The Company paid an amount of Rs. 11.65 Lakhs to the Statutory Auditors on a
consolidated basis for the Financial Year 2024-25.

Non-acceptance of any recommendation of any Committee of the Board which is mandatorily
reguired

The Board of Directors have taken all the recommendations of the various Committees of the Board
as statutorily prescribed

Material Subsidiaries
Details of material subsidiary of the Company, including the date and place of incorporation of such
subsidiary are as under:

S. | Subsidiaries | Date d Place o 5 = (o
No.| whose total | Incorporation Incorporation| appointment | Statutory
income / net of S:talutur_\a Auditors
worth  exceeds Auditor
10%a of the
Group’s total
income/net
warth

01 Vanya  Steels | 20/06/2005 India 29/08/2023 | Singhi & Co




02

Private Limited

A-One Cold Pipes | 16/10/2020 India 25/10/2024 Singhi &
and Tubes Private Co
Limited

*Post Financial year and date of signing of report M/s. Basai Steels and Power Private Limited is
also material subsidiary of the company incorporated in 2005.
17. Drisclosures:

Related Party Transactions:

During the Financial Year 2024-25, there were no materially significant transactions entered
into between the Company and its Promoters, Directors or the Management, Holding
Company, Subsidiaries, Associates or relatives that may have potential

conflict with the interest of the Company at large except for those mentioned in the Boards'
Report. Further, details of related parly transactions form part of notes to the standalone
accounts of the Annual Report and a policy about same is available on

the Company’s website. i.e. www.aonesteelgroup.com

Details of non-compliance with respect to Capital Markets : Not Applicable.

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism :

The Company has developed a Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy with a view to
provide a mechanism for Directors, employees and stakeholders of the Company to report
their genuine concern. The Whistle Blower Policy is also posted on the website of the

Company.

Furthermore, we hereby affirm that no personnel have been denied access to the audit
committee

Compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements
The Company has complied with all the mandatory Corporate Governance requirements to
the extent applicable to the Company and practically possible to disclosure the required

information.

Total fees for all services poaid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated
basis, o the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which
the statutory auditor is a part. -Rs. 34.51 Lakhs

Link for Policy on determining Material Subsidiaries
The Company has a Policy for determining material subsidiaries which is disclosed on

website www . aonesleclgroup com,

Disclosure of Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging activities
Information on foreign exchange risk and hedging activities are provided under Notes to
Accounts of Financial Statements section of Annual Report.

Disclosures regarding appointment or re-appointment of Directors
As per the Companies Act, 2013, at least two thirds of the Board should consist of retiring
Directors, of these at least one third are required to retire every year. While




determining the retiring Director, Independent Directors shall be excluded. The details of the
directors pertaining, to the appointment pr re-appointed in the Notice of the Annual General
Meeting along with the Directors Report and the same can be referred from there.

(Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

The Company has in place an Insider Trading policy governing determination of Legitimate
purposes for sharing of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, mechanism for internal
control, mechanism for dealing with suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive
information as per the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015. The insider trading Policy is posted on the website of the

Company.

Subsidiary Companies

All subsidiary companies are managed by their Boards, having the rights and obligations to
manage such Companies in the best interest of their stakeholders.

The Company monitors the performance of subsidiary Companies, inter-alia, by reviewing
financial statemenis, particularly investments (wherever applicable) made by unlisted
subsidiary companies.

Accounting Treatment in Preparation of Financial Statemenis

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed existing Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS). The significant accounting policies which are

consistently applied have been set out in the notes to the financial statements.

Compliance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations,
2015

The company is in the process of listing, has complied with all the mandatorily applicable
provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
as amended from time to time.

. Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to Regulation 24A(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, every listed entity and its material unlisted subsidiaries incorporated in
India shall undertake secretarial audit and shall annex with its Annual Report, a secretarial
audit report, given by a Company Secretary in Practice. The Company, in this regard, has
sought a Secretarial Audit Report from CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva, Company Secretary in
Practice, having their office at 41/1, 2% Floor, 11" Cross, 8% Main, Jayanagar 2+ Block,
Bangalore-560011 .

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

Number of complainis filed during the financial year: 0

Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: 0

Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: 0

Compliance with Mandatory Requirements

Since. company is in the process of listing, The Company has complied with all the
mandatory applicable corporate governance requirements under the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,



p- Discretionary requirements [Schedule 11 Part E of the SEB] (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015}
Maodified opinion in Audit Report During the year under review, there was no audit
qualification in the Auditors’ Report on the Company’s financial statements. The Company
continues to adopt best practices to ensure a regime of unqualified financial statements,

18. Disclosurés of Transactions of the Listed Entity with any Person or Entity belonging lo the
Promoter/T'romoter Group which holdis) 10" or more Shareholding in the Listed Entity, in the
format prescribed in the relevant Accounting Standards for Annual Results
Mr. Sunil Jallan, Mr. Sandeep Kumar and Mr. Krishan Kumar Jallan, Promoters holds 10% or more
shares in the Company. The details of transactions with Promater / Promoter group
holding 10% or more shares have been disclosed in the financial statements which is part of the
Annual Report.

19. Declaration as required under Regulation 3(3) and Schedule V of the Listing Regulations
All Directors and senior management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with A
Ome Steels Code of Conduct for the financial vear ended March 31, 2025,

20. Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities
Mot Applicable

21. CEQ and CFO Certification
Not Applicable

22 Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance

Not Applicable

(On Behall of the Board

Whaole-1tme Director
DIN: 02150846 DIN: 02112630
Address: Flat No 753, Tower 7, 5th Floor Address: Tower-3-39B, 39th Floor
Unit-3 Embassy Lake Terraces SNN Clermont, outer ring road

Kirloskar Business Park, Bangalore-560024 Nagavara, Bangalore North-560045

Date: 1.08.2025

Place: Bangalore



CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva #41/1, 11th Cross, 8th Main, 2nd Block

Company Secretary in Practice, Jayanagar, Bengaluru - 560 011
Insolvency Professional & Registered Valuer Email:subbaraocs@gmail.com
Membership No: F12205 CP No.18667 Mobile: +91-8147238639

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended 31* March 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 ]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the Financial Year Ended 31 March 2025
To,
The Members,
A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED
(Fermerly known as A-One Steel and Alloys Private Limited)
(CIN: U28999KA2012PLC063439)
A One House, No. 326
CQAL Layout Ward No. 08, Sahakar Nagar
Bangalore, Karnataka, India, 560 092

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED (CIN:
U28995KA2012PLC063439) (hereinafter referred as “the Company”) (Farmerly known as A-
One Steel and Alloys Private Limited). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances

and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the A-One Steels India Private Limited (the Company's) books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31" March

2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has

T

SUBE
RS0 o
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CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva #41/1, 11th Cross, 8th Main, 2nd Block

Company Secretary in Practice, Jayanagar, Bengaluru - 560 011
Insolvency Professional & Registered Valuer Email:subbaraocs@gmail.com
Membership No: F12205 CP No.18667 Mohile: +491-8147238639

proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and

subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by A-One Steels India Limited for the financial year ended on 31 March 2025

according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under (in so far as they

are made applicable);

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made there

under; (Not applicable)

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under to

the extent applicable;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there,

to the extent applicable;

{v) | further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with other Acts, Laws,

Policies and Regulations applicable specifically to the Company.

(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’): -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable)
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992; (Not Applicable)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; {Not Applicable)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing

with client; (Not Applicable)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,

1998; (Not Applicable)

(vi)  All other relevant applicable laws including those specifically applicable to the
Company, a list of which has been provided by the management. The examination
and reporting of these laws and rules are limited to whether there are adequate

systems and processes in place to monitor and ensure compliance with those laws
| have also examined compliance of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute

of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General

Meetings.
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I have not examined compliance by the Company relating to the applicable financial
laws, such as direct and indirect tax laws including cost records, since the same have
been subject to review by statutory financial auditor and other designated

professionals.

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the

provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the

period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the

meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are

captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

Minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of

the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to manitor and ensure

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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I further report that during the audit period the company has following events /
actions having a major bearing on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above

referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above:

I.  Increase in Authorized Share Capital:

The Company has increased its Authorized Share Capital from
Rs.47,50,00,000/- divided into 3,65,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each and
11,00,000 Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each to
Rs.91,00,00,000/- divided into 8,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each and
11,00,000 Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each.
The said increase has been approved by the shareholders of the Company by

passing an Ordinary Resolution at their meeting held on 25" April 2024.

Il.  Reclassification of share capital:

The shareholders of the Company at their Extraordinary General Meeting held
on 24" December 2024 have approved for reclassification of share capital and
post which the authorized capital of the Company is as follows:

Rs.91,00,00,000/- divided into 9,10,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each

lll.  Change of name of the Company

The Shareholders of the Company at their meeting held on 6" May 2024, have
approved for change of name of the Company from A-One Steel And Alloys
Private Limited to A-One Steels India Private Limited and the same has been
approved by the Registrar of Companies, Bengaluru, Karnataka on 29" June
2024,
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IV.  Further, the Company has issued the following securities:

a. The shareholders of the Company, at their Extraordinary General Meeting
held on 25th April 2024, approved the issuance of 4,18,43,050 fully paid-up
equity shares of X10/- each by way of a bonus issue, in the ratio of 5:2 by
capitalizing free reserves amounting to ¥41,84,30,500. The allotment of the
bonus shares was duly made cn the same day, i.e., 25th April 2024, at the

meeting of the Board of Directors.

b. The shareholders of the Company at their Extraordinary General Meeting
held on 20™ May 2024 approved for issue of 75,00,000 equity shares at an
issue price of Rs.250/- (Face Value of Rs.10 each and Premium of Rs.240/-
) by way of further issue of capital through private placement basis in one
or more tranches. Further, the Company has made allotment in two

tranches as stated below:

i. 28,73,000 equity shares for an aggregate consideration of
Rs.71,82,50,000/- on 5 June 2024 (First Tranche):

ii. 36,50,000 equity shares for an aggrepate consideration of
Rs.91,25,00,000/- on 20" June 2024 (Final Tranche);

c. Further, the shareholders of the Company at their Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 2" July 2024 approved for issue of 34,77,000 equity
shares at an issue price of Rs.250/- (Face Value of Rs.10 each and Premium
of Rs.240/-) by way of further issue of capital through private placement
basis in one or mare tranches and made allotment as stated below:
33,62,000 equity shares for an apgregate consideration of
Rs.84,05,00,000/- on 13" July 2024.

Secretarial Audit Report FY2024-25 N )




CS Venkata Subbarao Kalva #41/1, 11th Cross, 8th Main, 2nd Block

Company Secretary in Practice, Jayanagar, Bengaluru - 560 011
Insolvency Professional & Registered Valuer Email:subbaraoccs@gmail.com
Membership No: F12205 CP No.18667 Mobile: +91-8147238639

V. Redemption of Redeemable Preference Shares:

During the year under review, the Company has redeemed 10,00,000 (Ten
Lakh) 0.01% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each
with 6% redemption premium on the face value aggregating to Rs.
10,60,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores Sixty Lakhs Only). The redemption was duly

approved at their Board meeting held on 26th September 2024;

VI. Change in Status Company from Private to Public:

The shareholders of the Coampany at the Extraordinary General Meeting held
on 30" August 2024 had approved for conversion of the status of Company
from Private to Public by way of Special Resclution. Further, the Registrar of
Companies has approved and issued fresh Certificate of Incorporation and with

effect from 23 December 2024, the company has become a public company.

VIl. Order of the Regional Director under Section 454

The Company during the period under review, had filed an appeal before the
Hon'ble Regional Director under Section 454(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 on
57 July 2024 against the order of the Registrar of Companies, Bengaluru,
Karnataka dated 7'" February 2024 for violation of Section 203 (appointment
of Whole time Company Secretary). The Hon'ble Regional Director had passed
final order on 2Sth November 2024 and compliances have been made

accordingly.
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VIll.  Draft Red Herring Prospectus

The Company filed its Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on December 30, 2024, in connection with
its proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) of equity shares. The DRHP outlines the
details of the proposed offering, including the objectives of the issue, financial
information, and other statutory disclosures in accordance with SEBI (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018. Subsequently, the
Company has received approval from SEBI on May 30", 2025, allowing it to
proceed with the IPO.

7 e o
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Venkata Subbarao Kalva. =~ ¢

Company Secretary in Pracgi.ré_ -
FCS: 12205; CP No.18667

Peer Review Cert.No.:2739/2022
UDIN Neo: F012205G000911941

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 01.08.2025

Note: Para wise details of the Audit finding, if necessary, may be placed as annexure

to the report.
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ANNEXURE
To,

A-ONE STEELS INDIA LIMITED

Bengaluru

My report of even date is to be read along with this latter,

(1) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the

Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on

my audit.

(2} | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. | believe that the processes and practices, followed provide a reasonable basis for

my opinion.

(3} | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books

of Accounts of the Company.

(4) Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
(5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited

to the verification of procedures on test basis.
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(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management is conducted

the affairs of the Company.

Y SZevaide

Venkata Subbarao Kalva. " ;
R “‘____.../
Company Secretary in Practice" -
FCS5: 12205; CP No.18667

Peer Review Cert.No.: 2739/2022

UDIN No: F012205G000911941

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 01.08.2025
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